
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
RHONDDA CYNON TAF

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

GWŶS I GYFARFOD O'R CYNGOR

C.Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Materion Cyfathrebu a Phennaeth Dros Dro’r Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Y Pafiliynau 
Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian 
Cwm Clydach CF40 2XX

Dolen gyswllt: Hannah Williams - Uned Busnes y Cyngor - Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol  (01443 424062) 

DYMA WŶS I CHI i gyfarfod o Pwyllgor ARCHWILIO yn cael ei gynnal yn 
Siambr y Cyngor, Y Pafiliynau, Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian, Cwm Clydach, 
Tonypandy CF40 2XX ar Dydd LLUN, 17EG RHAGFYR, 2018 am 5.00 PM.

AGENDA
Tudalennau

1. DATGAN BUDDIANT 
Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau, yn unol â gofynion y 
Cod Ymddygiad.

Nodwch:
1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 

buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol 
hwnnw; a

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu buddiant 
sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan fyddan 
nhw'n gadael.

2. COFNODION 
Derbyn cofnodion o gyfarfod blaenorol y Pwyllgor Archwilio a gafodd ei gynnal 
ar 5 Tachwedd 2018.

3 - 8
3. PENODI IS-GADEIRYDD 

Penodi Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Archwilio ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 
2018/2019.



4. SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU: LLYTHYR ARCHWILIO 
BLYNYDDOL 2017/18 

9 - 28
5. SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU: ADRODDIAD GWELLA 

BLYNYDDOL 2017/18 
29 - 62

6. ARGYMHELLION DATGANIAD LLYWODRAETHU BLYNYDDOL 
2017/18 - YR WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF 

63 - 72
7. STRATEGAETH RHEOLI RISG 

73 - 86
8. TROSOLWG O REOLAETH FEWNOL, GAN GYNNWYS 

ASTUDIAETH ACHOS O WEITHIO'N HYBLYG 

9. CYFLAWNIAD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL 
87 - 100

10. ASEINIADAU ARCHWILIO TERFYNOL 
101 - 220

11. BUSNES BRYS 
Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn faterion brys yng 
ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig.

Cyfarwyddwr Materion Cyfathrebu a Phennaeth Dros Dro’r Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol
Cylchreliad:-

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol:
Y Cynghorydd G Caple, Y Cynghorydd A Cox, Y Cynghorydd J Cullwick, 
Y Cynghorydd M Fidler-Jones, Y Cynghorydd M Adams, Y Cynghorydd H Boggis, 
Y Cynghorydd R Smith, Y Cynghorydd R Yeo, Y Cynghorydd M Powell, 
Y Cynghorydd G Davies, Y Cynghorydd  M Norris, Y Cynghorydd E Webster, 
Y Cynghorydd J Elliott, Y Cynghorydd Owen-Jones and Y Cynghorydd S Rees

Aelod Lleyg – Mr R. Hull

Aelod o’r Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol – Y Cynghorydd 
Bwrdeistref Sirol M.A.Norris – er gwybodaeth 



 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on Monday, 5 November 2018 at 5.00 pm at the 
Council Chamber, The Pavilions, Cambrian Park, Clydach Vale, Tonypandy, CF40 2XX. 

 
 

County Borough Councillors - Audit Committee Members in attendance:- 
 

Councillor G Caple Councillor A Cox 
Councillor J Cullwick Councillor M Fidler Jones 
Councillor M Adams Councillor H Boggis 

Councillor R Smith Councillor R Yeo 
Councillor G Davies Councillor K Jones 
Councillor M Norris Councillor E Webster 
Councillor J Elliott Councillor D Owen-Jones 

 
 

Officers in attendance 
 

Mr C Jones, Director, Legal & Democratic Services 
Mr P Griffiths, Service Director, Performance & Improvement 

Mr M Crumbie, Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Delivery Programme 
Mr I Traylor, Head of Service, Pensions, Payroll & Payments 

Ms S Davies, Head of Finance: Education And Financial Reporting 
Mr M Davies, Revenues and Corporate Fraud Team Manager 

Mr A Gough, Insurance Manager 
 
 

20  Welcome & Introductions  
 

 

 The Chair took the opportunity to welcome new Members to the meeting of the 
Audit Committee and introductions were made. 
 

 

21   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from County Borough Councillor M. Powell 
and the Wales Audit Office. 
 

 

22   Declaration of Interest  
 

 

 In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, the following County Borough 
Councillors declared a personal interest: 

 County Borough Councillor E. Webster in relation to Agenda Item 8 - 
Finalised Internal Audit Assignments. “I am a Governor of Treorchy 
Comprehensive School”. 

 County Borough Councillor M. Fidler Jones in relation to Agenda Item 7 – 
Internal Audit Performance. “I am a Governor of Hawthorn Primary 
School”. 

 County Borough Councillor J. Elliott in relation to Agenda Item 7 - Internal 
Audit Performance. “I am a Governor of Cwmbach Primary School”. 

 The Chair, Mr R. Hull in relation to Agenda Item 4 – Council’s Insurance 
Function - “The Insurance Manager, Mr A. Gough is my son in law”. 

 

Tudalen 3

Agendwm 2



 

 
23   Minutes  

 
 

 It was RESOLVED to approve the minutes of the 17th September, 2018 as an 
accurate reflection of the meeting. 
 

 

24   Matters Arising  
 

 

 Minute No. 16 – In relation to training received by members of staff within 
schools, the Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Delivery Programme 
confirmed that in the event of high priority recommendations being raised in 
future Internal Audit reports, as part of the fieldwork, Auditors have been asked 
to establish what training has been provided to the relevant staff. This will be 
reported within the relevant section of each report in the future. 
 
Minute No. 19 – Finalised Audit Assignments – At the previous meeting, 
Members requested further information in respect of the 6th Form provision at 
Cardinal Newman Roman Catholic Comprehensive School. The Head of Internal 
Audit & Procurement Delivery Programme confirmed that in 2012 the School 
began working in partnership whereby its 6th form were taught at the nearby 
College and throughout this time the children remained the responsibility of the 
School. During the academic year 2016/17, the School decided to withdraw from 
the arrangement which resulted in year 12 students being taught at the School 
with effect from September 2017. At this time, year 13 students remained at the 
College to complete their studies. 
 

 

25   Appointment of Vice Chair 
 

 

 In accordance with Minute No. 73 (Council, 24th October, 2018) where it was 
resolved that the appointment of the Vice-Chair of the Council’s Audit Committee 
for the Municipal year 2018/2019 be presented back to the Audit Committee, the 
Director, Legal & Democratic Services sought nominations for this position. 
 

Following a vote, it was RESOLVED that County Borough Councillor K. Jones 
be elected as Vice-Chair of the Audit Committee for the Municipal Year 2018/19. 
 

 

26   Council's Insurance Function  
 

 

 With the aide of a PowerPoint presentation, the Head of Internal Audit & 
Procurement Development Programme and the Insurance Manager provided the 
Audit Committee with information in respect of the role of the Audit Committee 
and how the Insurance Service fits in with the Council’s overall risk management 
arrangements. Members received information in respect of the main types of 
insurance policies, how claims are processed and the management of data. 
 
The Service Director, Performance and Improvement reminded Members of the 
Committee’s Terms of Reference and their remit to consider the robustness of 
internal control arrangements. The Service Director added that the purpose of 
such presentations was to broaden Members’ knowledge and understanding in 
order to assist them when discharging their responsibilities as Audit Committee 
Members. 
 
Members went on the raise a number of questions for officers.  
 
With regard to the Fidelity Guarantee Policy, one Member questioned which 

 

Tudalen 4



 

officers were covered against embezzlement. It was explained that the list 
contained Senior Officers who were of Grade 15 and above, and those officers 
who have specific control responsibilities within the Local Authority. 
 
Discussions ensued around claim hotspots with officers advising that none had 
been identified in the last two years. The officers went on to indicate that should 
hotspots / trends be identified as part of on-going monitoring arrangements, data 
would be shared with the relevant service area to determine what preventative 
action(s) could be taken.  
 
Members raised a number of queries in respect of the risk management of fraud 
cases, asking officers to expand on how cases are progressed and officers 
reinforced the Council’s zero tolerance approach to those that attempt to de-
fraud the Council. 
 
One Member questioned the impact that Brexit may have on insurance 
premiums. It was noted that although the effects of Brexit remain unclear, the 
Council were in a long term agreement for the next two years and as a result, it 
is expected that premiums would not be significantly affected. 
 
Another Member raised a question in respect of the Council’s responsibilities in 
relation to unmaintained rear lanes. It was explained that the Council does not 
have responsibility for all public lanes, but under case law, officers must take a 
risk based approach when determining which rear lanes pose the largest risk to 
public safety e.g. those with a higher footfall would be maintained initially.  
 
Following discussion, the Committee RESOLVED to approve the information 
provided in the report. 
 

27   Council's Treasury Management Function  
 

 

 With the aide of a PowerPoint presentation, the Head of Finance: Education & 
Reporting provided Members with information on the role of the Audit Committee 
in relation to Treasury Management. 
 
The Head of Finance also provided Members with an overview of the 
governance and control arrangements in place when the Council discharges its 
Treasury Management function.  
 
One Member referred the Committee to a recent news report on a website that 
made reference to welsh public finances being lost as a result of fraud. Officers 
fed back that they were not aware of the specific article in question but 
confirmed that they would review the detail and report back to the Committee.   
 
It was RESOLVED: 

1. To acknowledge the information received.  
2. That Officers report back in respect of the news article around public 

finances in Wales being lost to fraud.  
 
(Note: At this point in the proceedings, County Borough Councillor J. Elliott left 
the meeting). 
 

 

28   National Fraud Initiative  
 

 

 The Head of Pensions, Payroll & Payments presented the report of the Group  

Tudalen 5



 

Director, Corporate & Frontline Services in respect of the Anti-Fraud, Bribery & 
Corruption Progress Report for 2018/19.  

 
Members were referred to the table within the report which set out the total 
number of fraud referrals for 2018/19, the majority of which related to financial 
fraud against benefit/income support system. The Head of Pensions, Payroll & 
Payments indicated that these referrals were passported to the Department for 
Work and Pensions (Fraud and Error Service) who have responsibility for 
investigating this area. Upon reviewing Table 2 of the report where the 
Department for Work and Pensions referrals were outlined, Members noted that 
the quarter was dated ‘January – March 2018’ and the officer advised that this 
would be raised with the Department for Work and Pensions to ensure their 
reporting timescales are up to date with that of the Council’s. 
 
Referring to the Government’s phased roll-out of Universal Credit, Members 
raised concerns on the potential affect of fraudulent activity. The officer advised 
that due to a change in process with the joint links with the Department for Work 
and Pensions, it was anticipated that the initial difficulty would be around 
claimants making a claim rather than a fraudulent claim, and that officers would 
thoroughly monitor the situation as it develops. 
 
(Note: At this point in the proceedings, County Borough Councillor M. Fidler-
Jones left the meeting). 
  
Further to Members questions, the Revenues and Corporate Fraud Team 
Manager, with the aide of a PowerPoint presentation, provided Members with an 
overview of the National Fraud Initiative (NFI). He advised that the NFI was a 
data service which reviews and collates datasets from various public 
organisations and utilises unique matching fields to identify where one individual 
is linked to another (or more) datasets.  
 
During the discussions that followed this presentation, Officers reaffirmed 
Committee of the Council’s zero tolerance on all types of fraud, including 
attempted fraud and that legal action is always taken if possible. 
 
Following discussion and further questions from Committee, it was RESOLVED 
to:-  

1. Agree to receive updates in respect of the work of the Corporate Fraud 
Team at future meetings in accordance with the Terms of Reference and 
agreed workplans of the Audit Committee. 

 
 

(Note: At this point in the proceedings, County Borough Councillor R. Smith left 
the meeting). 
 

29   Internal Audit Performance  
 

 

 The Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development Programme presented 
the Internal Audit Performance for 2018/19 providing performance information in 
respect of the Internal Audit Service between 1st April 2018 and 26th October 
2018. 
 
It was reported that the Internal Audit Plan currently includes 79 individual audit 
assignments and, as at 26th October 2018, 44% of the Plan had been completed 
to report stage. 

 

Tudalen 6



 

 
The officer explained that Appendix 2 of the report provides a summary of the 
status of all recommendations made by the Internal Audit Service, grouped 
under the relevant service of the Council. The Committee was informed that 
there were no overdue / outstanding recommendations to report. 
 
Following consideration of the report, it was RESOLVED to approve the 
information provided. 
 

30   Finalised Internal Audit Assignments  
 

 

 The Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development Programme introduced 
the report of the Group Director, Corporate & Frontline Services in respect of the 
audit assignments completed between 5th September 2018 and 26th October 
2018:-  

 Caegarw Primary School; 

 Cwmdar Primary School; 

 Gelli Primary School; 

 Hirwaun Primary School; 

 Treorchy Comprehensive School; and 

 Y Pant Comprehensive School - Follow Up.  
    
Discussions ensued around the follow-up review of Y Pant Comprehensive 
School with Members expressing concerns in respect of the number of high 
priority recommendations and the unsatisfactory progress evidenced within the 
report. Members acknowledged that a new finance team had been put in place 
since the initial audit was undertaken, but stressed the need for the School and 
its Governing Body to be made aware of the serious repercussions of not taking 
positive steps to improve the areas summarised within the audit assignment. 

 
Following consideration of the outcomes of the assignments it was 
RESOLVED:-  

1. To receive and acknowledge the information contained within the report. 
2. That the Audit Committee send a letter to the Headteacher and 

Governing Body of Y Pant Comprehensive School and advise the 
Cabinet Member for Education & Lifelong Learning and the Director, 
Education & Inclusion Services of the lack of improvement evidenced 
within the follow up audit assignment. 

3. That a full audit be undertaken at the school in six months and the 
findings reported back to the Audit Committee for consideration and if 
deemed required, further action.  
 

 

31   Urgent Business  
 

 

 The Service Director, Performance & Improvement took the opportunity to 
advise the Audit Committee that a Regional Internal Audit Shared Service 
appointment panel had been established for the recruitment of the Head of 
Internal Audit and that interviews would take place on 16th November 2018. The 
Service Director also advised that the panel would include the Council’s Group 
Director, Corporate & Frontline Services and Chairperson of Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Council’s Audit Committee.  
 
The Service Director, Performance & Improvement went on to indicate that as 
progress is made toward implementing the Regional Service, further updates 

 

Tudalen 7



 

would be reported to Audit Committee.  
 
 

 
 

This meeting closed at 7.10 pm R Hull 
Chairman. 

 

Tudalen 8



 

Page 1 of 3 - Annual Audit Letter – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 2017-18 

24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan 
Cardiff / Caerdydd 

CF11 9LJ 
Tel / Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 
Textphone / Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

info@audit.wales / post@archwilio.cymru 
www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru 

Please contact us in Welsh or English.  
Cysylltwch â ni’n Gymraeg neu’n Saesneg. 

Councillor Andrew Morgan 
The Leader 
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 
The Pavilions 
Cambrian Park 
Clydach Vale 
Mid Glamorgan 
CF40 2XX 

Reference: 980A2018-19 
Date issued: 10 December 2018 

Dear Cllr Morgan  

Annual Audit Letter – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 
2017-18 
This letter summarises the key messages arising from my statutory responsibilities under the 
Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and my reporting responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice. 

The Council complied with its responsibilities relating to financial reporting and use 
of resources  
It is the Council’s responsibility to: 
• put systems of internal control in place to ensure the regularity and lawfulness of 

transactions and to ensure that its assets are secure;  
• maintain proper accounting records; 
• prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance with relevant requirements; and 
• establish and keep under review appropriate arrangements to secure economy,  

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires me to: 
• provide an audit opinion on the accounting statements; 

Tudalen 9

Agendwm 4

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


Page 2 of 3 - Annual Audit Letter – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 2017-18 

• review the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources; and 

• issue a certificate confirming that I have completed the audit of the accounts. 
Local authorities in Wales prepare their accounting statements in accordance with the 
requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom. This code is based on International Financial Reporting Standards. On 25 September 
2018 I issued an unqualified audit opinion on the accounting statements confirming that they 
present a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position and transactions. My report is 
contained within the Statement of Accounts.  
I issued a certificate confirming that the audit of the accounts has been completed on 
25 September 2018. 
The key matters arising from the accounts audit were reported to Full Council on 19 September 
2018. I reported that the Council had delivered the draft financial statements two months earlier 
than the statutory deadline of 30 June and that the audit was completed by the statutory deadline 
of 30 September. We reported that the Council is well placed to meet the upcoming early closing 
deadlines, and that we are working with officers to take forward this process to ensure that 
statutory changes to deadlines will be met. 

I am satisfied that the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources but there remains 
scope for the Council to make further improvements 
My consideration of the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
has been based on the audit work undertaken on the accounts, as well as placing reliance on the 
work completed under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009. Given the wide range of 
services provided by the Council and the challenges it is facing, it would be unusual if we did not 
find things that can be improved. The Auditor General did not make any formal recommendations 
for 2017-18. However, we did make a number of proposals for improvement which were reported 
to Council in September 2018 in our Annual Improvement Report 2017-18. 

Local authorities in Wales face significant financial challenges  
Austerity funding remains the most significant challenge facing all local government bodies in 
Wales and financial pressures are likely to continue for the medium term.  
In 2017-18 the Council set and operated within its revenue budget of £459 million, delivering a 
surplus of £0.386 million, which members agreed to allocate to a reserve earmarked for winter 
maintenance. 
As at 31 March 2018, the Council had useable revenue reserves of £74.9 million (an increase of 
approximately £1 million). This reflected a Council Fund balance of £10.7 million and other useable 
revenue reserves of £64.2 million.  
For 2018-19, the Council set a budget of £471.6 million. It received a 0.5% increase in the Welsh 
Government Revenue Settlement and increased Council tax by 3.3%. As at 30 September 2018, 
the Council is reporting a projected out-turn of £1.3 million overspend. This does not take into 
account the one-off funding from Welsh Government to support sustainable social services for 
local government in Wales.     

Tudalen 10



Page 3 of 3 - Annual Audit Letter – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 2017-18 

Financial challenges remain over the coming years and the Council’s latest Medium Term 
Financial Strategy Plan for 2018-19 to 2021-22 identifies a budget ‘gap’ of £36.2 million over the 
three years 2019-20 to 2021-22 (£9.9 million 2019-20, £13.5 million 2020-21, and £12.8 million 
2021-22). This still represents a significant challenge for the Council and we will continue to work 
with it as it progresses its financial position over the next 12 months. 

My work to date on certification of grant claims and returns has not identified 
significant issues that would impact on the accounts or key financial systems 
I have begun my audit of the 2017-18 grants. There was a key change this year as a number of 
previous grants were amalgamated into one Summary Return. I will report the outcomes of our 
grants work in early 2019 when the programme of certification work is complete. Based on the 
grants work to date I have not identified any significant issues that would impact on the accounts or 
key financial systems.  
The financial audit fee for 2017-18 is currently expected to be in line with the agreed fee set out in 
the Annual Audit Plan. 
Yours sincerely 

 
Richard Harries 
For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales 
cc Christopher Bradshaw, Chief Executive 

Christopher Lee, Group Director Corporate & Frontline Services and Deputy Chief Executive 
 

Tudalen 11



 

Management Letter for 2017-18 – 
Rhondda Cynon Taf County 
Borough Council 
Date issued: December 2018 

Document reference: 977A2018-19 

 

Tudalen 12



 

 

This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention  
is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public 
authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor 

General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding 
disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at 

infoofficer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

 
 

Tudalen 13

mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales


Contents 

Page 3 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

This document summarises the conclusions on the audit of Rhondda Cynon Taf County 
Borough Council’s 2017-18 financial statements. 
Appendix 1 contains recommendations to Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council’s 
management.  
Appendix 2 contains the corrections that were made to the draft financial statements as 
part of the audit process.  
 

Summary report  

Introduction 4 

The Auditor General issued an unqualified opinion on the 2017-18 financial  
statements of Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 4 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Recommendations from our 2017-18 audit work 7 

Appendix 2 – Summary of corrections made to the draft financial statements  
which should be drawn to the attention of Full Council 13 

 

Tudalen 14



Summary report 

Page 4 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Introduction 
1 The financial statements are an essential means by which Rhondda Cynon Taf 

County Borough Council (the Council) accounts for its stewardship of the 
resources at its disposal and its financial performance in the use of those 
resources. The Auditor General’s Code of Audit Practice identifies that it is the 
responsibility of the audited body to: 
• put in place systems of internal control to ensure the regularity and 

lawfulness of transactions;  
• maintain proper accounting records; and 
• prepare financial statements in accordance with relevant requirements. 

2 As auditors, we are required to audit the financial statements and to issue an 
auditor’s report which includes an opinion on whether the financial statements give 
a ‘true and fair’ view of the state of affairs of the Council. The auditor’s report also 
gives our opinion on whether the financial statements have been prepared properly 
in accordance with relevant legislation, directions or regulations, and applicable 
accounting standards.  

3 The Auditor General also reports by exception if: 
• the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with 

guidance; 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept; 
• financial statements are not in agreement with accounting records and 

returns; and 
• all the information and explanations required for audit have not been 

received. 

The Auditor General issued an unqualified 
opinion on the 2017-18 financial statements of 
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council  
4 On 25 September 2018, the Auditor General issued an unqualified auditor’s report 

on the financial statements.  
5 We received the draft financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 on 

31 May 2018 in line with the agreed deadline. The draft financial statements were 
of a good quality. Audit amendments to the draft financial statements are listed in 
Appendix 2 to this report.  

6 In undertaking our audit of the financial statements, we review the Council’s 
financial systems used to produce the financial statements. This involves obtaining 
an understanding of its key financial systems and controls and, where necessary, 
testing the operation of those controls. 

Tudalen 15



 

Page 5 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

7 We concluded that the Council’s key financial systems can be relied upon to 
produce materially correct outputs.  

8 We have already reported the more significant issues to those charged with 
governance in our Audit of the Financial Statements presentation at Full Council 
on 19 September 2018. A summary of the findings is set out in Exhibit 1. This 
report sets out our detailed recommendations in Appendix 1 relating to those 
issues and other less significant issues identified from our audit.  

Exhibit 1: Audit of Financial Statements Report to those charged with governance 

Reporting requirement Audit findings 
Uncorrected misstatements There was an uncorrected misstatement. The 

misstatement relates to joint committees and 
was reported to Full Council on 19 September 
2018.  
As part of our audit planning, finance staff 
discussed with us their continued intention not to 
consolidate all their joint committee figures into 
RCT CBC’s accounts. They did so on the basis 
that none of the joint committees’ figures would 
be material individually or collectively. We 
confirmed that was the case and, consequently, 
had no impact upon our audit opinion. 
The joint committees that were not consolidated 
on the ground of materiality were Glamorgan 
Archives; Vale, Valleys and Cardiff Regional 
Adoption Collaborative; Coychurch Crematorium 
and Llwydcoed Crematorium.  
The total Net Cost of Services for these 
committees was £1.3 million, and Net Assets of 
£4.5 million. 

Corrected misstatements The corrected misstatement reported to Full 
Council was in relation to the fixed asset register 
not always being updated correctly following 
reports from the Valuer. The impact of this was 
that the Cost of Service and Revaluation 
Reserve were both overstated by £7.5 million in 
2017-18, which were adjusted. There was also 
an historic impact which required a transfer 
between two capital reserves of £13 million, from 
the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital 
Adjustment Account. This was also adjusted. 
Both these adjustments are technical accounting 
entries and had no impact upon the reported 
surplus or deficit for the year or in any Usable 
Reserves of the Council. 
A number of other misstatements were corrected 
by management. See Appendix 2 for details.  

Tudalen 16



 

Page 6 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Reporting requirement Audit findings 
Early closing requirements  For 2017-18 the Council prepared draft financial 

statements by 31 May 2018, already meeting the 
2020/21 deadline. Finance staff made great 
progress in producing these, without sacrificing 
their quality.  
There is further work to do though to meet the 
audit deadlines and we will continue to work with 
the Council to discuss areas which we can audit 
prior to 31 May.  
Some of the misstatements that we identified as 
part of the audit could, in our view, have been 
picked up by the Council if it had a more robust 
Quality Assurance process. 
The Council also needs to consider its 
governance arrangements around the accounts 
process, to ensure the meeting dates of those 
charged with governance (currently Full Council) 
allow the deadlines to be met. 
The deadlines for the forthcoming years are: 
• Financial statements signed by the 

responsible finance officer (Section 151 
Officer):  
‒ 2018-19 15 June 2019;  
‒ 2019-20 15 June 2020; and 
‒ 2020-21 and thereafter 31 May 2021. 

• Financial statements approved by the Council 
and published (with the signed audit 
certificate or an explanation for its absence):  
‒ 2018-19 15 September 2019;  
‒ 2019-20 15 September 2020; and 
‒ 2020-21 and thereafter 31 July 2021. 

 

Tudalen 17



Appendix 1 

Page 7 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Recommendations from our 2017-18 audit work 
We set out all the recommendations arising from our audit with management’s response 
to them. We will follow up these next year and include any outstanding issues in next 
year’s audit report: 

Exhibit 2: Matter arising 1 

Matter arising 1 – improvements are required in relation to the accounting and 
recording of Infrastructure assets  
Findings We identified the following issues in relation to 

Infrastructure assets: 
• Infrastructure is not recorded on an individual asset 

basis. Therefore, the gross book value recorded will 
always increase as disposals and impairments are not 
recorded.   

• Infrastructure is not recorded on a fixed asset register. 
Records are maintained to calculate depreciation only. 
Note also that Infrastructure depreciation is calculated 
on a manual spreadsheet and not on the Council’s 
fixed asset system Technology Forge. 

• There is a difference of £9,386,000 between the gross 
book value recorded on the infrastructure depreciation 
records and the gross book assets in the financial 
statements. The net book values are the same.   

Priority Medium 
Recommendation Infrastructure accounting and recording should be 

reviewed to address the above issues identified. 
Consideration should be given to maintaining one fixed 
asset register for all assets held.  

Benefits of implementing 
the recommendation 

The following benefits will be realised: 
• when an asset is derecognised, the asset can be 

removed from the records, as assets are individually 
identified; 

• depreciation will be appropriately calculated on an 
individual asset basis; and  

• accounting records will support the financial statement 
entries. 

Accepted in full by 
management 

Agree that the accounting and recording of infrastructure 
assets needs to be improved . 

Tudalen 18



 

Page 8 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Matter arising 1 – improvements are required in relation to the accounting and 
recording of Infrastructure assets  
Management response Agree that improvements are required in relation to the 

accounting and recording of infrastructure assets.  
The long-term aim is to transfer the accounting records 
from spreadsheets to the Asset Register - Technology 
Forge (TF). TF is currently being considered for an 
upgrade to a cloud model and migration from 
spreadsheets will take place following any upgrade. 

Implementation date May 2019 

Exhibit 3: Matter arising 2 

Matter arising 2 – a small number of assets were incorrectly processed as 
downward revaluations, rather than disposals 
Findings Two assets held on the asset register were identified by 

finance as no longer in existence. These were incorrectly 
processed as downward valuations rather than disposals.  
Further audit work was undertaken on this area, which 
highlighted assets with a gross book value of £1,298,000, 
which had been classified as downward revaluations, 
when they should have been classified as disposals.  

Priority Medium 
Recommendation Quality assurance processes should incorporate a check 

to review that, where assets are no longer in existence, 
they have been accounted for as disposals.  

Benefits of implementing 
the recommendation 

Technology Forge asset register balances will be 
correctly stated. This in turn will lead to the financial 
statements correctly reflecting the asset values.  

Accepted in full by 
management 

Agree 

Management response We will need to develop QA processes to ensure that 
assets with a Gross Book Value but a zero Net Book 
Value are still in existence. 

Implementation date May 2019 
  

Tudalen 19



 

Page 9 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Exhibit 4: Matter arising 3 

Matter arising 3 – improvements are required for related party disclosures and 
processes for Councillors and senior officers.  
Findings During the audit of the related party disclosures, we 

identified the following issues: 
• Four of the declarations for the Council Members on 

the Council website were out of date. The members 
had provided the up to date declarations, but the 
website had not been updated correctly.  

• The report run to capture the value of related party 
transactions was at a point in time and did not agree to 
the values in the financial systems for the full financial 
year.  

Priority High 

Recommendation • The Council’s written declaration of interest form 
should be the compulsory mechanism for recording 
personal interests, and should be returned promptly to 
the monitoring officer, ensuring that the full financial 
year is covered by the declaration made.  

• Quality assurance processes should be strengthened 
to ensure that declarations of interest held on the 
Council website for public scrutiny must be the up to 
date declarations.  

• The report used to determine the values of the 
transactions in the related party note should agree to 
the transactions within the financial statements.  

Benefits of implementing 
the recommendation 

Disclosures will stand up to public scrutiny.  

Accepted in full by 
management 

Agree 

Management response Processes have been revised and agreed with Cabinet 
Office. 
Both summary and detailed creditor reports will be run at 
the same time removing the risk of timing differences.  

Implementation date May 2019 

 

  

Tudalen 20



 

Page 10 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Exhibit 5: Matter arising 4 

Matter arising 4 – errors were identified in the Remuneration disclosures   
Findings We identified the following issues when auditing the 

senior officers remuneration note: 
• two senior officers participated in salary sacrifice 

schemes and these were not disclosed as benefits in 
kind; and 

• pension contributions for two senior officers were 
incorrectly disclosed as benefits in kind. 

The median and remuneration calculations were 
incorrectly calculated due to the following:  
• the median salary calculation did not include the 1% 

pay award at 1 April 2017; and 
• the remuneration ratio and median salary did not 

include all the elements of remuneration in the 
calculation that are required under the Accounts and 
Audit (Wales) 2014 Regulations, making the 
calculations incorrect. 

Priority High 
Recommendation Quality assurance review processes to be reviewed to 

introduce controls that would mitigate errors of this nature 
re-occurring.  

Benefits of implementing 
the recommendation 

Remuneration disclosures will be correct.  

Accepted in full by 
management 

Agree 

Management response Revised processes have been agreed with Payroll 
officers. 

Implementation date May 2019 

 

  

Tudalen 21



 

Page 11 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Exhibit 6: Matter arising 5 

Matter arising 5 – issues were identified in relation to debtors and creditors 
Findings The following were identified during our audit: 

• The categorisation of creditors in the creditors’ note 
was incorrect due to the joint committee consolidation 
adjustments being processed incorrectly. There was no 
impact on the creditors’ balance overall due to this 
issue.  

• The provision for bad debts was incorrectly calculated 
in two instances. Amounts were overstated by £91,122 
in total.  

• One creditor of £107,981 was included solely as a 
short-term creditor but should have been analysed 
between short-term and long-term creditors.  

• A cheque book school debtor of £103,489 was 
included in the debtors’ balance but should have been 
negated during the accounts compilation against the 
corresponding creditor as it is an intra-entity amount.  

• There was an unsupported balance £31,586 included 
within debtors which should be investigated and 
removed if no longer collectable. 

Priority Medium 
Recommendation Quality assurance review processes to be reviewed to 

introduce controls that would mitigate errors of this nature 
re-occurring. 

Benefits of implementing 
the recommendation 

Debtors and creditor balances, including classification of 
balances will be correct. 

Accepted in full by 
management 

Agree 

Management response 
 

Implementation date May 2019 

Exhibit 7: Matter arising 6  

Matter arising 6 - inconsistences were identified between the financial statement 
disclosures and the Council responses on the CIPFA disclosure checklist 
Findings Review of the CIPFA disclosure checklist, completed by 

the Council, identified inconsistencies between the 
checklist responses and the disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

Priority Low 
Recommendation Quality assurance review processes to be reviewed to 

introduce controls that would mitigate errors of this nature 
re-occurring. 

Tudalen 22



 

Page 12 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Matter arising 6 - inconsistences were identified between the financial statement 
disclosures and the Council responses on the CIPFA disclosure checklist 
Benefits of implementing 
the recommendation 

 

Accepted in full by 
management 

Agree 

Management response  
Implementation date  

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 23



Appendix 2 

Page 13 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Summary of corrections made to the draft 
financial statements which should be drawn to 
the attention of Full Council 

Exhibit 8: Summary of corrections made to the draft financial statements 

Value of correction Nature of correction Reason for correction 
£20,506,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
£7,493,000 

Increase in revaluation 
reserve and decrease in 
capital adjustment account. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Net cost of services was 
reduced and the Surplus or 
deficit on Revaluation of 
Non-Current Assets was 
decreased.  
 

The way in which some 
revaluations had been 
processed through the 
Technology Forge fixed-
asset system, meant that 
the net book values of the 
assets were correct, but the 
balances reflected in the 
historic cost and 
accumulated depreciation 
section of the fixed asset 
note are incorrectly stated, 
and the relevant capital 
reserves are incorrectly 
stated also.  
There are current year 
adjustments and 
adjustments in respect of 
prior years required. The 
current year element is 
£7,493,000 and the prior 
year element is 
£13,013,000.  

£5,701,000 Education Expenditure 
increased, and Holiday Pay 
Accrual increased. 

Holiday Pay accrual was 
understated, as the 
calculation had been done 
incorrectly.  

£5,602,000 Debtors and Creditors were 
both reduced.  

The debtors and creditors 
were both overstated, as 
the debtor between the 
council and education 
consortium had not been 
accounted for in 
accordance with the 
requirements of the CIPFA 
Code of Practice. 

Tudalen 24



 

Page 14 of 16 - Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Value of correction Nature of correction Reason for correction 
£960,000 Net Cost of Service 

Expenditure decreased and 
the liability for Pensions 
was decreased. 

A payment made in respect 
of pension strain payable 
had been omitted from the 
pension liability 
calculations. Therefore, the 
liability was over stated 

£195,000 A long-term liability was re-
categorised as a short-term 
creditor. 

Incorrect classification of 
the liability in the balance 
sheet. 

£3,833,000 
 
£3,800,000 
 
£17,000 
 
 
£46,000 
 
 
 

Net Cost of Service 
Expenditure decreased 
Capital Grants and 
Contributions reduced  
Assets under construction 
increased and short-term 
debtors decreased 
Short-term creditors 
increased with opposite 
entries to long-term 
creditors, earmarked 
reserves and Capital 
Adjustment Account 
decreased.  

£3,800,000 related to an 
error on the accounting for 
the consolidation of the City 
Deal joint arrangement. 
The remainder of the 
adjustment was in relation 
to a late amendment made 
to the City Deal financial 
statements by Cardiff 
Council that RCT have 
processed to ensure that 
the RCT financial 
statements reflected the 
year-end position for the 
City Deal.  

 
 

Tudalen 25



Tudalen 26



 

 

Wales Audit Office 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 
Fax: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone.: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 
Website: www.audit.wales 

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 
24 Heol y Gadeirlan 
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ 

Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru 
Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru 

 

Tudalen 27

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


Tudalen wag



 
 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19 
 
 
 

 Item No. 5 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 
 
17th December 2018 

Wales Audit Office Annual 
Improvement Report 2017/18  

 
 
REPORT OF:-  

THE GROUP DIRECTOR – CORPORATE AND FRONTLINE SERVICES  

Author: Paul Griffiths  

 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
To consider the Wales Audit Office ‘Annual Improvement Report 2017/18’ 
presented to Council on 19th September 2018.  

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 It is recommended that Members: 
 

2.1 
 

Review the adequacy of the steps taken by the Council to monitor the 
implementation of ‘proposals for improvement’ made within the Wales Audit 
Office ‘Annual Improvement Report 2017/18’;   
 

2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 

Determine whether there are any matters of a governance, internal control or 
risk management nature that require further action or attention by Audit 
Committee; and  
 
Determine whether there are any matters of a performance nature that 
require review by the Council’s scrutiny committees.  

  
  

3.  ARRANGEMENTS FOR MONITORING WALES AUDIT OFFICE 
‘PROPOSALS FOR IMPROVEMENT’  
 

3.1  The Council recognises the important role the Wales Audit Office plays in 
supporting on-going improvement to governance and service delivery, and it 
uses the oversight of Audit Committee and Scrutiny Committees to oversee 
the arrangements and the monitoring of progress.  

  
 

Tudalen 29

Agendwm 5



 
 

 

Audit Committee 
 
3.2  The Terms of Reference of the Council’s Audit Committee include the 

following responsibility in relation to reports from the Council’s External 
Auditor (for the purposes of this report the External Auditor being the Wales 
Audit Office) – ‘To receive and consider reports of the External Auditor in 
relation to the accounts, matters of financial probity and corporate governance 
and providing the opportunity for direct discussion with the auditor(s) on 
these.’ 

 
3.3  To discharge the above requirements, the Council’s Audit Committee has 

responsibility for:  
 

 Providing independent assurance that there are adequate controls in 
place to mitigate key risks; and  

 

 Determining whether there are any matters of a governance, internal 
control or risk management nature that require further action or attention. 

 

3.4  As part of discharging its Terms of Reference, Audit Committee should also 
take account of the conclusions and findings from each Wales Audit Office 
report when forming an opinion on the adequacy of internal control / 
governance arrangements in place.  

 
3.5  In addition to the above, where Audit Committee considers there are 

performance related matters that require further review, it is able to refer these 
to the designated Scrutiny Committee for review. 

 
Scrutiny Committees  

 
3.6 Members will note that the Council’s scrutiny function has a different, albeit, 

linked role in overseeing reports issued by the Wales Audit Office i.e. to 
review and challenge the progress the Council is making toward implementing 
agreed actions.  

 
3.7  Similar to the information set out above for the Audit Committee, where a 

Scrutiny Committee determines there are matters of a ‘governance’, ‘internal 
control’ or ‘risk management’ nature that require further review, it is able to 
refer these to Audit Committee for consideration. 

 
4. WALES AUDIT OFFICE – ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT REPORT 2017/18 

 
4.1 At the meeting of Council held on the 19th September 2018 Members 

received the Wales Audit Office Annual Improvement Report 2017/18 (AIR). 
The AIR contained proposals for improvement / recommendations from 
published reports that were specific to Rhondda Cynon Taf and also national 
reports that relate to both local authorities more generally and Welsh 
Government. Table 1 provides a list of the published reports covered by the 
AIR together with electronic links to full copies of each report.  

   

Tudalen 30

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/09/19/Reports/AgendaItem7AnnualImprovementPlan.pdf


 
 

 

 
Table 1 – Published reports covered by the AIR  
 

Type of Report Report Title Proposals For Improvement 
Reported 

 
 
 
RCT Specific 
Reports (audit, 
regulatory and 
inspection work 
reported during 
2017-18) 

Aligning the levers of 
change 
 

No 

Scrutiny: Fit for the future? 
Review1 

Yes  

Annual Audit Letter 2016-
17  
contained in WAO Annual 
Improvement Report to 
Council 21 June  

No 
 

Wales Audit Office - annual 
improvement plan audit 

No 

Wales Audit Office – 
annual assessment of 
performance 
 

No 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
National report 
recommendations 
2017-18 

Savings Planning in 
Councils in Wales  
 

No 
Specific proposals for improvement 
were included in a local report to the 
Council. This was reported to 
Council (21/6/17), O&S Committee 
(13/9/17) and Audit Committee 
16/10/17) 

Public Procurement in 
Wales  

Yes 

Good governance when 
determining significant 
service changes – national 
summary  

No 
Specific proposals for improvement 
were included in a local report to the 
Council. This was reported to 
Cabinet (9/3/17) and Audit 
Committee (20/3/17) 

Local government Financial 
Reporting 2016/17 

No 

How Local Government 
managed demand - 
homelessness 

 

Yes 

Housing Adaptations 

 

Yes 

                                                           
1
 Scrutiny: Fit for the future? Review – this report was also a specific agenda item on the 22

nd
 October 

2018 Overview and Scrutiny meeting in view of the coordinatory role this Committee has in 
overseeing the Council’s scrutiny function  

Tudalen 31

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/rhondda_cynon_taf_council_overview_scrutiny_english.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/rhondda_cynon_taf_council_overview_scrutiny_english.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Council21Jun2017.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Council21Jun2017.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Council21Jun2017.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/WFGSupportInfo/RCTCBCImprovementPlanCertificate1718Eng.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/WFGSupportInfo/RCTCBCImprovementPlanCertificate1718Eng.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Reports/AgendaItem7WalesAuditOfficeReports.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Reports/AgendaItem7WalesAuditOfficeReports.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/publication/savings-planning-councils-wales
http://www.audit.wales/publication/savings-planning-councils-wales
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Reports/AgendaItem7WalesAuditOfficeReports.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/OverviewandScrutinyCommittee/2017/09/13/Reports/AgendaItem4WAOReportscoveringreportappendices.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/AuditCommittee/2017/10/16/Reports/Agendaitem4ReportsoftheWalesAuditOffice.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Public-Procurement-in-Wales-2017-English_0.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Public-Procurement-in-Wales-2017-English_0.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Good-Governance-2017-Eng_0.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Good-Governance-2017-Eng_0.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Good-Governance-2017-Eng_0.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Good-Governance-2017-Eng_0.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/publication/local-government-financial-reporting-201617
http://www.audit.wales/publication/local-government-financial-reporting-201617
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/local-government-homelessness-2017-english.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/local-government-homelessness-2017-english.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/local-government-homelessness-2017-english.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

Type of Report Report Title Proposals For Improvement 
Reported 

Speak my language: 
Overcoming language and 
communication barriers in 
public services  

Yes 

 
4.2  A position statement of progress by Council Services to implement the 

proposals for improvement / recommendations made by the Wales Audit 
Officer, where applicable to Rhondda Cynon Taf, is set out in Appendix 1. For 
Members information, this up date was also reported to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 22nd October 2018.  

  
4.3 In line with Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference, the Committee is 

requested to:  
 

 Review the adequacy of the steps taken by the Council to monitor the 
implementation of ‘proposals for improvement’ made within the Wales 
Audit Office reports; 

 

 Determine whether there are any matters of a governance, internal control 
or risk management nature that require further action or attention; and 

 

 Determine whether there are any matters of a performance nature that 
require review by the Council’s scrutiny committees. 

 
5.  CONCLUSIONS  
 
5.1  Wales Audit Office reports play an important role in supporting on-going 

improvement to the Council’s governance and service delivery arrangements, 
and as part of this process the Council utilises its Audit Committee and 
Scrutiny Committee function to oversee the arrangements and the monitoring 
of progress.  

 
5.2  In line with Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference, the Committee has 

responsibility for forming an opinion on the adequacy of the arrangements for 
monitoring ‘proposals for improvement’ reported by the Wales Audit Office 
and also determining whether there are any matters of a governance, internal 
control or risk management nature that require further action or attention.  

 
5.3 Lastly, where Audit Committee considers there to be performance related 

matters that require further review, it is able to refer these to the designated 
Scrutiny Committee for review. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 32

file:///C:/Users/lawsola/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/HVZKY01X/Speak%20my%20language:%20Overcoming%20language%20and%20communication%20barriers%20in%20public%20services
file:///C:/Users/lawsola/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/HVZKY01X/Speak%20my%20language:%20Overcoming%20language%20and%20communication%20barriers%20in%20public%20services
file:///C:/Users/lawsola/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/HVZKY01X/Speak%20my%20language:%20Overcoming%20language%20and%20communication%20barriers%20in%20public%20services
file:///C:/Users/lawsola/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/HVZKY01X/Speak%20my%20language:%20Overcoming%20language%20and%20communication%20barriers%20in%20public%20services
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/OverviewandScrutinyCommittee/2018/10/22/Reports/AgendaItem3AIR1718ReccstoOS221018.pdf


 
 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972  
 

as amended by  
 

THE ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT, 1985  
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL  
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

17th DECEMBER 2018  
 

 
Report of the Group Director – Corporate and Frontline Services  

Author: Paul Griffiths  
 
Item            
 
5. Wales Audit Office Annual Improvement Report 2017/18  

 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: 
Paul Griffiths 
(01443 680609) 

 

  
  
  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 33



 
 

 

Appendix 1  
Wales Audit Office - Annual Improvement Report 2017-18 

Local and National Reports – Recommendations/Proposals for improvement  
Progress Update 

Local Reports  

April 2018 - Aligning the Levers of Change –   

The reference to Aligning the Levers of Change in the AIR arose from a Pilot Project undertaken by the WAO with the Council in the use of a 
software ‘Sense Maker’ to assess attitudes to Risk.  The work comprised a workshop with senior staff and Members.  There was no formal WAO 
report issued and consequently no proposals for improvement.  This work has helped to inform an Academi Wales report Taking Risks – how to 
make it safe to fail.   

 

July 18 – Scrutiny Fit for the Future –The report contained five proposals for improvement. 

Proposals for improvement 
The Council should 

Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

WA
O 
FFF 
1 

Review whether specific training 
could better prepare overview and 
scrutiny members to respond to 
current and future challenges.  
This could include training on 
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 
and Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

AGREED The training needs of Members have 
been reviewed through a Personal Development 
Review process as part of the Council’s ongoing 
commitment to Member development.   
 
Training needs in respect of Well-being of Future 
Generations Act and the Cardiff Regional City 
Deal, among other things have already been 
identified as part of this process. 
 
Well-being of Future Generations Act- Following 
initial training in respect of Well-being of Future 
Generations Act at Member induction, a Scrutiny 
Working Group has been established to develop 
RCT scrutiny arrangements that can be 
incorporated into existing processes.  This will 
include consideration of a draft Scrutiny 
Framework which is being developed by the office 

A new approach to providing training 
that will strengthen arrangements for 
Member development will be 
presented to Democratic Services 
Committee for consideration on 
25.10.18.  
 
 
 
 
 
Working Group meetings have 
scheduled between October and 
January.   
 
 
 
 

Arrangeme
nts to be 
put in place 
by the start 
of the new 
municipal 
year  
 
 
 
 
Oct-18 and 
Jan-19 
 
 
 
 
 

Christian 
Hanagan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Christian 
Hanagan 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 34

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/09/19/Reports/AgendaItem7AnnualImprovementPlan.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/academi-live-storage/7e/42/48/05/f98046e79f1bdc97245c21eb/32629Sowingseeds-Risk_Finaleng_WEB.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/academi-live-storage/7e/42/48/05/f98046e79f1bdc97245c21eb/32629Sowingseeds-Risk_Finaleng_WEB.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/rhondda_cynon_taf_council_overview_scrutiny_english.pdf


 
 

 

July 18 – Scrutiny Fit for the Future –The report contained five proposals for improvement. 

Proposals for improvement 
The Council should 

Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

of the Future Generations Commissioner. 
It is anticipated that Members of the Working 
Group will act as WFG ‘Champions’ within their 
respective Committees to support any changes to 
the scrutiny arrangements arising from the findings 
of the working group. 
 
Cardiff City Region City Deal- scrutiny 
arrangements have been established, with 
Bridgend Council taking forward the lead.  We are 
working closely with colleagues in Bridgend to 
ensure that Members of the Board representing 
the council are provided with sufficient training and 
support to allow them to undertake their scrutiny 
role in this area. 
 
The Council is responsive to Members requests 
for training and changing legislation, with 
forthcoming training to be provided in respect of 
GDPR, which we will share with our Community 
and Town Council colleagues to ensure all elected 
representatives for RCT are supported. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CCRCD Training is being discussed 
at the first meeting of the City Deal 
Joint Scrutiny which is taking place 
on the 15.10.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Subject to the agreement of 
Democratic Services Committee 
GDPR training to take place prior to 
full Council on the 28.11.18 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Following 
the Joint 
Scrutiny 
Committee
s first 
meeting in 
October 
 
 
 
Nov-18 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Christian 
Hanagan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Christian 
Hanagan 
 
 
 

WA
O 
FFF 
2 
 

Review the level and type of 
scrutiny support required to 
enable the scrutiny function to 
respond to current and future 
challenges 

AGREED The Council is constantly reviewing 
capacity and support arrangements.  Most 
recently at the Democratic Services Committee in 
July, 2018 it was agreed that Christian Hanagan 
be designated the interim Head of Democratic 
Services (HODS) following the retirement of Karyl 
May.  The Committee further agreed to  
 

 
 
Further detail that will  

 enhance officer support 
available to non-executive 
members 

 provide assistance for members 
to better prepare for scrutiny and 

 
 
Democrati
c Services 
Committe
e -25 Oct 
18 
 

 
 
Christian 
Hanagan 

T
udalen 35

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/rhondda_cynon_taf_council_overview_scrutiny_english.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/DemocraticServicesCommittee/2018/07/23/Reports/DesignationofHeadofDemocraticServicesv4.pdf


 
 

 

July 18 – Scrutiny Fit for the Future –The report contained five proposals for improvement. 

Proposals for improvement 
The Council should 

Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

 create a Council Business Unit that will 
support the Executive and Non-Executive 
Members;  

 make the Member support functions more 
resilient; and  

 reinvest any efficiency savings arising to 
increase the capacity of the Business Unit to 
support the Scrutiny Committees in 
undertaking their duties.  

 

 Strengthen research support for 
members  

 improved support for the 
Council’s scrutiny functions,  

will be included in the statutory 
‘Sufficiency of Resources’ report 
which will be presented to the 
Democratic Services Committee on 
25 October 2018. 

WA
O 
FFF 
3 
 

Ensure that members have the 
opportunity to adequately prepare 
for scrutiny activity by having 
access to information in advance 
of scrutiny committee meetings. 

AGREED - Through the new Council Business 
Unit, the Council will ensure that Members have 
sufficient access to information and Officer reports 
in the specified time-lines as set out in the 
Council’s constitution.  Also, that any 
presentations from Officers supplement Officer 
reports and recommendations, where appropriate, 
and are not stand alone items. This will be 
strengthened by the Head of Democratic Services 
now being part of the Senior Leadership Team. 
 
The recent development of the Cabinet/Scrutiny 
Engagement sessions with Scrutiny Chairs and 
Cabinet portfolio holders will continue to enhance 
this approach, with timely discussions of forward 
work programmes and opportunities for Scrutiny 
committees. 
Greater transparency of the detailed Cabinet work 
programme will also assist Scrutiny Members to 
establish items for pre-scrutiny and associated 
timelines. 

See above Following 
the 
Democrati
c Services 
Committe
e Oct-18 

Christian 
Hanagan 

T
udalen 36

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/rhondda_cynon_taf_council_overview_scrutiny_english.pdf


 
 

 

July 18 – Scrutiny Fit for the Future –The report contained five proposals for improvement. 

Proposals for improvement 
The Council should 

Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

WA
O 
FFF 
4  
 

a) Strengthen committee 
ownership of forward work 
programmes and committee 
agendas; and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
b) Clarify and promote 

arrangements for adding 
items to forward work 
programmes for members and 
the public. 

 

AGREED - The Council continues to strengthen 
ownership of forward work programmes and 
committee agendas.  Steps include  

 Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s (O&S) 
consideration of the quarterly Cabinet work 
programme.  This enables O&S to refer 
matters to other Scrutiny Committees to 
help them plan their work programmes 

 Regular meetings between Scrutiny Chairs 
with associated Cabinet Members and 
Group Directors.  These meetings address 
the cabinet work programme, policy 
developments and scrutiny priorities and 
have strengthened Members’ overall 
understanding of the Council’s business. 
 

At its meeting on 27 June the Council agreed a 
Council Work Programme which will help to make 
the business of the Council more transparent and 
although we know have more to do we’ve have 
started to make changes.  
 This includes:  

 meetings of Scrutiny Committees being 
held in locations within communities across 
RCT.  The aim of this is to encourage 
greater public engagement in the 
development of work programmes and 
attendance and involvement at Committee 
meetings.  However, it is too early to 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Review the effectiveness and impact 
of holding Scrutiny Committee 
meeting in locations across RCT.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May-19 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Christian 
Hanagan  
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 37

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/rhondda_cynon_taf_council_overview_scrutiny_english.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/06/27/Reports/CouncilWorkProgramme20182019ReportandAppendix.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/RelatedDocuments/workprgrammes/CouncilWorkProgramme20182019.pdf


 
 

 

July 18 – Scrutiny Fit for the Future –The report contained five proposals for improvement. 

Proposals for improvement 
The Council should 

Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

evaluate the extent to which this has been 
achieved. 

 dedicated pages for Scrutiny have been 
included on the Council’s Website.  These 
pages contain detailed information about 
the role of Scrutiny, projects that have 
been introduced as a result of Scrutiny 
intervention and a ‘Scrutiny Chairs’ Blog’ 
which currently contains contributions from 
two Scrutiny Chairs.  Implementation of 
additional pages ‘Engage with the 
Council’ which provide options by which 
residents can engage in the Council’s 
decision making processes, are imminent.  

 work to ensure the format of work 
programmes is fit for purpose and user 
friendly for both Members and residents. 

 arrangements to ensure that meetings of 
Chairs and Vice-chairs of Scrutiny receive 
regular updates on Council business being 
developed by the Senior Leadership Team 
and the Executive for consideration so that 
they can better reflect the priorities being 
discussed.  

 
 
Continue to develop dedicated 
Scrutiny pages.  
 
 
 
Ensure the implementation of the 
‘Engage with the Council’ Web 
pages.  
 
Continue work to introduce user 
friendly Scrutiny work programmes. 
 
Put in place arrangements to 
provide Chair and Vice meetings 
with more detailed information to 
inform their discussions about 
Council priorities. 

 
 
Ongoing  
 
 
 
 
Oct-18 
 
 
Ongoing  
 
 
By the 
Council 
AGM 2019 

 
 
Christian 
Hanagan 
 
 
 
Christian 
Hanagan 
 
Christian 
Hanagan  
 
Christian 
Hanagan 

WA
O 
FFF 
5 
 

Improve the arrangements in 
place to evaluate the impact of 
scrutiny. 
 

AGREED – Steps have already been taken to 
better evaluate the impact of Scrutiny, which has 
been reflected in the Annual Scrutiny Report 
2017/18.   
A number of policies have been developed by 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 38

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/rhondda_cynon_taf_council_overview_scrutiny_english.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Scrutiny/Scrutiny.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/05/23/Reports/AgendaItem14ScrutinyAnnualReport201718.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/05/23/Reports/AgendaItem14ScrutinyAnnualReport201718.pdf


 
 

 

July 18 – Scrutiny Fit for the Future –The report contained five proposals for improvement. 

Proposals for improvement 
The Council should 

Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

Scrutiny Work groups and subsequently supported 
and taken forward and endorsed by Cabinet.  An 
example of this is the work to improve the 
provision of sanitary products to female learners in 
schools arising from recommendations from 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Working 
Group which received cross party support by 
Council in February 2018 with a implementation 
plan being agreed by Cabinet in April 2018.  
The Council is continuing to develop its 
performance arrangements for Scrutiny so that 
they can better facilitate improved evaluation of 
scrutiny.  This will include robust action planning to 
support the delivery of agreed recommendations 
with appropriate monitoring arrangements in place. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Develop and introduce strengthened 
performance arrangement to enable 
Scrutiny committees to better 
evaluate their impact 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By the 
Council 
AGM 
2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Christian 
Hanagan  

 

Compliance letters issued November 2017  

Annual Audit Letter 2016-17  No proposals for improvement 

Annual Improvement Plan Audit  No proposals for improvement 

Annual Assessment of Performance contained with the 2017 AIR No proposals for improvement 

 
 
 
 
 
 

June 17 - Savings Planning . The local report in relation to Rhondda Cynon Taf Council contained one proposal for improvement and was 
presented to Council on 21 June 2017, O&S Committee (13 Sept 2017) and Audit Committee 16 Oct 2017). An update on progress since this time 
is set out below.  

T
udalen 39

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/rhondda_cynon_taf_council_overview_scrutiny_english.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/02/28/Reports/AgendaItem12ProvisionofSanitaryProductsinSchoolswithinRCTFinalReport.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2018/04/19/Reports/AgendaItem7ExecutiveResponsetotheSanitaryProductsProvisionreportofScrutiny..pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Reports/AgendaItem7WalesAuditOfficeReports.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/WFGSupportInfo/RCTCBCImprovementPlanCertificate1718Eng.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Reports/AgendaItem7WalesAuditOfficeReports.pdf
hhttps://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Reports/AgendaItem7WalesAuditOfficeReports.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Reports/AgendaItem7WalesAuditOfficeReports.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/OverviewandScrutinyCommittee/2017/09/13/Reports/AgendaItem4WAOReportscoveringreportappendices.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/AuditCommittee/2017/10/16/Reports/Agendaitem4ReportsoftheWalesAuditOffice.pdf


 
 

 

Proposals for improvement 
The Council should 

Update & Action to Date 

WAO 
SP1 

Strengthen financial 
planning by finalising the 
development of an income 
generation approach; and 
developing savings plans to 
cover the funding gap 
identified in the Medium 
Term Financial Plan. 

Income Generation  
The Council’s approach to income generation has been incorporated into its Fees and Charges Policy that is reported to 
Cabinet on an annual basis (link to the Fees and Charges Policy 2018/19 ). In parallel with this approach, the Council has 
continued to keep the area of income generation under on-going review and, where deemed appropriate, reports specific 
proposals to Cabinet / takes delegated decisions during the year e.g. Leisure Centre and Swimming Pool admission 
(Cabinet 28/9/17) and Fixed Penalty Notices for environmental crimes (Cabinet 25/1/18).  
 
Savings Plans 
The Council refreshes its Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) on an on-going basis throughout the year – the latest 
MTFP was reported to Cabinet on 17th July 2018 and covers the period 2018/19 to 2021/22. This document sets out, 
amongst other things, the forecasted funding gap and a position statement on savings proposals identified.  
 
To assist the Council in its approach to savings planning, Cabinet agreed 'Delivering the Corporate Plan - the way ahead' 
on 28 September 2017 that set out 5 workstreams to invest in as part of delivering the Corporate Plan within a climate of 
reducing resources. The 5 workstreams are: Digitisation; Commercialisation; Independence; Early Intervention and 
Prevention; and Efficient and Effective Organisation, with the Council using these areas to inform the identification and 
delivery of budget savings over the medium term. 

T
udalen 40

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2018/02/15/Reports/AgendaItem8CouncilsFeesandCharges201819.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2018/07/17/Reports/AgendaItem7MediumTermFinancialPlan.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2017/09/28/Reports/AgendaItem3CorporatePlanWayAhead.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2017/09/28/Reports/AgendaItem3CorporatePlanWayAhead.pdf


 
 

 

National Report Recommendations 2017-18 and Updates 
 

June 17 - Savings Planning in Councils in Wales. The report contained no national recommendations or proposals for improvement. The report 
was presented to Council on 21 June 2017, O&S Committee (13/09/17) and Audit Committee 16/10/17). An update on progress since this time is 
set out below.  

 

October 17 - Public Procurement in Wales The national report contained seven recommendations.  Six of the recommendations were for the 
Welsh Government and one of the recommendations was for public bodies: 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date 

WAO 
PP3 

It was clear from our sampling that some 
procurement strategies are out of date and there 
has also been a mixed response to new policy 
and legislation, such as the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  
We recommend that public bodies review their 
procurement strategies and policies during 2017-
18 and on an annual basis thereafter to ensure 
that they reflect wider policy and legislative 
changes and support continuous improvement. 

The Council’s Procurement strategy 2017-20 was revised in November 2017 and has been made 
available on the Council’s website . 
To date there has been no advice issued by the office of the FG commissioner.  However, 
notwithstanding this gap, the strategy is currently being reviewed with a view to completion and 
publication in April 2019.  
 

 

October 2017- Good Governance when determining Service Change – National Summary   The report contained no national 
recommendations or proposals for improvement.  A local report issued to the Council was reported to Cabinet on 9 March 2017 (and Audit 
Committee on 20/03/17) and contained three proposals for improvement, the responses to which were subsequently approved.  Work to ensure the 
findings from the report are used to strengthen the governance processes is continuing.  

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date 

WAO 
SCP1 

The Council set out at the point of decision on 
service change proposals how the impact of 
proposed changes is going to be measured and 
monitored.  
 

There have been no significant service change proposals since the report was issued that would 
provide the opportunity to fully test this approach.  However, an example of the Council’s approach 
will become evident as part of the detailed plans to implement changes to the Mobile Library Service 
which were agreed by Cabinet on 20 September.  The identification of impact, measures and 
monitoring will also feature as part of the strengthened scrutiny arrangements.  

T
udalen 41

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Savings-planning-eng.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/06/21/Reports/AgendaItem7WalesAuditOfficeReports.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/OverviewandScrutinyCommittee/2017/09/13/Reports/AgendaItem4WAOReportscoveringreportappendices.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/AuditCommittee/2017/10/16/Reports/Agendaitem4ReportsoftheWalesAuditOffice.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Public-Procurement-in-Wales-2017-English_0.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Business/TendersandProcurement/Procurementstrategy.aspx
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Good-Governance-2017-Eng_0.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/PerformanceBudgetsandSpending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/RegulatoryReports/RegulatoryReports1617/16.121A2017GoodGovernanceSvsChange.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2017/03/09/Reports/AgendaItem10WAOGoodGovernanceWhenDeterminingSignificantServiceChanges.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/AuditCommittee/2017/03/20/Reports/AgendaItem4CouncilResponseToWAORecommendations.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2017/03/09/Minutes/Minutes.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2018/09/20/Reports/AgendaItem9MobileLibraryService.pdf


 
 

 

October 2017- Good Governance when determining Service Change – National Summary   The report contained no national 
recommendations or proposals for improvement.  A local report issued to the Council was reported to Cabinet on 9 March 2017 (and Audit 
Committee on 20/03/17) and contained three proposals for improvement, the responses to which were subsequently approved.  Work to ensure the 
findings from the report are used to strengthen the governance processes is continuing.  

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date 

WAO 
SCP2 

The Council clarify and promote the 
arrangements for public participation in its 
overview and scrutiny process in order to 
encourage and promote public involvement; 

Dedicated Scrutiny pages have been included in the Council’s Website, additional work to strengthen 
opportunities to engage with scrutiny are being addressed and are contained within the Fit for the 
Future responses   

WAO 
SCP3 

The Council publish its overview and scrutiny 
committees’ forward work programme(s) as 
stand-alone documents(s) on the Council website 
to increase openness and transparency 

The latest Scrutiny programme was considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 25 
June.  Work to strengthen and make the Scrutiny work programme more transparent is continuing 
and further detail is contained within the Fit for the Future responses.  

 

December 2017- Local Government Financial Reporting The report contained no national recommendations or proposals for improvement. 

 

January. 18 - How Local Government manages demand – Homelessness The report contained eight recommendations, all of which were for 
local authorities.  This action plan will be presented the Health and Well-being Scrutiny Committee on 6 November as part of the Council’s proposed 
Homelessness Strategy. 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

WA
OHL
R1 

Local authorities: 
• ensure their staff are sufficiently 

skilled to deal with the new 
demands of mediating, problem 
solving, negotiating and 
influencing with homeless 
people; and 

• review and reconfigure their 
services to engage more 
effectively with homeless and 

The role of the Housing Solutions Officers (HSO) is to 
assess all people who present as homeless and 
threatened with homelessness. The outcome of the 
assessment is to develop a housing and support plan 
for all clients which clearly set out the actions to be 
followed to prevent or relieve homelessness.  
  
All HSOs have received significant training on the new 
Housing (Wales) Act 2014 and current procedures 
reflect the changes in legislation. .  

Carry out an audit with the 
Housing Solutions Officers to 
identify any ongoing training 
needs.  
 
Develop a continuing professional 
development and training plan for 
Housing Solutions staff  
 
 

Jan-19 
 
 
 
 

Mar-19 
 
 
 
 

Ian Jones 
 
 
 
 
Ian Jones 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 42

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Good-Governance-2017-Eng_0.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/PerformanceBudgetsandSpending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/RegulatoryReports/RegulatoryReports1617/16.121A2017GoodGovernanceSvsChange.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2017/03/09/Reports/AgendaItem10WAOGoodGovernanceWhenDeterminingSignificantServiceChanges.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/AuditCommittee/2017/03/20/Reports/AgendaItem4CouncilResponseToWAORecommendations.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2017/03/09/Minutes/Minutes.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Scrutiny/Scrutiny.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/OverviewandScrutinyCommittee/2018/06/25/OverviewandScrutinyCommittee25Jun2018.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/OverviewandScrutinyCommittee/2018/06/25/OverviewandScrutinyCommittee25Jun2018.aspx
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Local-Government-Finances-2016-17-English.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/local-government-homelessness-2017-english.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/7/contents/enacted


 
 

 

January. 18 - How Local Government manages demand – Homelessness The report contained eight recommendations, all of which were for 
local authorities.  This action plan will be presented the Health and Well-being Scrutiny Committee on 6 November as part of the Council’s proposed 
Homelessness Strategy. 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

potentially homeless people to 
prevent homelessness 

 
The Team are also supported by other agencies to 
help with their work.  This includes a mediation Officer 
(Llamau) and Housing Advice Workers (Gofal Cymru) 
for people who present with a mental health need.  
The homelessness service has been reviewed and 
reconfigured to work closely with the “Step by Step” 
Project and the Homelessness Intervention Project 
(HIP) funded via the Homelessness Prevention Grant 
and Supporting People Grant.  Both projects work 
closely with the Housing Solutions Team to provide a 
link officer to support homeless people.  
 

Review performance and 
outcomes of all the co-located key 
worker support projects     
 
Improve opportunities for clients 
to feed back their experience and 
expectations of service delivery to 
ensure the Council is providing an 
efficient person centred service, 
where client views contribute to 
continuous service improvement.   

Mar-19 
 
 
 

Apr-19 

Cheryl 
Emery 
 
 
 
Ian Jones 

WA
OHL
R2 

Local authorities review their 
funding of homelessness services 
to ensure that they can continue 
to provide the widest possible 
preventative approach needed. 
Reviews should consider use of 
Supporting People as well as 
General Council fund monies to 
support delivery of the authority’s 
homelessness duties. 

In 2017-18, a funding review was undertaken for all 
homeless funding including the RSG, Homelessness 
Prevention Grant and Supporting People Grant.  This 
review identified the ongoing revenue support 
requirements for the homelessness prevention service 
and has enabled new resources to be made available 
including additional staffing for the Housing Solutions 
team.  
 
Supporting People services have also been reviewed 
to ensure people being referred for support are 
assessed as early as possible to help the preventative 
agenda.  This includes a review of floating support 
projects and the development of an Early Intervention 
and Prevention model.  A Project Officer has also 
been placed in each of the hostels i.e. Mill Street and 
the Grange and Women’s Aid RCT Refuge to work 

Consider the impact of the new 
projects on the prevention agenda 
through monitoring and 
performance data which will 
influence decisions on distribution 
of future funding. 

Dec-18 Louise 
Davies & 
Cheryl 
Emery 

T
udalen 43

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/local-government-homelessness-2017-english.pdf
https://www.llamau.org.uk/
http://www.gofal.org.uk/
http://www.matvmind.org.uk/projects/step-by-step
http://www.matvmind.org.uk/projects/step-by-step
http://rhondda.org/our-services/supported-housing/


 
 

 

January. 18 - How Local Government manages demand – Homelessness The report contained eight recommendations, all of which were for 
local authorities.  This action plan will be presented the Health and Well-being Scrutiny Committee on 6 November as part of the Council’s proposed 
Homelessness Strategy. 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

with complex needs clients to help prevent episodes 
of future homelessness.  
Merthyr and the Valleys Mind are providing mental 
health and wellbeing support in hostels and supported 
accommodation. 

WA
O 
HLR
3 

Local authorities: 
• design services to ensure there 

is early contact with service 
users;  

• use ‘triage’ approaches to 
identify and filter individuals 
seeking help to determine the 
most appropriate response to 
address their needs; and  

• test the effectiveness of first 
point of contact services to 
ensure they are fit for purpose. 

The Housing Advice team currently operate a drop in 
service from 9am until 5pm Monday, Tuesday, 
Wednesday and Friday with a service for ‘emergency 
homeless on the day’ cases only on a Thursday. 
 
Demand means clients can arrive at the office and 
sometimes have a relatively long wait if there are a 
number of people ahead of them waiting for a full 
Housing assessment by a Housing Solutions Officer. 
 
On occasion clients are sometimes asked to return the 
following day if they present to the office and their 
circumstances are not urgent and the interview diary 
is full for the day and staff schedules are up to 
interview capacity when taking account of the number 
of clients waiting.   
 
Clients are currently triaged if they need help with an 
application to join the Common Housing Register and 
are not threatened with homelessness. These clients 
are seen by a Homefinder Officer to free up Housing 
Officer interview time. 
 
  

Explore options to introduce a 
more detailed triage assessment 
on first contact to see if this will 
streamline the process for some 
clients and filter emergency or 
priority cases for urgent action. 
 
Explore closer joint working 
opportunities with other services 
e.g. Probation , Health, Social 
Services to carry out pre-
arranged Housing assessments 
at their offices in one joint 
appointment with hard to engage 
clients.  
 
Explore how Housing Officers 
specialising in specific areas 
(such as Domestic Abuse, or with 
offenders) would improve joint 
working and prevention outcomes 
in this client group.    
Continually monitor the first point 
of contact services to identify any 
pressure on resources as 

Jan-19 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mar-19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mar-19 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 
 
 

Ian Jones 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian Jones 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian Jones 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian Jones  
 
 

T
udalen 44

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/local-government-homelessness-2017-english.pdf
http://www.matvmind.org.uk/


 
 

 

January. 18 - How Local Government manages demand – Homelessness The report contained eight recommendations, all of which were for 
local authorities.  This action plan will be presented the Health and Well-being Scrutiny Committee on 6 November as part of the Council’s proposed 
Homelessness Strategy. 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

demand for services changes.  
 
Explore opportunities to improve 
data collection around the 
handling of first point of contact 
telephone calls to the service/ 
website searches  and their 
resolution  

 
 
 
 

Jun-19 

 
 
 
 
Ian Jones  

WA
O 
HLR
4 

Local authorities publish service 
standards that clearly set out what 
their responsibilities are and how 
they will provide services to 
ensure people know what they are 
entitled to receive and what they 
must do for themselves. Service 
standards should:  
• be written in plain accessible 

language;  
• be precise about what applicants 

can and cannot expect, and 
when they can expect 
resolution;  

• clearly set out the applicant’s 
role in the process and how they 
can help the process go more 
smoothly and quickly;  

• be produced collaboratively with 
subject experts and include the 
involvement of people who use 
the service(s); 

The Council already provide a booklet to all clients 
who receive a housing assessment. 
‘Here to Help: your guide to homelessness 
services’ is written in easy to understand language 
and explains the process and what applicants can 
expect to happen.  It also includes information about 
how to seek a review of a decision taken by the 
Council. There is further work to do to review the 
complaints and appeals process to ensure the 
information provided is fit for purpose 
 
Personal Housing Plans are written for each client in 
easy to understand language and clearly sets out 
what the Council will do, and what the client must do 
to work with the Council to prevent homelessness.  
 
Clients receive written confirmation of any decisions 
made and the Council’s duty owed which is specific to 
their individual circumstances in accordance with the 
legislation. 
 
 

Review information available to 
clients and determine if in addition 
to complaints procedure 
information, any further 
improvements are required.  
 
Consider developing service 
standards as per WAO 
recommendation   
 
 
 
 
Review the website content to 
ensure online advice is easy to 
understand (including e advice 
about the formal review process 
in respect of homelessness 
decisions). 
 

Feb-19 
 
 
 
 
 

Apr-19 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Apr-19 

Ian Jones  
 
 
 
 
 
Ian Jones  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian Jones 

T
udalen 45

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/local-government-homelessness-2017-english.pdf


 
 

 

January. 18 - How Local Government manages demand – Homelessness The report contained eight recommendations, all of which were for 
local authorities.  This action plan will be presented the Health and Well-being Scrutiny Committee on 6 November as part of the Council’s proposed 
Homelessness Strategy. 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

• effectively integrate with the 
single assessment process; 

• offer viable alternatives to the 
authority’s services; and 

• set out the appeals and 
complaints processes. These 
should be based on fairness 
and equity for all involved and 
available to all. 

WA
O 
HLR
5 

Local authorities make better use 
of their websites to help manage 
demand by: 
• testing the usability and 

effectiveness of current website 
information using our lines of 
enquiry set out in Appendix 5; 

• increasing and improving the 
range, quality and coverage of 
web based information; making 
better use of online applications;  

• linking more effectively to 
information from specialist 
providers’ and advice 
specialists, such as Citizens 
Advice. 

Council website gives basic Housing Advice and 
Homelessness information. 
 
Applications for social housing via the Common 
Housing Register is via our HomefinderRCT website 
and an online application process. 
 
Engagement with Homelessness clients after 
assessment is being tested via text messaging to 
improve communication and this is planned to be 
rolled out to all by December.  
 
Customer satisfaction survey being developed with 
will ask client view on ease of engagement, service 
accessibility etc.  
 
Pontypridd Citizens Advice Bureau have been 
commissioned to offer direct   financial support to all 
persons who present as homeless or who are in 
receipt of a Supporting People funded project.  
 

Review website content to check 
its usability for clients. 
 
Identify and implement any 
required improvements to the 
website including increased use 
of online application processes for 
homelessness prevention 
services 
 
Complete the introduction of text 
message service to homeless 
clients  
 
Finalise and introduce customer 
satisfaction survey  
 
Monitor the effectiveness of the 
service commissioned from 
Pontypridd Citizens Advice 
Service 

Dec-19 
 
 

Apr-19 
 
 
 
 
 

Jan-19 
 
 

Jan-19 
 
 

Mar-19 

Ian Jones 
 
 
Ian Jones 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian Jones 
 
 
Ian Jones  
 
 
Cheryl  
Emery  

T
udalen 46

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/local-government-homelessness-2017-english.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/Housing/Homelessoratrisk/Homelessnessadviceandsupport.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/Housing/Homelessoratrisk/Homelessnessadviceandsupport.aspx
https://www.homefinderrct.org.uk/
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/local/rhondda-cynon-taff/


 
 

 

January. 18 - How Local Government manages demand – Homelessness The report contained eight recommendations, all of which were for 
local authorities.  This action plan will be presented the Health and Well-being Scrutiny Committee on 6 November as part of the Council’s proposed 
Homelessness Strategy. 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

 

WA
OHL
R6 

Local authorities set out and 
agree their expectations of 
partners identifying how they will 
work together to alleviate 
homelessness. The agreement 
should be reviewed regularly and 
all partners’ performance 
reviewed to identify areas for 
improvement. 
 

The authority has operated a common Housing 
Register and allocation scheme for a number of years 
in partnership with 6 local housing associations. 
Agreements are in place to monitor this arrangement 
through the established Steering and Operational 
Groups which oversee working arrangements.  
 

The authority also works with some housing 
associations to deliver specific projects for vulnerable 
people including high risk offenders.  All projects are 
regularly reviewed through performance data and 
contract monitor to ensure effective outcomes or 
areas for improvement.  

Continue to monitor partners 
performance via current 
arrangements 

On going Ian Jones 

WA
O 
HLR
7 

Local authorities address 
weaknesses in their equalities 
monitoring, and ensure that their 
homelessness service accurately 
records and evaluates appropriate 
data to demonstrate equality of 
access for all service users that 
the local authority has a duty 
towards. 

Equalities information is captured as part of the 
Housing Assessment where clients are threatened 
with homelessness, and via Homefinder when 
applications are made to join the Common Housing 
Register to access social housing. The information is 
subject to regular monitoring and analysis.     

Review how this information is 
reported and monitored to identify 
any improvements which will 
improve equality of access for all 
service users  

Jun-19 Ian Jones  

WA
O 
LHR
8 

Local authorities use the checklist 
set out in Appendix 10 to 
undertake a self-assessment on 
services to help identify options to 
improve how they can help 

Self-Assessment has been completed using the 
recommended checklist to inform the development of 
this action plan. 
 

Review and repeat the self-assessment process when 

To continually improve housing 
services, use the checklist as an 
ongoing tool for self-assessment 
of service standards.  

Complet
e 

Louise 
Davies  

T
udalen 47

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/local-government-homelessness-2017-english.pdf


 
 

 

January. 18 - How Local Government manages demand – Homelessness The report contained eight recommendations, all of which were for 
local authorities.  This action plan will be presented the Health and Well-being Scrutiny Committee on 6 November as part of the Council’s proposed 
Homelessness Strategy. 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsibl
e Officer 

manage demand.  actions completed      

 

February 18 - Housing Adaptations  The report contained nine recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government 
and eight of the recommendations were for local authorities and/or delivery organisations: 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsible 
Officer 

WAO 
HAR1 

 Local authorities work with partner 
agencies (health bodies, housing 
associations and Care and Repair) 
to strengthen their strategic focus 
for the provision of adaptations by:  

 setting appropriate strategic 
objectives for adaptations that 
focus on wellbeing and 
independence;  

 improving the quality of 
information on the demand for 
adaptations by using a wide 
range of data to assess need 
including drawing on and using 
information from partners who 
work in the local-authority area; 
and  

 linking the system for managing 
and delivering adaptations with 
adapted housing policies and 

In partnership with local housing associations, the 
Council provides the Homefinder service which 
enables residents to apply for all types of 
affordable housing through a choice based lettings 
scheme.  
 
Adapted properties are categorised according to 
the level of adaptations they have which enables 
them to be matched to the most appropriate 
applicant (also taking into account priority in terms 
of housing need and time waited). This process 
has been strengthened further in 2018 following a 
recent review of the Housing Allocation Scheme 
and gives Housing Associations even more 
flexibility to match applicants ensuring the best use 
of the housing stock. 
 
Regular analysis is undertaken of applicants 
prioritised as in the most urgent housing need 
and/or who require bespoke housing. This enables 
officers in strategic housing to plan for these 

Review strategic approach to 
adaptations by considering 
opportunities to further increase 
supply of adapted housing; 
allocation of existing housing 
through Homefinder and review of 
current grants available (policy 
and procedure).  This review is 
identified as a priority action in the 
Delivery Plan and ‘Place’ priority 
of the Corporate Plan. 

 
Establish Adaptations Service 
Standard Working Group to 
consider opportunities for 
improving data to capture unmet 
demand and implement data 
monitoring for all adaptations 
across all service providers to 
ensure that the same adaptations 

Apr-19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Baseline 
to be 
captured 
in 
2019/20 

Jennifer Ellis 

T
udalen 48

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/local-government-homelessness-2017-english.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/Housing/Housingoptions/HomefinderRCT.aspx


 
 

 

February 18 - Housing Adaptations  The report contained nine recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government 
and eight of the recommendations were for local authorities and/or delivery organisations: 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsible 
Officer 

registers to make best use of 
already adapted homes. 

 

requirements in relation to new housing 
developments and identify individual options if 
required e.g. purchase of bespoke property. 
 
 

are provided in the same time 
regardless of tenure. 
 
Update and consult on new RCT 
Private Sector Renewal Policy to 
reflect outcome of review and 
recommendations/best practice in 
WAO report.  
 
Agree strategic objectives for new 
Policy in partnership with health, 
housing associations and Care 
and repair 

WAO 
HAR2 

Delivery organisations provide 
information on housing adaptations 
in both Welsh and English, and 
accessible formats including braille, 
large fonts, audio versions and 
other languages. Information 
should be promoted widely via a 
range of media including social 
media, websites and published 
information, and also through key 
partners.  Preferably, information 
should be produced jointly and 
policies aligned between delivery 
bodies to improve coverage and 
usage. 

Information is provided in English and Welsh on the 
Council’s website. 
 
The DFG/WOA service is not widely promoted and 
we do not routinely encourage applicants to 
consider all housing options as part of their grant 
application. 

Establish an officer task and finish 
working group (including Care and 
Repair, Health, Community Care) 
to review opportunities for 
improved information, promotion 
and literature regarding the 
services we offer. 
 
User friendly guide to adaptations 
to be produced in partnership with 
Health, Social services, Care and 
Repair agency and Housing 
Associations. 

Apr-19 Jennifer Ellis 

WAO 
HAR3 

Delivery organisations streamline 
applications by creating single 

All residents regardless of tenure apply for 
adaptations through the Council‘s First Response 

We will meet with partners to 
discuss whether any 

2019/20 Jennifer Ellis 

T
udalen 49

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/AdultsandOlderPeople/Helptoliveathome/Helpathome.aspx


 
 

 

February 18 - Housing Adaptations  The report contained nine recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government 
and eight of the recommendations were for local authorities and/or delivery organisations: 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsible 
Officer 

comprehensive application forms 
covering all organisations within a 
local authority area that are 
available via partners and online. 
 

Team who depending on applicants’ requirements 
and tenure are directed to the appropriate 
organisation for assistance.  
 
The Council’s Grants Application form for DFGs 
and WOA is currently paper based. 

improvements can be made to the 
existing application process to 
reduce waiting time/any 
duplication that may exist. 
 
During 2018/19- 2019/20 we will 
aim to move to an on line 
application system for housing 
adaptations. 

WAO 
HAR4 

To improve timeliness in delivery: 
• the Welsh Government reviews 

whether local authorities should 
continue to use the means test 
for Disabled Facilities Grants 
(DFGs); 

• local authorities provide or use 
home improvement agency 
services to support disabled and 
older people to progress their 
DFG applications efficiently; 

• delivery organisations work with 
planning authorities to fast track 
and streamline adaptations that 
require approvals; 

• delivery organisations use 
Trusted Assessors to undertake 
less complex adaptation 
assessments; and 

• the Welsh Government 
streamlines its approval 

RCTCBC has an in house agency service. 
 
RCTCBC works in partnership with the Cwm Taf 
Care and Repair agency. The agency provides a 
Rapid Response Adaptations/Safety at Home 
Service for residents in RCT and is jointly funded 
by housing and community care. 
 
There is currently no fast track policy/procedure in 
RCT. 
 
In RCT all referrals for adaptations are made via 
social services and an Occupational Therapist. 

Review practice in other LAs and 
consider introducing fast track 
policy for grants under a certain 
amount and/or for a certain type of 
grant in the new RCT Private 
Sector Renewal Policy 
 
Continue to attend the Housing 
Expert panel and other 
Adaptations working Groups in 
order to work with WG to develop 
and implement any proposals. 

Apr-19 Jennifer Ellis 

T
udalen 50

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf
https://www.cynon-taf.org.uk/cwm-taf-care-and-repair-rhondda
https://www.cynon-taf.org.uk/cwm-taf-care-and-repair-rhondda


 
 

 

February 18 - Housing Adaptations  The report contained nine recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government 
and eight of the recommendations were for local authorities and/or delivery organisations: 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsible 
Officer 

processes for Physical 
Adaptation Grants (PAGs). 

WAO 
HAR5 

Delivery organisations: 
• introduce formal systems for 

accrediting contractors to 
undertake adaptations.  These 
should include: 

- standards of customer care 
such as keeping to 
appointments, keeping the 
site tidy, controlling noise 
,etc. ; 

- vetting of financial 
standing, tax and VAT 
status; 

- promoting good health and 
safety practices; 

- requiring the use of 
warranty schemes; 

- ensuring that adequate 
insurance is held; and 

- requiring references. 
• use framework agreements and 

partnered contracts to deliver 
adaptations. 

• address weaknesses in the 
contracting of adaptations, 
updating Schedule of Rates used 
to tender work and undertaking 

The Council has a 3 year Disabled Adaptations and 
Repairs Framework Contract in place until 31st 
March 2019 with the option to extend for 12 
months.  This was competitively tendered and uses 
a schedule of rates. The contract requires 
appropriate skills, qualifications and certification, 
insurance and compliance with Health and Safety 
legislation. 
 
Contract states that Contractor performance will be 
monitored and evaluated after each individual 
Scheme. There is a clear process for dealing with 
complaints and sub standard work.  
 
As part of the contract there is a Customer Care 
protocol that all contractors must adhere to.  
 

A  Customer Evaluation survey in 
place, but this is not 
systematically used to continually 
review contractor performance.  
Formal feedback is not provided 
to contractors on a regular basis.  
This will be considered and 
implemented as part of the wider 
review. 
 
New Framework Contract will be 
tendered for in 2019/20.  
 
 

2019/20 Jennifer Ellis 

T
udalen 51

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

February 18 - Housing Adaptations  The report contained nine recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government 
and eight of the recommendations were for local authorities and/or delivery organisations: 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsible 
Officer 

competitive tendering to support 
value for money in contracting. 

• develop effective systems to 
manage and evaluate contractor 
performance by: 

- setting an appropriate 
range of information to 
judge performance and 
delivery of works covering 
timeliness of work; quality 
of work; applicant/ tenant 
feedback; cost of work 
(including variations); 
health and safety record; 
and customer feedback; 

- regularly reporting and 
evaluating performance to 
identify opportunities to 
improve services; and 

- providing formal feedback 
to contractors on their 
performance covering key 
issues such as client 
satisfaction, level and 
acceptability of variations, 
right first-time work, post-
inspection assessment and 
completion within budget 

T
udalen 52

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

February 18 - Housing Adaptations  The report contained nine recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government 
and eight of the recommendations were for local authorities and/or delivery organisations: 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsible 
Officer 

and on time. 
WAO 
HAR6 

Local authorities work with partner 
agencies (health bodies, housing 
associations and Care and Repair) 
to develop and improve joint 
working to maximise both take-up 
and the benefits of adaptations in 
supporting independence by 
pooling of resources, co-locating 
staff and creating integrated 
delivery teams. 

RCTCBC has a strong relationship with Cwm Taf 
Care and Repair agency. The Council provides 
core funding to support the agency as well as 
funding for the Handyperson service, Rapid 
Response Adaptations and Safety at Home 
Service. 
 
A considerable proportion of RCT’s ENABLE 
funding has also been allocated to Care and 
Repair. 
 

Review Service Level Agreement 
with Care and Repair and Social 
Services to ensure that it is fit for 
purpose and reflects accurately 
the roles and responsibilities of 
each partner. 
 
Housing and Health Conference 
scheduled for October 2018 to 
consider all opportunities of 
working more closely together 

Dec-18 
then 
Ongoing 

Tony Kibble 
 

WAO 
HAR7 

To enhance take-up and usage of 
adaptations with health bodies we 
recommend that delivery 
organisations jointly agree and 
publish joint service standards for 
delivery of adaptations within each 
local-authority area. The service 
standards should clearly set out 
how each agency approaches 
delivery of adaptations and how 
they will provide services to ensure 
people know what they are entitled 
to receive. Service Standards 
should: 
• be written in plain accessible 

language; 
• be precise about what people can 

and cannot expect to receive; 

There are currently no agreed service standards in 
RCT.  However, RCTCBC and Trivallis have an 
agreed approach to adaptations as a consequence 
of the stock transfer, and the Council is consulted 
on Trivallis’ Adaptations Policy.  
 
Private Housing applicants for adaptations are not 
routinely given any information or advice about 
other housing options. However if an adaptation is 
not feasible, the Council does have a grant 
available that can facilitate people to move to a 
more suitable home, but this is officer led rather 
than being actively promoted as an option. 
 
Social Housing applicants who apply to Homefinder 
for re-housing due to their home being unsuitable 
due to a physical disability are provided with advice 
about housing grants/adaptations that their housing 

Produce service standards for 
adaptations in RCT in conjunction 
with Care and Repair, Health, 
Social Services and Housing 
Associations. This should include 
clear information about the in-
house agency services. 
 
All letters/literature relating to 
adaptations to be reviewed and 
updated.  User friendly guide to 
adaptations to be produced in 
partnership with Health, Social 
services and Care and Repair 
agency. 
 
Grant application process should 
include a discussion about 

2019/20 Jennifer Ellis 

T
udalen 53

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

February 18 - Housing Adaptations  The report contained nine recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government 
and eight of the recommendations were for local authorities and/or delivery organisations: 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsible 
Officer 

• be produced collaboratively to 
cover all adaptations services 
within an area; 

• set out the eligibility for the 
different funding streams, 
application and assessment 
processes, timescales and 
review processes; and 

• offer the viable options and 
alternatives for adaptations 
including linking with adapted 
housing registers to maximise 
use of already adapted homes. 

association might be able to provide. 
 

housing options to ensure that the 
provision of adaptations in the 
applicant‘s existing home is the 
most appropriate, effective and 
efficient option. 
 
Consider making available a 
proactive grant to assist people to 
move. 

WAO  
HAR8 

To effectively manage performance 
and be able to judge the impact of 
adaptations, we recommend that 
the Welsh Government and 
delivery organisations: 
• set appropriate measures to 

judge both the effectiveness and 
efficiency of the different systems 
for delivering adaptations and the 
impact on wellbeing and 
independence of those who 
receive adaptations; 

• ensure delivery organisations 
report against their 
responsibilities in respect of the 
Equalities Act 2010; 

• ensure performance information 

Agree that this would be useful and it would help 
LAs to learn from each other and help to promote 
consistency of service and standards across 
Wales. 

RCTCBC will provide information 
to WG as requested to assist in 
the delivery of this 
recommendation. 

As 
required 

Jennifer Ellis 

T
udalen 54

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

February 18 - Housing Adaptations  The report contained nine recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government 
and eight of the recommendations were for local authorities and/or delivery organisations: 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date Next Steps Delivery 
Date 

Responsible 
Officer 

captures the work of all delivery 
organisations – local authorities, 
housing associations and Care 
and Repair agencies; and 

• annually publish performance for 
all delivery organisations to 
enable a whole systems view of 
delivery and impact to support 
improvement to be taken. 

 
 
 
 

April-18 Speak my language: Overcoming language and communication barriers in public services The report contained two 
recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government in conjunction with public bodies and the other recommendation 
was for public bodies. 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date 

WAO 
SMLR1 

Ensuring that people who face language and 
communication barriers can access public 
services  

Public bodies are required to ensure that people can 
access the services they need. To take account of 
the requirements of the 2010 Equality Act and other 
legislation, we recommend that public bodies 
regularly review the accessibility of their services to 
people who do not speak English or Welsh as a 
main language including Deaf people who use sign 
language. This assessment can include using our 
checklist 

Welsh 
Govt and 
Public 
Bodies   

Whilst the Checklist referred to by WAO is not routinely used, the Council currently 
takes steps to make services accessible to people who do not speak English or 
Welsh as their main language.  This includes 
 

 Website – complies with requirements of Disability Discrimination Act 
1995  

 Telephone –follows Barrier Free Call Routing Guidelines issued by 
Employers Forum on Disability 

 Text phone in place 

 Advice points rooms for Deaf and Hard of Hearing People in One4all 
Centres equipped with loop systems to enhance sound. 

T
udalen 55

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/speak-my-language-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

April-18 Speak my language: Overcoming language and communication barriers in public services The report contained two 
recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government in conjunction with public bodies and the other recommendation 
was for public bodies. 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date 

 Interviews with British Sign Language(BSL) Interpreter are available for 
a wide range of services  

 ‘Call off’ arrangements in place with Wales Interpretation and Translation 
Service (WITS)  

 Training for staff, inc BSL training. 
 
The Council recognises that there is more to be done to identify the extent of the 
issues in respect of overcoming language and communication barriers and officers 
are currently reviewing the WAO report to seek to identify any gaps in Council 
services together with proportionate responses given the needs of the population 
of Rhondda Cynon Taf.  

WAO 
SMLR2 

Developing interpretation and translation 
services in Wales  

Our work with public bodies, interpretation and 
translation service providers and service users has 
identified some challenges for interpretation and 
translation services.  

We recommend that the Welsh Government work 
with public bodies, representative groups and 
other interested parties to make sure that:  

• the supply of interpreters is sufficient 
especially for languages in high 
demand such as BSL and Arabic; 

• interpreters with specialist training are 
available to work in mental health 
services and with people who have 
experienced trauma or violence; and  

• quality assurance and safeguarding 

Welsh  
Govt 

The Council welcomes the opportunity to work with Welsh Government, 
representative groups and other interested parties to meet the organisational 
challenges arising from the need for interpretation and translation services.  

T
udalen 56

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/speak-my-language-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

April-18 Speak my language: Overcoming language and communication barriers in public services The report contained two 
recommendations.  One of the recommendations was for the Welsh Government in conjunction with public bodies and the other recommendation 
was for public bodies. 

Proposals for improvement Update & Action to Date 

procedures are in place. 

 

May-18 Strategic Commissioning of Accommodation Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities The report contained six 
recommendations, all of which were for local authorities:  

Proposals for improvement 
 

Update & Action to Date 
 

Introduction  
Rhondda Cynon Taf Council, Merthyr Tydfil Council and the Cwm Taf University Health Board, worked together to develop a Joint Statement of 
Strategic Intent for children, young People, and adults with learning disabilities and their families which was agreed by Cabinet on 21st November 
2017. 
 
The Joint Statement of Strategic Intent is set within the context of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and describes a shared 
commitment and approach to commissioning new models of care and support for people with learning disabilities and their families by partners 
across Cwm Taf.  
 
A workshop held in January 2018 with key stakeholders, including people with learning disabilities, their families and carers and service providers 
identified 5 strategic workstreams to take forward a number of Regional priority outcomes, while building on the work already being undertaken, to 
deliver the strategic aims of the Joint Statement of Intent.  
 
Each strategic workstream has an individual workplan as part of an overarching Statement of Intent action plan, which underpins individual 
agency implementation plans. The overarching action plan is monitored by the Cwm Taf Statement of Intent Strategic Steering Group chaired by 

T
udalen 57

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/speak-my-language-2018-english.pdf
http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/learning-disability-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

May-18 Strategic Commissioning of Accommodation Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities The report contained six 
recommendations, all of which were for local authorities:  

Proposals for improvement 
 

Update & Action to Date 
 

Neil Elliott, Service Director Adult Services and overall progress regarding the implementation and delivery is monitored by the Regional Social 
Services Partnership Board. 
 
WAO 
SCAR1 

Local authorities continue to focus on preventing people 
becoming dependent on more expensive placements in 
care homes by providing effective support at home and a 
range of step up accommodation by:  

• improving the evaluation of prevention activity so 
local authorities understand what works well and 
why.  

• utilising the mapping of prevention services under 
the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
2014 that covers other agencies and service 
providers.  

• improving the signposting of additional help so 
carers and support networks can be more resilient 
and self-reliant. This should include encouraging 
carers to make long-term plans for care to maintain 
and protect their dependants’ wellbeing.  

• sharing risk analysis and long-term planning data 
with other local authorities, service providers, and 
partners to agree a shared understanding of the 
range of options.  

In response to recommendation 1, the Statement of Intent mentioned above, 
identifies the need to make choices in what services Adult Services and its 
partners commission now and in the future for people with learning disabilities. 
Central to reaching a position of a preferred direction of travel and approach has 
been the need to ensure that services continue to focus on early intervention and 
prevention and promoting independence to support individuals to retain in their 
own homes and local communities for as long as possible.  
 
“My Community” is a strategic workstream of the Statement of Intent and the 
mapping of services that provide universal services and community support plus 
targeted intervention and support is being undertaken. “My Home” is another 
strategic workstream and the following priority outcomes have been agreed and 
are being progressed: 
 

 Meet the range of housing needs now and in the future 

 Development of a robust evidence base to inform future housing plans 

 Investigate how other new models of supported housing are provided, taking 
into account best practice and national guidance on housing, care and 
support 

 Strategically plan sustainable housing that meets the needs and aspirations 
of adults with a learning disability now and in the future 

 
Key to the implementation of the above will be the ongoing development of 
alternative models of community based accommodation in order to enhance the 

T
udalen 58

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/learning-disability-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

May-18 Strategic Commissioning of Accommodation Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities The report contained six 
recommendations, all of which were for local authorities:  

Proposals for improvement 
 

Update & Action to Date 
 

health, wellbeing and independence of people with learning disabilities and avoid 
over reliance on care home settings. As a result, service models are evolving 
with an emphasis on supporting people to remain at home longer. Currently, this 
work involves the ongoing development of new extra care schemes across 
Rhondda Cynon Taf; new supported living accommodation schemes in Aberdare 
and Treorchy along with increased levels of shared lives provision, targeted 
support and other community based activities. There will however, remain a 
need for specialist care home provision for those individuals whose needs 
require this level of support, as part of the overall spectrum of support necessary 
to support the needs of our community. 
 

WAO 
SCAR2 

Local authorities improve their approach to planning 
services for people with learning disabilities by building on 
the Regional Partnership Boards’ population assessments 
for people with learning disabilities and agreeing future 
priorities. 

In response to recommendation 2, the development of the Joint Statement of 
Strategic Intent took into account the Regional Population Assessments as well 
as relevant data and information to prioritise needs and determine strategic 
commissioning priorities for future service developments. It is anticipated for any 
future updates in the Regional Population analysis will necessitate an updated 
analysis of needs and on-going modernising of future learning disability services.  
 

WAO 
SCAR3 

Local authorities do more to integrate commissioning 
arrangements with partners and providers and take 
account of the work of the National Commissioning Board 
by:  

• understanding the barriers that exist in stopping or 
hindering further integration;  

• improving the quality of joint strategic plans for 
learning disability services (see also paragraphs 
3.11 to 3.14);  

• establishing investment models and sustainable 

In response to recommendation 3, partners and providers have been fully 
involved in the development of the Joint Statement of Strategic Intent and the 
action plan and implementation of commissioning priorities and services delivery 
options.  
 
Partners and providers are also active members of the Regional Groups and 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Provider Forums. These Groups and Forums are driving the 
commissioning work programmes and designing and delivering services that 
target resources in the most effective way. Emphasis is placed on co-producing 
work schemes. 

T
udalen 59

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/learning-disability-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

May-18 Strategic Commissioning of Accommodation Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities The report contained six 
recommendations, all of which were for local authorities:  

Proposals for improvement 
 

Update & Action to Date 
 

financial structures, joint workforce planning and 
multi-year budgeting; and  

• developing appropriate governance and data 
sharing frameworks with key local partners that 
include a clear process for managing risk and 
failure.  

 
Through the Regional Partnership we participate in the work of the National 
Commissioning Board. 

WAO 
SCAR4 

Local authorities do more to involve people with learning 
disabilities and their carers in care planning and agreeing 
pathways to further independence by:  

• consistently including people with learning 
disabilities and their carers in the writing, 
monitoring and development of care plans; 

• systematically involving carers and advocacy 
groups in evaluating the quality of services;  

• involving people with learning disabilities in 
procurement processes; and  

• ensuring communications are written in accessible 
and appropriate language to improve the 
understanding and impact of guidance and 
information. 

In response to recommendation 4, we developed an engagement strategy to 
support the implementation of Statement of Intent that outlines the level and 
principles of engagement, the purpose, objectives and audiences and the core 
messages that will be consistently delivered throughout engagement activities. 
People with learning disabilities and their parents/carers are also active 
members of the Regional Commissioning Groups and, as mentioned above, 
these Groups are driving the work programmes and designing and delivering 
services that target resources in the most effective way. Emphasis is placed on 
co-producing work schemes and we support as needed. 
 
There are systems in place to involve people with learning disabilities and their 
parents/carers and, where appropriate, advocacy groups in assessment and 
care planning through to evaluating quality of services. However, there needs to 
be greater consistency to these approaches and actions to embed strengthen 
based practice and quality assurances systems are being implemented. It is 
important that through this improvement work that Advocacy Services are more 
integral to assessment and care planning processes. Similarly, there needs to be 
more consistency in the involvement of people with learning disabilities and their 
parents/carers both in procurement and recruitment processes.  
 
Through the engagement strategy more emphasis is now placed on using 
appropriate communication methods – information must be provided in 

T
udalen 60

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/learning-disability-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

May-18 Strategic Commissioning of Accommodation Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities The report contained six 
recommendations, all of which were for local authorities:  

Proposals for improvement 
 

Update & Action to Date 
 

accessible formats to meet people’s needs. Work is underway with People’s First 
to improve current arrangements and initial actions are in place to regularly 
produce easy to read material as part of the Regional commissioning 
arrangements. These improvements are being delivered through the “reducing 
stigma” and “communicating our work” Regional workstreams of the statement of 
intent. 

WAO 
SCAR5 

Local authorities collaborate with providers, the third sector 
and suppliers in understanding challenges, sharing data, 
and pooling expertise by:  

• improving the quality, range, and accessibility of 
tendering information; and  

• working with providers to shape local markets by 
coming to a common understanding of the 
opportunities, risks, and future priorities in 
providing learning disabilities services. 

In response to recommendation 5, overall relationships are positive and 
emphasis is placed on collaboration and co-producing work schemes. As 
mentioned above, Adult Services and its stakeholders are working together to 
share information and intelligence to drive the priority workstreams of the 
Regional Statement. 
 

WAO 
SCAR6 

Local authorities develop a more appropriate set of 
performance indicators and measures of success that 
make it easier to monitor and demonstrate the impact of 
service activity by:  

• co-designing measures, service and contract 
performance indicators with service providers, 
people with learning disabilities and their carers;  

• ensure commissioners have sufficient cost and 
qualitative information on the full range of 
placement and care options available;  

• equipping commissioners with data to demonstrate 
the long-term financial benefits of commissioning 
choices, this includes having the right systems and 

In response to recommendation 6, whilst processes are in place to measure 
some aspects of performance and success, there are information gaps and 
arrangements to collect performance indicators consistently and regularly in 
relation to people with learning disabilities needs to improve and actions included 
within relevant action plans for implementation. 
 
In addition, ensuring all people in receipt of services and their parents/carers are 
empowered to provide feedback on services on an ongoing basis, with results 
being used in a meaningful way, to improve standards will also be a key element 
of quality assurance processes being improved across Adult Services. 

T
udalen 61

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/learning-disability-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

May-18 Strategic Commissioning of Accommodation Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities The report contained six 
recommendations, all of which were for local authorities:  

Proposals for improvement 
 

Update & Action to Date 
 

technology;  

• integrating the outcomes and learning from reviews 
of care plans into performance measures;  

• evaluating and then learning from different types of 
interventions and placements; and including 
learning disability services in local authority 
scrutiny reviews to challenge performance and 
identify improvements. 

 

 
 

T
udalen 62

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/learning-disability-2018-english.pdf


 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19 

 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

17th December 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

 

 

 
REPORT OF THE GROUP 
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & 
FRONTLINE SERVICES 
 

2017/18 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS 

– AN UPDATE 

 

Author: Paul Griffiths (Service Director, Performance & Improvement) 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Audit Committee with an update on the 
status of the recommendations that were made within the 2017/18 Annual 
Governance Statement. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 It is recommended that Members review the information contained within the 
report and: 

 

2.1 Seek clarity and explanation where there are areas of concern. 

 

2.2 Form an opinion in respect of whether they are satisfied with the progress 
being made to implement the recommendations. 

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

3.1 To help ensure that Audit Committee discharges its responsibilities in respect 
of reviewing and forming an opinion on the overall control environment in 
place across the Council. 

 

4. BACKGROUND 

 

4.1 The Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) relating to the 2017/18 
financial year was reported to and approved by Audit Committee at its meeting 
held on 30th April 2018. The document described the governance 

Tudalen 63

Agendwm 6

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/AuditCommittee/2018/04/30/Reports/Item12AnnualGovernanceStatement201718230418.pdf


 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

arrangements in place, challenged their effectiveness and where necessary 
provided recommendations for improvement. 
 

4.2 In relation to monitoring the Council’s overall governance arrangements, the 
Terms of Reference for Audit Committee states: 
 
As a key element of new arrangements for corporate governance, designed to 
ensure openness, integrity and accountability, the Committee will assist the 
Authority in discharging its responsibility for ensuring financial probity, without 
taking any action which might prejudice it. The Committee will:-  

 
(E) Review, scrutinise and issue reports and recommendations on the 
appropriateness of the Authority’s risk management, internal control and 
corporate governance arrangements, and providing the opportunity for direct 
discussion with the auditor(s) on these  
 

4.3 In accordance with the Terms of Reference (Item E) and Workplan for Audit 
Committee, this report provides an update on the status of each 
recommendation. Appendix A provides details of each recommendation made 
along with a summary of the action being taken to progress their 
implementation.   

 
5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the 

recommendations set out in the report.  
 
6. CONSULTATION  
 
6.1 There are no consultation implications as a result of the recommendations set 

out in the report.  
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
  
7.1  There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations set out 

in the report.  
 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
8.1 The provision of information in respect of the status of the recommendations 

contained with the Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 demonstrates good 
governance, in accordance with the CIPFA / SOLACE ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016’ 

 
9. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-

BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 
  

 

Tudalen 64



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES  

9.1 Monitoring the status of the recommendations within the AGS aims to support 
the delivery of the priorities contained within the Council’s Corporate Plan – 
The Way Ahead, in particular ‘Living Within Our Means’ through ensuring that 
appropriate internal controls are in place to effectively manage resources and 
demonstrate openness and accountability.  

 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 

9.2 The Sustainable Development Principles, in particular Prevention, can be 
applied to the systematic reviews undertaken in order to provide assurance 
that risks to the achievement of objectives are being managed. 

 

10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 A summary of action taken to implement the recommendations contained 

within the 2017/18 AGS is provided at Appendix A. 
 

10.2 The provision of the information contained within this report will assist 
Members when forming an opinion on the Council’s overall governance 
arrangements for 2018/19. 

 
 
 
Other Information:- 
 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee 
Not applicable. 
 
 
Contact Officer – Paul Griffiths 
  

Tudalen 65



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

AS AMENDED BY 

 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

17th December 2018 

 

2017/18 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS – AN 
UPDATE 

 

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

Author: Paul Griffiths (Service Director, Performance & Improvement) 

 

Item: 6 

 

Background Papers 

 

None. 

 

 

Officer to contact: Paul Griffiths  

 

 

 
 

Tudalen 66



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
APPENDIX A – ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18 PROGRESS UPDATE 
 

Core Principle / Area Issue Identified Recommendation Responsible 
Officer & 

Timescale 

Update 

The Governance 
Framework  

The Council’s governance 
arrangements comprise a 
number of codes and 
documents and are not 
brought together to form a 
local code of governance as 
set out in the national 
framework.  

 

In line with the national framework, 
the Council should document and 
publish its arrangements within a 
local code of governance, following 
review and approval by elected 
Councillors. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Service Director – 
Performance and 

Improvement  

 

Qtr 2 2018/19  

Revised target date – quarter 4 
2018/19.  

 

Work in respect of developing the 
Local Code has progressed but it has 
not yet been finalised. 

 

Alongside the development of the 
Local Code, preparatory work has 
been completed to create a 
standalone ‘Governance’ section on 
the Council’s website. The aim of this 
will be to make more accessible the 
information available around the 
Council’s governance arrangements.  

 

A copy of the intended (website) 
page is provided at Appendix B. 

 

Behaving with 
integrity, 
demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting 
the rule of law 

A number of actions were 
taken to raise awareness of 
policies and strategies within 
the Council; however, no 
information is collected 
around the extent of 
understanding.  

Policies and Strategies - undertake 
engagement within the Council to 
assess the level of awareness and 
understanding of the Whistle-
blowing Policy, Anti-fraud, Bribery 
and Corruption Strategy, Gifts and 
Hospitality Policy and induction 
arrangements.  

 

Head of 
Organisational 
Development  

 

Qtr 3 2018/19 

The consultation exercise has been 
completed with staff (ended Friday 
7

th
 December).   

 

The results will be analysed and a 
report prepared for the Senior 
Leadership Team (SLT). Further to 
SLT’s review, an update will be 
reported to Audit Committee.  

T
udalen 67



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Core Principle / Area Issue Identified Recommendation Responsible 
Officer & 

Timescale 

Update 

Complaints and Comments - 
no regular analysis is 
produced and provided to 
Services to support 
performance management 
arrangements, for example, 
the number and type of 
complaints, and recurring 
themes. 

 

Comments, compliments and 
complaints (non-social services) – 
introduce arrangements to enable 
regular complaint analysis to be 
provided to Services.  

Head Of Legal - 
Corporate And 

Democratic 
Services  

 

Qtr 2 2018/19 

Revised Target Date – January 2019. 

 

Work has focused on centralising 
resources into one team during the 
year to date – this process has now 
been concluded and will enable 
regular ‘comment / compliment / 
complaints‘ analysis to be provided to 
Services.  

 

Defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable 
economic, social, and 
environmental benefits 

 

Draft Corporate Plan priority 
action plans were not subject 
to pre-scrutiny in 2017/18.  

Draft Corporate Plan priority action 
plans for 2018/19 should be subject 
to pre-scrutiny to assess, amongst 
other things, the basis of 
performance indicator targets and 
whether the actions included will 
help to deliver defined outcomes.  

Service Director – 
Performance & 

Improvement and 
Performance 

Manager  

 

Qtr 1 2018/19  

Complete. 

Developing the entity’s 
capacity, including the 
capability of its 
leadership and 
individuals within it  

 

Although evaluation forms 
are in place to gauge the 
value of training and 
development activities, 
feedback is limited.  

In view of the limited level of 
training feedback provided, engage 
with attendees to identify alternative 
methods of obtaining feedback to 
ensure that training resources 
provide maximum benefit.  

Head of 
Organisational 
Development  

 

Qtr 1 2018/19 
onwards 

Post-training feedback requests are 
being sent electronically to attendees 
of training events – this will be an on-
going process. 

Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal control 
and strong public 
financial management 

 

The Council’s risk 
management processes 
were reviewed in 2017/18 
and improvements 
introduced to further 
strengthen arrangements. 
However, the Risk 
Management Strategy 
document was not reviewed / 

Review the Council’s Risk 
Management Strategy document to 
assess whether it remains fit for 
purpose. Where revisions are 
deemed required, these should be 
reported to elected Councillors for 
review and sign off before being re-
published.  
 

Head of Internal 
Audit and 
Procurement 
Development 
Programmes  

 

Qtr 3 2018/19 

On target. 

 

The Council’s Risk Management 
Strategy has been reviewed and will 
be reported to the 17

th
 December 

2018 Audit Committee.  

T
udalen 68



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Core Principle / Area Issue Identified Recommendation Responsible 
Officer & 

Timescale 

Update 

up dated.  

 

 

The Council’s Financial 
Procedure Rules document 
has not been reviewed for 2 
years.  

Review, and where required, up 
date the Council’s Financial 
Procedure Rules and report 
revisions to elected Councillors for 
consideration / approval.  

 

Service Director – 
Performance & 
Improvement  

 

Qtr 2 2018/19  

Revised Target Date – quarter 4 
2018/19. 

 

An initial review of the Council’s 
Financial Procedure Rule document 
confirmed that the fundamental 
principles within it remain sound. 
Work to date this year has therefore 
been re-prioritised on other Annual 
Governance Statement areas e.g. 
development of a webpage.  

 

Implementing good 
practices in 
transparency, 
reporting and audit to 
deliver effective 
accountability  

The Annual Governance  

Statement is not a stand 
alone  

document on the Council’s  

website.   

 

To increase the prominence / 
awareness of the Annual 
Governance Statement, this should 
be a stand alone document on the 
Council’s website.  

 

Head of Internal 
Audit and 
Procurement 
Development 
Programmes  

 

Qtr 2 2018/19 

Work has been completed to create a 
dedicated ‘Governance‘  page on the 
Council’s website – this is currently 
‘draft’ and is included at Appendix B. 
Further to the web-page going LIVE, 
the 2017/18 Annual Governance 
Statement will be part of the suite of 
information included.  

 

Note: a copy of the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement 2017/18 is 
publicly available on the Council’s 
website – link - 
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council
/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/
Meetings/Council/2018/09/19/Report
s/AgendaItem8StatementofAccounts.
pdf.  

T
udalen 69

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/09/19/Reports/AgendaItem8StatementofAccounts.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/09/19/Reports/AgendaItem8StatementofAccounts.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/09/19/Reports/AgendaItem8StatementofAccounts.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/09/19/Reports/AgendaItem8StatementofAccounts.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2018/09/19/Reports/AgendaItem8StatementofAccounts.pdf


 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Core Principle / Area Issue Identified Recommendation Responsible 
Officer & 

Timescale 

Update 

It is anticipated the web-page will be 
LIVE in quarter 4 of 2018/19.  

 

 
PROPOSALS FOR IMPROVEMENT TO BE CARRIED FORWARD FROM 2016/17 

 

Behaving with 
integrity, 
demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting 
the rule of law 

 

Complaints and Comments - 
no update is produced on a 
periodic basis to summarise 
the non-social services 
related complaints and 
concerns received and action 
taken. 

 

In line with the timescale set in the 
2016/17 Annual Governance 
Statement, this action is scheduled 
for completion by 30

th
 June 2018.  

Head Of Legal - 
Corporate And 

Democratic 
Services  

 

 

See Complaints and Comments 
update above.  

Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal control 
and strong public 
financial management 

 

Audit Committee – no self 
assessment has been 
undertaken against the 
standards set out in the 
CIPFA document ‘Audit 
Committees: Practical 
Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police - 2013 
Edition’. This ahs been 
delayed due to awaiting 
receipt of up dated guidance.  

 

The Council’s Audit Committee, in 
consultation with the Head of 
Internal Audit, should undertake a 
self assessment against the 
Standards as set out in the CIPFA 
document ‘Audit Committees: 
Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police. 2013 
Edition’. 

Head of Internal 
Audit and 

Procurement 
Development 
Programmes  

 

Revised 
Timescale: 

Qtr 4 2018/19  

The revised Guidance was presented 
to Audit Committee at its meeting 
held on 17

th
 September 2018. 

 

The report also incorporated the draft 
workplan for Audit Committee 
Members, where it was noted that a 
self-assessment against the checklist 
contained within the revised 
Guidance would be prepared and 
presented to Audit Committee at its 
meeting scheduled for 25

th
 March 

2019. 

 
 
 

T
udalen 70

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/AuditCommittee/2018/09/17/Reports/AgendaItem5Theroleofauditcommitteeincorporatingthedraftworkplanfor2018.19.pdf


 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

APPENDIX B – DRAFT GOVERNANCE SECTION OF THE COUNCIL’S WEBSITE 

 

 

Tudalen 71



Tudalen wag



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19 

 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
17th December 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

 
REPORT OF THE GROUP 
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & 
FRONTLINE SERVICES 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
UP DATE 

 
Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Delivery Programme) 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Audit Committee with an overview of 

the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, and to also propose housekeeping 
up-dates that are required to the document.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that Members:  
 
2.1  Form a view on the adequacy of the Council’s Risk Management Strategy 

(Appendix A).  
 
2.2  Endorse the updated Strategy and agree for the revised document to be made 

available on the Council’s website. 
 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To assist Audit Committee in discharging its responsibilities in respect of 

overseeing the Council’s risk management arrangements. 
 
4. AUDIT COMMITTEE’S TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
4.1 The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference states its overall purpose, as 

follows:  
 
The purpose of the Audit Committee is to monitor the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the associated control environment; provide 
independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance 

Tudalen 73

Agendwm 7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

to the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the 
control environment; and to oversee the financial reporting process. 
 

4.2 Section E of the Committee’s Terms of Reference goes on to identify the 
following responsibility in respect of the Council’s Risk Management 
arrangements: 
 
Review, scrutinise and issue reports and recommendations on the 
appropriateness of the Authority’s risk management, internal control and 
corporate governance arrangements, and providing the opportunity for direct 
discussion with the auditor(s) on these 
 

4.3 To help discharge the Risk Management duty, information is reported to Audit 
Committee at specific points each year.  

 
5.  THE COUNCIL’S RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND AN OVERVIEW 

OF ARRANGEMENTS  
 
 Risk Management Strategy 
 
5.1  Following a review of the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, a number of 

proposed revisions have been identified and incorporated into the Strategy 
document set out in Appendix 1. For Members information, the proposed 
amendments are more housekeeping related in nature and do not change the 
fundamental principles of the document approved by Cabinet in March 2014. 
The proposed revisions are:  
 

 Section 4 – a new section to reference the requirements of the Well-Being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015;  

 Section 5 – replacing references to the Single Integrated Plan with the 
Cwm Taf Well-being Plan;  

 Section 6 – up dating accounting legislation references i.e. replacing 
‘Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005 (regulation 4)’ with  
‘Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2018 (regulation 4)’;  

 Section 7 – reflecting the role the Council’s scrutiny function plays in 
monitoring Strategic Risk Register up dates as part of quarterly 
performance reporting arrangements;  

 Section 9 – incorporating the potential benefits and risks of partnership 
working.  

 
Overview of arrangements  
 

5.2 In setting the overall framework, the Strategy provides the Council’s definition 
of risk and also identifies two specific ‘thresholds’ put in place to make it clear 
how risk management should be applied at different levels of the Council’s 
business: 
 

Tudalen 74

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2014/03/19/Reports/agendaitem6riskmanagementstrategy.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Cabinet/2014/03/19/Reports/agendaitem6riskmanagementstrategy.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Strategic Risks 
Risks the Council faces when delivering its Corporate Plan priorities. 
 
The Council’s strategic risks are set out in the Strategic Risk Register. The 
Strategic Risk Register is updated on a quarterly basis and reported and 
scrutinised as part of the Council’s quarterly Performance Report. A copy of 
the latest Strategic Risk Register, as included within the Council’s 2018/19 
Performance Report for Quarter 2 (as at 30th September 2018), is provided 
within the following link. 
 
Operational Risks 
Risks associated with the delivery of service objectives, as set out within 
Service Delivery Plans. These risks are monitored by Service Delivery Plan 
owners as part of the operational management of services. 
 

5.3 In addition to the above, to assist Management in applying consistent risk 
management arrangements, a Risk Management Toolkit is in place. 
 

6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the 

recommendations set out in the report.  
 
7. CONSULTATION  

 
7.1 There are no consultation implications as a result of the recommendations set 

out in the report.  
 

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
  

8.1 There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations set out 
in the report.  

 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
9.1 The Council’s risk management arrangements satisfies the requirements 

placed upon it as set out within: 

 Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2018 (regulation 4); 

 CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government – Core 
Principle F; and  

 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  
 

10. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-
BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 

  
THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES  

Tudalen 75

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/201819Report/Qtr21819/RiskRegisterUpdates201819Q2.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

10.1 The Council’s risk management arrangements support the delivery of the 
Council’s Corporate Plan priorities by helping to identify risks that may hinder 
delivery. 

 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 

10.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 identifies a core set of 
activities that are common to the corporate governance of public bodies where 
change needs to happen. Risk Management is one of the identified core 
activities. The Council’s risk management arrangements and strategic risk 
register conform to the requirements placed upon it by the Act. 

 
11. CONCLUSION 
 
11.1 The Risk Management Strategy is designed to ensure that sound risk 

management practices are in place, including processes to identify, assess 
and manage risk on an ongoing basis. The Risk Management Toolkit is a 
more detailed document designed to help and support officers at all levels 
across the Council to undertake these processes in a consistent manner. 
 

11.2 Understanding the risks the Council faces and managing them appropriately 
aides effective decision-making and will positively contribute to the 
achievement of Corporate Plan Priorities and Service Delivery Plan objectives. 
 

11.3 It is the responsibility of Audit Committee to review and scrutinise the risk 
management arrangements in place across the Council and form a view of 
their adequacy. 

 
 
Other Information:-Relevant Scrutiny Committee 
None. 
Contact Officer – Marc Crumbie 

Tudalen 76



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

17th December 2018 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY UP DATE 
 
REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES 
Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Delivery Programme) 
 

Item: 7 

 
Background Papers 

 
None. 
 
 
Officer to contact: Marc Crumbie 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 77



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Appendix A – Updated Risk Management Strategy 

Tudalen 78



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY 

BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

 

Risk Management Strategy 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
December 2018 (Updated)

Tudalen 79



 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council  8 

1. Introduction 
1.1 Risk management is an integral part of management practice. Managing the 

risks that may impact on the Council’s ability to deliver services as intended 
and in doing so help improve the quality of life for local people is at the 
forefront of the Council’s forward planning arrangements. 

 
1.2 The aim of this document is to set the overall purpose and framework of risk 

management within the Council. 
 
1.3 Risk management is the business of everyone in the Council. 
 
2. Purpose of Risk Management in Rhondda Cynon Taf 
2.1 In Rhondda Cynon Taf, at a strategic level, the purpose of risk management is 

to identify and manage the risks the Council faces when delivering its 
improvement priorities. At an operational level, risk management is about 
identifying and managing risks associated with service delivery and is 
undertaken via the Council’s delivery (business) planning and monitoring 
arrangements. 

 
2.2 This strategy is designed to ensure that sound risk management practices are 

in place, including processes to identify, assess and manage risk on an 
ongoing basis. 

 
2.3 Understanding the risks the Council face and managing them appropriately 

aides effective decision-making and contributes to the achievement of its 
improvement priorities. Risk management is not about eliminating risk and 
should not be confused with being risk averse; the Council’s risk management 
arrangements aim to encourage innovation within a clear framework. 

 
3. Definition 
3.1 Risk is the uncertainty of outcome, whether a positive opportunity or a 

negative threat, of actions or events. The Council’s definition of risk is 
‘something happening that, should it occur, would impact on the Council’s 
ability to successfully achieve its improvement priorities’. 

 
4. Well-being of Future Generations Act 
4.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 identifies a core set 

of activities that are common to the corporate governance of public bodies 
where change needs to happen:  

 Corporate Planning; 

 Financial Planning; 

 Workforce Planning; 

 Procurement; 

 Assets; 

 Risk Management; and 

 Performance Management 
 
4.2 The accompanying guidance to the Act states that a public body will need to 

change the way it manages risk. Under section 3 of ‘where change needs to 
happen’ of the Welsh Government Guidance, it states that: 

Tudalen 80



 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council  9 

 
“There will be long term risks that will affect both the delivery of your services 
but also the communities you are enabling to improve. Use the well-being 
goals and five ways of working to frame what risks you may be subject to in 
the short, medium and long term and together with the steps you will take to 
ensure they are well managed”. 

 
4.3 The Council’s Strategic Risk Register incorporates controls and actions that 

aim to manage the risks, and these incorporate the five ways of working:  

 Involving a diversity of the population in the decisions that affect them.  

 Working with others in a Collaborative way to find shared sustainable 
solutions.  

 Looking to the Long-term so that we do not compromise the ability of 
future generations to meet their-own needs.  

 Taking an Integrated approach so that public bodies look at all the well-
being goals in deciding on their well-being objectives.  

 Understanding the root causes of issues to prevent them from 
occurring. 

 
5. The Performance Management Framework and Risk Management 
5.1 The Council’s performance management framework (incorporating strategic 

risk management) aligns the outcomes contained in the Cwm Taf Well-Being 
Plan for the County Borough with the Council’s Improvement Priorities. 
 

5.2 Risk management has a strong link to performance management: if risks are 
not managed effectively then it is unlikely the Council will deliver its 
improvement priorities as planned nor make the intended contribution to the 
long term vision for the County Borough as set out in the Cwm Taf Well-Being 
Plan. 
 

5.3 The supporting ‘internal’ processes that the Council has in relation to 
delivering its improvement priorities are encompassed within its Service 
Delivery Planning arrangements. 
 

5.4 Service Delivery Plans set out the key priorities for each service to be 
delivered over 12-18 months; they incorporate operational risks to the 
achievement of each priority along with actions and milestones against which 
progress is monitored. These arrangements help each Service Area to: 

 Support delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan priorities;  

 Demonstrate how the service is aligning with the requirements of the 
Well-being of Future Generations Act;  

 Provide a framework to ensure the priorities arising from the Council’s 
Corporate Assessment are addressed; and  

 Enable the service to identify and manage operational risks.  
 
5.5 Regular monitoring enables senior managers to understand risks within their 

services, the changes occurring within them and what mitigating actions need 
to be put in place. 
 
 

Tudalen 81

http://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/PerformanceBudgetsandSpending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/CorporatePlan201620/CorporatePlan201620.pdf
http://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/WellbeingofFutureGenerationsWalesAct


 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council  10 

6. Internal Control and Risk Management 
6.1 The Council’s system of internal control has a key role in the management of 

risks. Internal controls are a response to risk. 
 
6.2 The links between internal control and risk management are identified within 

the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2018 (regulation 4), which states: 
 

‘Responsibility for internal control and financial management: 
(1) The local government body shall be responsible for putting in 

place and ensuring that there is a sound system of internal 
control which facilitates the effective exercise of that body's 
functions and which includes: 

a. arrangements for the management of risk; and 
b. adequate and effective financial management. 

 
(2) The local government body shall conduct a review at least once 

in a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control 
and shall include a statement on internal control, prepared in 
accordance with Proper Practices.’ 

 
6.3 Proper Practices are deemed to be the Code of Practice for Local Authority 

accounting which specifies: 
 
‘A local authority shall undertake a review of its system of internal control in 
accordance with best practice. Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government, published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 
(SOLACE), recommends that the review be reported in an Annual 
Governance Statement.’ 

 
6.4 In addition to the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2018 (regulation 4), 

in a Local Government context, the importance of risk management as a key 
governance tool is incorporated within the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government – Core Principle F: 
 
‘Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management  

 
Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance 
structures that it oversees have implemented, and can sustain, an effective 
performance management system that facilitates effective and efficient 
delivery of planned services. Risk management and internal control are 
important and integral parts of a performance management system and are 
crucial to the achievement of outcomes. Risk should be considered and 
addressed as part of all decision making activities.’ 

 
6.5 The Council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT) has put in place a series of 

Policies and Procedures that aim to ensure that robust controls are in place to 
manage risk efficiently and effectively in order to deliver its services. SLT 

Tudalen 82



 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council  11 

receives regular assurance from internal and external sources around the 
strength of its internal control environment. 
 

7. The Council’s Audit Committee & Scrutiny function  
7.1 The Council’s Audit Committee is charged with overseeing the Council’s 

governance, risk management and internal control arrangements. The 
statement of purpose for audit committee and relevant sections of its terms of 
reference state: 

 
The purpose of the Audit Committee is to monitor the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the associated control environment; provide 
independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance 
to the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the 
control environment; and to oversee the financial reporting process.  
 

7.2 Section ‘E’ of the Committee’s terms of reference goes on to state: 
 
Review, scrutinise and issue reports and recommendations on the 
appropriateness of the Authority’s risk management, internal control and 
corporate governance arrangements, and providing the opportunity for direct 
discussion with the auditor(s) on these  

 
7.3 Monitoring of the Council’s strategic risks is integrated into its Performance 

Reports and reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Council’s scrutiny function. 
Risks are identified, assessed and scored using a matrix of impact and 
likelihood, and the outcome of the scoring process results in a score being 
attributed. 

 
7.4 The Council’s strategic risks are brought together into a Strategic Risk 

Register that is owned and monitored by the Council’s Senior Leadership 
Team. 

 
7.5 Operational risks are monitored and managed separately as part of the 

Council’s Delivery Planning arrangements. 
 
8. Risk Management – Links to other disciplines 
8.1 Controlling risk involves a process of reducing the impact and / or likelihood of 

the risk occurring. 
 
8.2 A number of disciplines are applied across the Council to help achieve this:  

 Procurement can be used to manage risks by appointing contractors to 
undertake services on behalf of the Council and contracts can be used to 
transfer identified risk(s);  

 Insurance can be used to manage risks (for example, the potential 
financial impact of a risk could be mitigated using an insurance policy); 
and 

 A business continuity plan is a control that can help to manage the impact 
of an event that may arise. 

 
 

Tudalen 83



 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council  12 

9. Partnerships 
9.1 Partnership working is playing an increasingly important role in service 

delivery. In recent years, the focus for the Council has been on the 
opportunities offered by partnership and joint working arrangements. 

 
9.2 Working in partnership usually means committing resources such as time 

and/or direct funding to develop and deliver desired outcomes. It may not be 
easy and, whilst there are opportunities there are also risks. It is important to 
understand and manage these in so far as they affect both the partnership 
and Council. 

 
Potential benefits of partnership working 

 Better co-ordination and integration in the delivery of services for users. 

 Flexibility and innovation, producing better policy and implementing 
more credible solutions than those achievable by single agencies. 

 Improved communication and information-sharing. 

 More efficient and effective use of resources to deliver value for 
money, including access to additional skills and expertise. 

 Greater capacity to plan and develop solutions, including pooling 
expertise and resources. 

 
Potential risks of partnership working 

 Lack of clear purpose or setting unrealistic goals and expectations. 

 Unaware of the extent of financial and legal implications, such as 
breach of statutory duty or failure in the exercise of statutory functions. 

 Financial and time commitments outweigh potential benefits. 

 Different or conflicting cultures, behaviours and policies lead to conflict, 
distrust, manipulation or domination. 

 Lack of clarity over partner expectations and responsibilities. 

 Inadequate governance and scrutiny over planning, decision-making 
and management of finance, risk and performance. 

 
10. Projects 
10.1 Project risk management defines how risks will be managed during the 

lifecycle of a project or programme. The arrangements acknowledge actual 
and potential threats to the successful delivery of a project and determine the 
activities required to minimise or eliminate them. 

 
10.2 Where partners and/or suppliers are involved, it is essential to have a shared 

understanding of risks and agreed plans for managing them. 
 
11. Risk Management - An Overview 
11.1 A toolkit has been devised that provides managers with a guide when 

undertaking risk management activities at all levels across the Council. The 
toolkit is a supporting document to this Strategy. 

 
11.2 Figure 1 shows the stages involved in the Council’s strategic risk 

management arrangements. 

Tudalen 84



 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council  13 

Figure 1 – Strategic Risk Management Arrangements 
 

 
 

 

T
udalen 85



T
udalen w

ag



 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19 

 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

17
th

 December 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 

 

REPORT OF THE GROUP 

DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & 

FRONTLINE SERVICES 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE 

2018/19 

 
Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Delivery 
Programme) 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 This report provides the performance information in respect of the 

Internal Audit Service between 1
st
 April 2018 and 4

th
 December 2018. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 It is recommended that Members: 
 
2.1 Review the information contained within the report and identify whether 

there are any areas where specific issues are of concern. 
 

2.2 Consider what comments and recommendations, if any, they wish to 
make. 

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 To help ensure that Audit Committee monitors the performance of the 

Council’s Internal Audit Service, in accordance with its Terms of 
Reference. 

 

4. BACKGROUND 

 
4.1 The Audit Committee Terms of Reference (Point F) requires it ‘To 

receive reports on the performance of the Internal Audit Service 
throughout the year particularly in relation to matters of financial probity 
and corporate governance’. 
 

Tudalen 87

Agendwm 9



  

4.2 In line with this requirement Appendix 1 sets out the Internal Audit Plan 
for 2018/19 and includes the status of each audit, the quarter in which 
the audit is/was planned to commence and incorporates the detailed 
performance information for each audit. 
 

4.3 The Internal Audit Plan currently includes 79 individual audit 
assignments and, as at 4

th
 December 2018, 46% of the Plan had been 

completed to report stage. The detailed breakdown of the status of 

each review is provided in Appendix 1 and is summarised as follows: 
 

Status 
No. Of 

Audits 

Final Reports Issued 26 

Draft Reports Issued  10 

Fieldwork Complete 4 

Audits In Progress 7 

Audits Not Yet Started ('Planned') 32 

Total: 79 

 

4.4 Appendix 2 provides a summary of the status of all recommendations 
made by the Internal Audit Service, grouped under the relevant service 
of the Council. A verbal update in respect of the status of the 
outstanding recommendations shown in Appendix 2 will be provided at 
the meeting. 
 

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1  There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the 

recommendations set out in the report.  
 

6. CONSULTATION  
 
6.1  There are no consultation implications as a result of the 

recommendations set out in the report.  

 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
  
7.1 There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations 

set out in the report.  

 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
8.1 The provision of regular information in respect of the Council’s Internal 

Audit Service supports the Council in demonstrating compliance with 
the Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018. 

Tudalen 88



  

 
8.2 Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 of the 2018 Regulations directs 

that: “A relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system 
of internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal 
control.” 

 

9. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT. 
  

THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES  
9.1 The work of Internal Audit aims to support the delivery of the priorities 

contained within the Council’s Corporate Plan – The Way Ahead, in 
particular ‘Living Within Our Means’ through ensuring that appropriate 
internal controls are in place to effectively manage resources.  

 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 

9.2 The Sustainable Development Principles, in particular Prevention, can 
be applied to the systematic reviews undertaken in order to provide 
assurance that risks to the achievement of objectives are being 
managed. 

 

10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 Monitoring the performance of Internal Audit is a key responsibility for 

Audit Committee. This report provides Audit Committee with detailed 
information with which the performance of the Service can be reviewed 
and scrutinised. 

 
 

Other Information:- 
 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee 

Not applicable. 
 
 
Contact Officer – Marc Crumbie 

Tudalen 89



  

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

AS AMENDED BY 

 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

17
th

 December 2018 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE 2018/19 
 

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & FRONTLINE 

SERVICES 
Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Delivery 
Programme) 

Item: 9 

 

Background Papers 
 
None. 
 
 
Officer to contact: Marc Crumbie 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 90



 

Appendix 1 - Monitoring the Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 
 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 Q
tr

 

S
ta

tu
s

 

S
ta

rt
 F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

F
in

is
h

 F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

Is
s

u
e

d
 

D
a
y

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

e
n

d
in

g
 f

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

&
 i

s
s

u
in

g
 d

ra
ft

 

re
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
s

 

T
im

e
li

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 

F
in

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 

is
s

u
in

g
 f

in
a

l 

re
p

o
rt

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE            

HUMAN RESOURCES            

RECRUITMENT - PRE 

EMPLOYMENT CHECKS 
High QTR 3 

In 
Progress 

01/11/2018   0  0  0 

SICKNESS ABSENCE 

MANAGEMENT - SCHOOLS 
High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC 

SERVICES 
           

CASE MANAGEMENT Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

REGENERATION & PLANNING            

HOUSING GRANTS High QTR 2 
Final 

Report 
31/08/2018 26/09/2018 05/10/2018 9 07/11/2018 33 08/11/2018 1 

COMMUNITY 

INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 
High QTR 2 

In 
Progress 

01/10/2018   0  0  0 

HOMELESSNESS GRANT High QTR 1 
Final 

Report 
04/06/2018 31/07/2018 31/07/2018 0 06/08/2018 6 06/08/2018 0 

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN'S 

SERVICES 
           

CHILDREN'S SERVICES            

PAYMENTS TO FOSTER 

CARERS 
Medium QTR 2 

Fieldwork 
Complete 

15/06/2018 21/08/2018  0  0  0 

CONTACT SERVICE Medium QTR 2 
In 

Progress 
26/11/2018   0  0  0 

T
udalen 91



  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 Q
tr

 

S
ta

tu
s

 

S
ta

rt
 F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

F
in

is
h

 F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

Is
s

u
e

d
 

D
a
y

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

e
n

d
in

g
 f

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

&
 i

s
s

u
in

g
 d

ra
ft

 

re
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
s

 

T
im

e
li

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 

F
in

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 

is
s

u
in

g
 f

in
a

l 

re
p

o
rt

 

ADOPTION SUPPORT 

PAYMENTS 
High QTR 1 

Draft 
Report 

04/12/2017 22/06/2018 29/06/2018 7  0  0 

YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT - 

PLACEMENTS 
High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

ADULT SERVICES            

DIRECT PAYMENTS High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

THE REVIEW TEAM Medium QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

THE PANEL PROCESS High QTR 2 
Fieldwork 
Complete 

26/04/2018 4/12/2018  0  0  0 

SUPPORTED LIVING High QTR 3 
In 

Progress 
15/10/2018   0  0  0 

PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION 

& COMMUNITY SERVICES 
           

REGISTRATION SERVICES Low QTR 3 
Draft 

Report 
25/09/2018 05/10/2018 28/11/2018 54  0  0 

LLWYDCOED CREMATORIUM Low QTR 2 
Final 

Report 
09/08/2018 14/08/2018 06/09/2018 23 19/10/2018 43 07/11/2018 19 

GLYNTAFF CREMATORIUM Low QTR 2 
Final 

Report 
12/09/2018 26/09/2018 04/10/2018 8 19/10/2018 15 07/11/2018 19 

ENGAGEMENT, INTERVENTION 

& PREVENTION 
High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

BROKER SERVICE High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

CORPORATE & FRONTLINE 

SERVICES 
           

T
udalen 92



  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 Q
tr

 

S
ta

tu
s

 

S
ta

rt
 F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

F
in

is
h

 F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

Is
s

u
e

d
 

D
a
y

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

e
n

d
in

g
 f

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

&
 i

s
s

u
in

g
 d

ra
ft

 

re
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
s

 

T
im

e
li

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 

F
in

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 

is
s

u
in

g
 f

in
a

l 

re
p

o
rt

 

IT            

DISASTER RECOVERY - 

FOLLOW UP 
High QTR 2 

In 
Progress 

09/11/2018   0  0  0 

CORPORATE ESTATES & 

PROCUREMENT 
           

LEGIONELLA MANAGEMENT High QTR 1 
Draft 

Report 
09/05/2018 27/09/2018 15/10/2018 18  0  0 

21
ST

 CENTURY SCHOOLS - 

CAPITAL PROJECT 
High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

ENERGY MANAGEMENT High QTR 2 
Final 

Report 
20/08/2018 16/10/2018 26/10/2018 10 02/11/2018 7 09/11/2018 7 

FINANCIAL SERVICES            

GENERAL LEDGER High QTR 3 
Fieldwork 
Complete 

01/11/2018 30/11/2018  0  0  0 

TAXATION High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

ADMINISTRATION OF TRUST 

FUNDS 
Low QTR 3 

Final 
Report 

01/10/2018 08/10/2018 09/10/2018 1 09/10/2018 0 09/10/2018 0 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT High QTR 3 
Fieldwork 
Complete 

05/11/2018 09/11/2018  0  0  0 

CREDITORS High QTR 1 
Final 

Report 
16/02/2018 30/03/2018 16/05/2018 47 22/06/2018 37 29/06/2018 7 

PENSIONS High QTR 1 
Draft 

Report 
14/05/2018 28/08/2018 06/09/2018 9  0  0 

INCOME, DEBTORS & DEBT 

RECOVERY 
High QTR 1 

Draft 
Report 

15/03/2018 31/05/2018 29/06/2018 29  0  0 

HIGHWAYS & STREETCARE            

T
udalen 93



  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 Q
tr

 

S
ta

tu
s

 

S
ta

rt
 F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

F
in

is
h

 F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

Is
s

u
e

d
 

D
a
y

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

e
n

d
in

g
 f

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

&
 i

s
s

u
in

g
 d

ra
ft

 

re
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
s

 

T
im

e
li

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 

F
in

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 

is
s

u
in

g
 f

in
a

l 

re
p

o
rt

 

WASTE SERVICES High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

HIGHWAYS - CAPITAL 

PROGRAMME 
High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

EDUCATION & LIFELONG 

LEARNING 
           

MIDDLE SCHOOLS            

YSGOL LANHARI FOLLOW UP High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

SECONDARY SCHOOLS            

MOUNTAIN ASH 

COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL 
High QTR 1 

Final 
Report 

02/07/2018 06/07/2018 26/09/2018 82 23/10/2018 27 06/11/2018 14 

TREORCHY COMPREHENSIVE 

SCHOOL 
High QTR 1 

Final 
Report 

11/06/2018 02/07/2018 31/07/2018 29 10/09/2018 41 12/09/2018 2 

Y PANT FOLLOW UP High QTR 1 
Final 

Report 
05/03/2018 26/03/2018 11/05/2018 46 12/10/2018 154 16/10/2018 4 

ABERDARE COMMUNITY 

SCHOOL 
High QTR 3 

In 
Progress 

03/12/2018   0  0  0 

YSGOL GYFUN GARTH OLWG 

FOLLOW UP 
High QTR 1 

Final 
Report 

27/03/2018 11/04/2018 23/04/2018 12 30/04/2018 7 15/05/2018 15 

HAWTHORN HIGH SCHOOL 

FOLLOW UP 
High QTR 1 

Final 
Report 

26/02/2018 20/03/2018 06/06/2018 78 28/11/2018 175 30/11/2018 2 

YSGOL GYFUN CWM RHONDDA High QTR 1 
Draft 

Report 
25/06/2018 29/06/2018 11/09/2018 74  0  0 

TONYPANDY COMMUNITY 

COLLEGE 
High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

PRIMARY SCHOOLS            

T
udalen 94



  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 Q
tr

 

S
ta

tu
s

 

S
ta

rt
 F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

F
in

is
h

 F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

Is
s

u
e

d
 

D
a
y

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

e
n

d
in

g
 f

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

&
 i

s
s

u
in

g
 d

ra
ft

 

re
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
s

 

T
im

e
li

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 

F
in

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 

is
s

u
in

g
 f

in
a

l 

re
p

o
rt

 

CWMBACH COMMUNITY 

PRIMARY SCHOOL 
Medium QTR 1 

Final 
Report 

07/06/2018 21/06/2018 27/06/2018 6 11/07/2018 14 25/07/2018 14 

CAEGARW PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 
Final 

Report 
05/07/2018 01/08/2018 09/08/2018 8 01/10/2018 53 09/10/2018 8 

CAPCOCH PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium 
QTR 1 

 
Draft 

Report 
18/07/2018 25/7/2018 30/08/2018 66  0  0 

CARADOG PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium 
QTR 1 

 
Final 

Report 
07/06/2018 08/06/2018 29/06/2018 21 09/07/2018 10 06/11/2018 120 

CWMDAR PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 
Final 

Report 
03/07/2018 04/07/2018 09/08/2018 36 14/09/2018 36 19/09/2018 5 

CWMLAI PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 
Draft 

Report 
08/10/2018 10/10/2018 12/11/2018 33  0  0 

DARRENLAS PRIMARY 

SCHOOL 
Medium QTR 1 

Final 
Report 

12/07/2018 13/07/2018 31/07/2018 18 13/08/2018 13 16/08/2018 3 

GELLI PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 
Final 

Report 
10/07/2018 11/07/2018 16/08/2018 36 10/09/2018 25 12/09/2018 2 

HAWTHORN PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium 
QTR 1 

 
Final 

Report 
12/06/2018 14/06/2018 16/08/2018 63 25/10/2018 70 06/11/2018 12 

HIRWAUN PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium 
QTR 1 

 
Final 

Report 
20/06/2018 21/06/2018 30/08/2018 70 05/10/2018 36 11/10/2018 6 

LLWYNCRWN PRIMARY 

SCHOOL 
Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

MISKIN PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 
Final 

Report 
15/10/2018 18/10/2018 25/10/2018 7 07/11/2018 13 08/11/2018 1 

PARC PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

PARCLEWIS PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 
Final 

Report 
10/10/2018 11/10/2018 26/10/2018 15 07/11/2018 12 08/11/2018 1 

PRIMARY SCHOOL SELF 

ASSESSMENT REPORT 17/18 
Medium QTR 1 

Final 
Report 

10/04/2018 11/04/2018 18/07/2018 98 18/07/2018 0 18/07/2018 0 

T
udalen 95



  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 Q
tr

 

S
ta

tu
s

 

S
ta

rt
 F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

F
in

is
h

 F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

Is
s

u
e

d
 

D
a
y

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

e
n

d
in

g
 f

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

&
 i

s
s

u
in

g
 d

ra
ft

 

re
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
s

 

T
im

e
li

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 

F
in

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 

is
s

u
in

g
 f

in
a

l 

re
p

o
rt

 

YGG LLWYNCELYN Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

CWMAMAN PRIMARY Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

PRIMARY SCHOOL SELF 

ASSESSMENT REPORT 18/19 
Medium QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

SCHOOLS & COMMUNITY            

POST 16 PLANNING AND 

FUNDING 2017/18 
High QTR 1 

Final 
Report 

06/11/2017 04/05/2018 21/05/2018 17 17/08/2018 88 21/08/2018 4 

POST 16 PLANNING AND 

FUNDING 2018/19 
High QTR 3 

In 
Progress 

   0  0  0 

POST 16 GRANT High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

EARLY YEARS PROVISION High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT 

GRANT 
High QTR 2 

Final 
Report 

03/09/2018 24/09/2018 28/09/2018 4 28/09/2018 0 28/09/2018 0 

ACCESS & ENGAGEMENT & 

INCLUSION 
           

IN YEAR TRANSFER 

PROTOCOLS 
High QTR 2 

Final 
Report 

29/05/2018 08/10/2018 25/10/2018 17 21/11/2018 27 30/11/2018 9 

THEMATIC REVIEWS - 

COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOLS 
           

SCHOOL PRIVATE FUNDS High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

PURCHASE CARDS High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

SAFEGUARDING 

ARRANGEMENTS 
High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

GOVERNANCE High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

T
udalen 96



  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 Q
tr

 

S
ta

tu
s

 

S
ta

rt
 F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

F
in

is
h

 F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

Is
s

u
e

d
 

D
a
y

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

e
n

d
in

g
 f

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 

&
 i

s
s

u
in

g
 d

ra
ft

 

re
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
s

 

T
im

e
li

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 

F
in

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 

is
s

u
in

g
 f

in
a

l 

re
p

o
rt

 

ARRANGEMENTS 

WHOLE AUTHORITY 

ARRANGEMENTS 
           

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS High QTR 2 
Draft 

Report 
01/08/2018 10/10/2018 15/10/2018 5  0  0 

OPERATIONAL RISK 

MANAGEMENT 
High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

ORGANISED CRIME REVIEW High QTR 1 
Draft 

Report 
13/12/2017 11/06/2018 29/06/2018 18  0  0 

DIGITALISATION High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

COMMERCIALISATION High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

INDEPENDENCE High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

EARLY INTERVENTION & 

PREVENTION 
High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

EFFICIENT & EFFECTIVE 

ORGANISATION 
High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0 

ANTI-FRAUD, BRIBERY & 

CORRUPTION 
High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0 

T
udalen 97



 

Appendix 2 - The Status of Recommendations 

 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 Number of 

HIGH Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

12 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 11 1 0  

 Number of 

MEDIUM Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

72 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 68 4 0  

 Number of LOW 

Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

55 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 50 3 2  

 

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

 

 Number of 

HIGH Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

20 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 20 0 0  

 Number of 

MEDIUM Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

142 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 136 4 2  

 Number of LOW 

Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

89 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 87 2 0  

 

CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

 

 Number of 

HIGH Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

32 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 31 0 1  

 Number of 

MEDIUM Recs 
STATUS 

 

 
93 Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

Tudalen 98



  

 89 1 3  

 Number of LOW 

Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

42 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 42 0 0  

 

EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING 

 

 Number of 

HIGH Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

302 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 280 3 19  

 Number of 

MEDIUM Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

784 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 753 6 25  

 Number of LOW 

Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

603 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 591 5 7  

 

WHOLE AUTHORITY ARRANGEMENTS 

 

 Number of 

HIGH Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

6 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 6 0 0  

 Number of 

MEDIUM Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

9 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 9 0 0  

 Number of LOW 

Recs 
STATUS 

 

 

0 
Implemented 

Overdue / 
Outstanding 

Target Date in the 
Future 

 

 0 0 0  

 

 

Tudalen 99



Tudalen wag



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19 

 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

17th December 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 

 
REPORT OF THE GROUP 
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & 
FRONTLINE SERVICES 
 

FINALISED AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Delivery Programme) 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 

1.1 This report provides Members with a summary of audit assignments 
completed between 27th October 2018 and 4th December 2018. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 It is recommended that Members: 

 

2.1 Seek clarity and explanation where there are areas of concern. 

 

2.2 Identify further action to be taken where deemed necessary. 

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

3.1 To help ensure that Audit Committee discharges its responsibilities in respect 
of reviewing and forming an opinion on the overall control environment in 
place across the Council. 

 

4. BACKGROUND 

 

4.1 The Audit Committee Terms of Reference (Point D) requires it to ‘Review, 
scrutinise and issue reports and recommendations in relation to the Authority’s 
financial affairs, and providing the opportunity for direct discussion with the 
auditor(s) on these’.  

 
4.2 In line with this requirement Appendix 1 provides a summary of the audit 

assignments completed between 27th October 2018 and 4th December 2018. 

Tudalen 101

Agendwm 10



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Members will note that the summary provides for each assignment: the 
Introduction, Scope & Objectives, Auditor’s stated opinion and a summary of 
all recommendations made for each audit review completed to final report 
stage within the stated period.   

 
4.3 To help ensure Audit Committee effectively discharges the responsibility as 

set out in its Terms of Reference (and replicated at point 4.1 above), Members 
may wish to consider the principles noted below in addition to their own lines 
of enquiry:  

 

 Are the conclusions made by Internal Audit reasonable / backed up by the 
findings reported? 
  

 Are the recommendations made by Internal Audit likely to support the 
necessary improvement in internal control?  

 
4.4 Members will note that 12 audit assignments have been finalised in the period 

and are set out in Table 1 below. 
 

 Table 1 – finalised audit assignments 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE‘S DIVISION  

 HOUSING GRANTS  
 
COMMUNITY & CHILDREN’S SERVICES   

 GLYNTAFF CREMATORIUM   

 LLWYDCOED CREMATORIUM 

 
 CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES    

 ENERGY MANAGEMENT    

 
EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES 

 CARADOG PRIMARY SCHOOL 

 HAWTHORN PRIMARY SCHOOL 

 IN YEAR TRANSFER PROTOCOLS  

 MISKIN PRIMARY SCHOOL 

 MOUNTAIN ASH COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL  

 PARCLEWIS PRIMARY SCHOOL 

 YSGOL LLANHARI   

 HAWTHORN HIGH SCHOOL FOLLOW UP  
 

 

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the 

recommendations set out in the report.  
 

Tudalen 102



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
6. CONSULTATION  
 
6.1 There are no consultation implications as a result of the recommendations set 

out in the report.  
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
  
7.1  There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations set out 

in the report.  
 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
8.1 The provision of regular information in respect of the Council’s Internal Audit 

Service supports the Council in demonstrating compliance with the Accounts 
and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018. 

 
8.2 Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 of the 2018 Regulations directs that: “A 

relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system of internal 
audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control.” 

 
9. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-

BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 
  

THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES  
9.1 The work of Internal Audit aims to support the delivery of the priorities 

contained within the Council’s Corporate Plan – The Way Ahead, in particular 
‘Living Within Our Means’ through ensuring that appropriate internal controls 
are in place to effectively manage resources.  

 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 

9.2 The Sustainable Development Principles, in particular Prevention, can be 
applied to the systematic reviews undertaken in order to provide assurance 
that risks to the achievement of objectives are being managed. 

 

10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 The regular provision of all summarised audit assignments to Audit Committee 

throughout the year is aimed at assisting Members in evaluating the 
effectiveness of Internal Audit work across all Council systems and services. 

 
10.2 In doing so, it enables Members to form an opinion on the overall control 

environment of the Council at the end of the financial year. 
 
 
Other Information:- 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee 
Not applicable. 

Tudalen 103



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Contact Officer – Marc Crumbie 
  

Tudalen 104



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

AS AMENDED BY 

 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

17th December 2018 

 

FINALISED AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS 

 

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Delivery Programme) 

Item: 10 

 

Background Papers 

 

None. 

 

 

Officer to contact: Marc Crumbie 

 

 

 
 

Tudalen 105



 
 

 
 

Appendix 1 - Summary of audit assignments completed between 27th October 2018 and 4th December 2018 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

AUDIT NAME: HOUSING GRANTS 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 08/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

The responsibility for Housing Grants lies within the Housing Strategy and Standards Division of Regeneration & Planning and is delivered operationally by 

the Head of Regeneration & Prosperity. 

There are a number of grant initiatives provided for housing repairs, under the Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and Wales) Order 2002. 

Renovations Grants provide means-tested, financial assistance for homeowners to deal with problems, that without intervention, the property is deemed a 

danger to the health, safety and welfare of the occupant or the general public. These grants are only available where exceptional circumstances exist at 

their home and the grant is provided to address the removal of serious (category one) hazards within properties. The maximum Renovation Grant is 

£35,000 plus ancillary fees. 

Disabled Facilities Grant assistance is given to provide appropriate modifications and facilities to enable disabled persons to continue living at home. The 

service is a statutory requirement and is awarded via a means tested framework and capped at £36,000 including all fees and ancillary costs - as per the 

Disabled Facilities Grant (Maximum amounts and additional purposes) (Wales) Order 2008. 

Empty Homes Grant is an initiative to bring vacant properties back into use. The grant assists owners or individuals looking to purchase a property in 

Rhondda Cynon Taf that has been empty for 6 months or more. The grant is capped at £20,000 to carry out essential repairs to help ‘bring the property 

back to life’. Successful applicants would be required to pay a contribution of 15% of the identif ied cost of works and to remain the owner and occupier of 

the property for a minimum period of 5 years, after the works are completed. 

A Maintenance and Repair Assistance Grant is provided to carry out general repairs required to provide safe and secure living conditions and to remedy 

defects which affect the person's ability to live comfortably at the property. The grant is means tested and the maximum allowance is £4,000 or £6,500 to 

remedy structural defects, plus ancillary fees. 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

In accordance with the Internal Audit Plan for the financial year 2018/2019 as agreed by Audit Committee, a review of the key controls within the system 

was undertaken. A review of the potential risks of fraud, bribery and corruption was carried out and an assessment of the controls in place to mitigate them. 

Audit testing was also carried out on a sample of completed grant applications, to establish whether the process is operating effectively. 

The primary purpose of the audit review was to provide management with an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system. This 

review incorporated two assurance objectives and a consulting objective. 

The assurance objectives of the review were to ensure that: 

T
udalen 106



 
 

 
 

 Appropriate controls are in place to mitigate the risks of fraud, bribery and corruption; and 

 Grants awarded are compliant with policies and procedures, and information retained is consistent and complete. 

The Consulting objective of the review was to: 

 Review and provide advice on the process established for transitioning from paper files and some electronic documentation storage to full electronic 

data storage. 

AUDIT OPINION 

The overall control environment in relation to the administration of Housing Grants is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Risk. 

When awarding and administering housing grants, the risk of fraud, bribery and corruption could be perceived as inherently high. However, this risk can be 

mitigated through the implementation of stringent controls. Whilst not being able to completely mitigate the risk, Management has put in place the following 

key controls: 

 Formal procedures and processes have been put in place that aim to ensure consistent working practices are followed; 

 Appropriate segregation of duties have been put in place that help to ensure challenge and due process is followed; 

 For RCT Agency work, (whereby RCT oversees the whole process), there is a contract framework in place, by which contractors are offered under 6 

different lots (categories) on a rotation basis. For non-Agency work, the client selects their own contractor and in both cases, work awarded is in line 

with the standard schedule of rates, with the exception of very specialised work; and 

 Payments are made against invoices that have been vetted and in line with valuation of work.   

This report identifies two areas that can be strengthened further in respect of the procedures in place: 

 Officers are currently not required to complete a 'conflict of interest' declaration; and 

 The audit trail in respect of the checks that are undertaken when assessing unforeseen works needs to be fully documented.  

Compliance with procedures/information retention 

In addition to reviewing the adequacy of the procedures in place, a detailed review was also undertaken whereby compliance with the arrangements was 

tested. Eight files were selected and the process followed through from application to final payment. Whilst overall, the procedures put in place by 

Management were followed; this report identifies instances of non-compliance and recommends that Officers be reminded of the intended arrangements. 

Transfer to electronic retention 

The Service is planning to implement a paperless system during 2019/20. As part of the scope for this Internal Audit review, Management requested advice 

and guidance in respect of the intended control environment that Management have planned.  

Following a detailed insight into the intended arrangements, Internal Audit has identified areas that should be discussed and addressed by Management. 

These have been included at Appendix A to this report. 

By implementing the associated recommendations contained within this report, Management will enhance further the standard of control. 

T
udalen 107



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.1 

 

Medium 

Discussion with the Housing Strategy & Investment Manager and 
Grants Manager established that Officers involved in the process for 
awarding and administering grants are not requested, at present, to 
complete formal 'conflict of interest' declarations.  

To ensure transparency, Officers should be 

required to complete an annual 'conflict of 

interest' declaration (this can be via email 

and retained). 

 

During this exercise, Management should 

seek to ascertain if Officers have any 

'professional' or 'personal' conflicts of interest 

that may hinder their independence and 

objectivity when assessing applications for 

grants. 

 

The declaration should state that it is the 

Officer's responsibility to inform Management 

of any subsequent changes.  

 

Implemented  

5.1.2 

 

Medium 

The issuing of unforeseen works has the potential to be a greater risk 

area for fraud, bribery and corruption.  All unforeseen works are 

supported by a revised schedule of works as a record of the additional 

works identified.  The Technical Services Manager will accompany 

Technical Officers on site for some ‘unforeseen works‘ site visits and 

also check some files as the work progresses.  However, there is no 

formal record of the files checked.  Reports are produced detailing 

variations in grant values but these are not utilised to inform checks on 

any competed grants. Moreover, there is no current benchmark i.e. 

sample check 10% of all variation orders or review variation orders 

above an agreed threshold e.g. an increase of £10,000 or 50% etc. 

 

Consideration should be given to utilising the 

variation reports to sample check a selection 

of unforeseen works on a monthly basis.  The 

sample selected should be in conjunction 

with a target set i.e.  percentage or threshold 

basis (although for threshold basis, it may be 

advisable to also check some that fall just 

under the thresholds set) and ensure that 

each Officer has had at least some checks 

on their variation orders undertaken. 

The checks undertaken should be recorded 

on the report, to evidence that these checks 

30 November 2018 

T
udalen 108



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

A formal process for checking a sample of unforeseen works may act 

as a deterrent to potential fraud. In the absence of a formal record, it 

may not be possible to demonstrate which unforeseen works have 

been subject to independent checks. 

 

 

 

have been carried out and if any anomalies 

identified, the details and outcome(s) 

recorded.  In addition, where the Grants 

Manager has carried out site visits in 

conjunction with the Technical Officer, this 

should be recorded on the report as this may 

inform which files to select. 

 

5.2.1 

 

High 

The Eligibility Criteria for awarding a Renovation Grant includes that 

the applicant has owned and occupied the property for the last 5 years.  

 

For Renovation Grant number RA0***, testing identified that although 

the applicant had occupied the property for more than the required 5 

years, they had only owned the property for the last 3 years. Following 

the review, Internal Audit were provided with email declarations from 

the 2 officers who undertook the eligibility checks confirming that they 

had no personal or professional links to the applicant.  

 

A review of the Renovation Approval Checklist (Admin Check), 

revealed that the wording is ambiguous and could be interpreted as 

either occupancy or ownership of 5 years, not both. 

 

Discussion with the Lead Administrative Officer established that a 

reminder had been sent to staff regarding this criterion recently; 

however, the ineligibility of this grant award had not been identified at 

the time of review. 

 

Management should ensure that all 

Renovation Grants are issued to applicants 

who can demonstrate both 5 years 

occupancy and ownership. 

 

Consideration should be given to revising the 

wording on the Renovation Approval 

Checklist (Admin Check) to make this 

criterion clearer. 

 

30 November 2018 

T
udalen 109



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.2.2 

 

Medium 

For non-agency Disabled Facilities Grants, 2 estimates are required to 

support works above £10,000 net. 

• For DFG grant number D65**, the work was valued at £10,686.06 

net; however, only one estimate was obtained. 

• Whilst the estimate provided was greater than the schedule of rates 

value, only the schedule of rates value was agreed to be paid. 

 

In addition to the above, where work is specialised and falls outside the 

scope of the schedule of rates, then there would be merit in seeking 

more than one quotation, with a view to ensuring value for money can 

be demonstrated (as per the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules). 

However, if the Council is going to pay only the schedule of rates 

amount, there may not be value in seeking more than one quotation, if 

the amount paid will not exceed the schedule of rates amount. 

 

Management should review the current 
process and decide whether to continue the 
requirement of 2 estimates for agreed 
schedule of rates works for non-agency 
DFGs.  If the process is to continue, 
Management should ensure compliance with 
the agreed process. 

30 November 2018 

5.2.3 

 

Medium 

For Empty Property Grant number EPG0**, the total amount on the 

final invoice provided by the contractor was found to have been 

amended through the use of eradicating fluid (and overwritten with a 

revised total). The revised total did agree to the valuation of work and 

the Revised Grant approval figure.  

 

For Maintenance and Repair Assistance Grant number MRA****, the 

final invoice agreed to the revised grant approval figure, but the 

unforeseen work value had been handwritten on the bottom, with a 

signature.  

 

 

Management should ensure that invoices are 
paid only where there are no 
amendments/changes/revisions or 
eradicating fluid used. 

30 November 2018 

T
udalen 110



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.2.4 

 

Low 

For each of the 8 files selected, the Document record at the front of the 

file was completed for the pre-approval section but not the post-

approval. 

 

Discussion with the Grants Manager and the Lead Administrative 

Officer established that this section has never been completed. 

 

Management should ensure that the checklist 

is either completed in full or if the post-

approval checks are considered to be 

redundant then the checklist should be 

amended to reflect this. 

 

 

30 November 2018 

5.2.5 

 

Medium 

For 3 of the 8 files reviewed, the final payment had not been included 
on the reconciliation sheet (i.e. for Renovation Grant RA0*** and 
Empty Property Grants EPG0*** and EPG***). 

Management should remind staff that the 
reconciliation sheet should be completed in 
full and utilised as a check to ensure that the 
balance is correct. 

30 November 2018 

5.2.6 

 

Low 

For 2 of the 8 grants selected, an ‘acceptable invoice check’ had not 
been completed on the final payment, (Renovation Grant number 
RA0*** and Disabled Facility Grant number AD****). Note - the invoices 
were found to be acceptable for payment in both cases. 

Management should ensure that acceptable 

invoice checks are completed for all 

contractor payments.  

30 April 2019 

5.2.7 

 

Low 

For Renovation Grant RA****, a schedule of £12.21 had been included 
with 3 other schedules for unforeseen works, but had not been 
included in the Revised Grant Offer.  It was not clear if the schedule 
had been superseded or had not been included in error. 

Management should remind staff of the 
importance of retaining clear and accurate 
unforeseen works packages on file. 

30 November 2018 

5.2.8 

 

Low 

For Renovation Grant number RA****, the legal charge had been 
missed off the Cost Analysis document, but had been identified later 
and the charge placed. 

Staff should be reminded of the need to 
identify a legal charge at the Cost-Analysis 
stage. 

30 November 2018 

 

 

 

T
udalen 111



 
 

 
 

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

AUDIT NAME: GLYNTAFF CREMATORIUM 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 07/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

Glyntaff Crematorium is one of two crematoria within RCT. It is the centralised administrative office for the County Borough and is solely responsible for the 

issue of all funeral director invoices and the collection of subsequent income received for the Bereavement Service. 

Self-evaluation was first introduced to the Bereavement Service in 2009/10.  The process of self-evaluation requires Managers to certify - via a checklist - 

that the appropriate controls are either in place, or are to be addressed within the appropriate timescales. Glyntaff Crematorium complete and return a self-

evaluation checklist to Internal Audit annually. 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

The self-evaluation checklist consists of 52 standards that need to be reviewed.  Audit testing was carried out on a sample of transactions processed during 

financial year 2018/19.   

The objectives of the audit review were to ensure that:  

 All income due to the Council is identified and all collections are receipted and banked promptly and correctly.  

 Invoices are issued on a timely basis and paid promptly. 

 Receipts are retained in an orderly manner and are produced for all income received.  

 The Purchase Card is being used in accordance with guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service. 

 All confidential data is retained securely and electronic records/systems are backed up regularly and access restricted to authorised users. 

 Accurate and up to date records are maintained of all burials, graves and purchased graves. 

 

AUDIT OPINION 

Statutory Obligations 

The control environment in relation to Statutory Obligations is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report.   

The Burial and Cremation Administration System (BACAS) is used to administer the day to day functions of the Service.  A sample of 10 applications 

confirmed that all of the required application forms and documents were in place such as  Confirmatory Notice of Cremation, Application for Cremation, 

Medical Certificate and where necessary Coroners Reports. 

The purchase of plots is recorded on the ‘Register of Graves & Grants of Exclusive Rights of Burial’ ledgers and on BACAS. The owner of the plot is 

provided with a deed which is printed from the BACAS system.  

The Register of Graves & Grants Exclusive Rights of Burial ledgers are used to record each internment of each plot. The maximum number of interments for 

T
udalen 112



 
 

 
 

all plots is 4 and these are all recorded on the BACAS system.  

Information Management & I.T Security 

The control environment in relation to Information Management & I.T Security is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this 

report.   

The site has a number of fireproof safes in which the statutory ledgers for the service are held. In addition, access to the BACAS system is restricted to 

those members of staff that have a unique username and password. All information and the BACAS system are backed up remotely to servers at Bronwydd 

- no manual back-ups are required.  

Collections & Deposits / Receipts 

The control environment in relation to Collections & Deposits/Receipts is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.  

The site use the Webpaystaff system to record all income received directly on site. The system allows the site to take payments in person, over the phone 

and take card payments via chip and pin devices. Entries onto the Financials system are in real time. The system generates receipts which are given 

directly to or sent to customers (via email) and a copy retained on site. As a back up to the system, an income ledger is in place which is updated as and 

when income is received. 

Occasions were noted where details of payments had been recorded in the income ledger but no copy receipt was initially present in the main receipt file. 

These were later located and the income verified on the Financials system. It was also noted that no reference is made in the ledger to the corresponding 

receipts numbers, and that the income for both Taf and the Rhondda Cemeteries is not separately identifiable. While it is accepted that this is a back up 

system and mainly used for reference and statistical purposes, this report contains recommendations to ensure that the process operates effectively, and as 

intended by Management.   

As part of the cashing up process it was identified that each administrative officer (4 in total) completes their own individual bank paying in slip on a daily 

basis. As income is collected weekly by Loomis, there is the potential for up to 20 separate paying in slips to be associated with a single Loomis collection.  

Additionally, only one ‘official’ receipt is provided by Loomis and attached to the paying in book - (and it was noted that copy receipts are often taken by 

officers for their own records  although this is not routinely undertaken by all 4). This process is unnecessary and this report recommends a review of the 

cashing up process going forward.  

Good practice was noted in that merchant copies of credit and debit card transactions were being held securely, and were due to be destroyed in 

accordance with the Payment Card Policy (PCI).  

There is currently no Financial Procedures document in existence. This report recommends that a document is put in place for all staff going forward so that 

there is both a consistent working approach, and staff are aware of their roles and responsibilities. 

Purchase Card 

The control environment in relation to the Purchase Card is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.   

The Crematorium does not have its own Purchase Card.  When purchases are made, the Crematorium utilise the card held by an officer based at Trealaw 

Cemetery (who is the official cardholder). The cardholder travels between the Cemetery and the Crematorium as and when needed, with all administration 

of the card undertaken by staff at the Crematorium. 

While it is accepted that records were up to date at the time of the audit, and receipts were present for a sample of transactions, this report recommends 

T
udalen 113



 
 

 
 

that a second Purchase Card is obtained and retained at Glyntaff at all times. This will eliminate the need for travelling back and forth as and when the card 

is needed, and allow for the timely acquisition of goods/services. Separate transaction logs should be maintained to record each of the card transactions, 

with the records updated promptly and held separately going forward.  

Implementing the recommendations in the report will improve the control environment further. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.2 

 

Low 

There is currently no Financial Procedures document in place detailing 
the working practices and roles and responsibilities of staff. 

A Financial Procedures document should be 

introduced detailing the roles and 

responsibilities of staff and processes to be 

followed. 

 

This should be issued to all members of staff 

as a reference point for future 

processes/duties.  

01 December 2018 

5.1.1 

 

Medium 

The Webpaystaff system is used by staff to record all income received 

on site, with a backup ledger maintained and completed, as and when 

income is received. 

 

Review of the income records for July 2018 identified the following:  

 

• Occasions were identified where entries had been made in the 

income ledger but no Webpaystaff receipts were present.  These 

were later found and the income identified on Financials.  

• No reference is made in the ledger to the corresponding 

Webpaystaff receipt numbers. 

• The income ledger does not capture details of all income received - 

some of the smaller payments which had been processed through 

Webpaystaff were not recorded.    

• The same ledger is used to record income from both Taf and 

All income should be accurately receipted 

and entered into the income ledger, in 

accordance with the system intended by the 

Crematorium. 

All transactions should be supported by 

relevant receipts, with receipt numbers 

recorded against each transaction in the 

ledger(s).  This will allow the ledger entries to 

be matched to the corresponding 

Webpaystaff receipts with ease.  

Management should also consider using 

separate ledgers for each area i.e. one for 

Glyntaff and Taf and another for the 

Rhondda.  This could be facilitated by the 

inclusion of additional columns for the various 

01 December 2018 

T
udalen 114



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

Rhondda cemeteries.  

 

sources of income.   

 

This will also allow the Cynon area to be 

added with ease once the administrative 

functions are transferred to a single site.  

 

5.1.4 

 

Medium 

Discussions with the Crematorium Manager identified that a number of 

Funeral Directors pay invoices via the BACS system.  

 

Confirmation that a BACS payment has been received is currently 

obtained via an email from the Corporate & Frontline Services Income 

Team, requesting details of which financial codes the income should 

be coded to.   

 

However, as there is often a time delay between the receipt of BACS 

income and subsequent notification to the Crematorium of its receipt, it 

is possible for staff to follow up payment with Funeral Directors that 

has already been received. This situation is compounded by the fact 

that Crematorium staff are also unaware of how to identify BACS 

payments on Financials, and rely on the notification process from the 

Income Team.   

 

The Crematorium Manager has now been 

made aware of how to identify BACS 

payments, hence, it is possible for 

Crematorium staff to check whether 

payments have been received as a part of 

the income checking process.  

 

Consideration should be given to sending an 

email detailing invoices that will be paid via 

BACS to the Income Team along with the 

necessary financial codes to which the 

income should be coded.   

 

This should alleviate any unnecessary 

contact with Funeral Directors chasing 

payments which they may have already paid. 

 

01 December 2018 

5.2.1 

 

Medium 

The Crematorium does not have its own Purchase Card. Instead when 

purchases are made, they utilise the card held by an officer based at 

Trealaw Cemetery (who is the official cardholder). It was reported that 

the cardholder travels between the Cemetery and the Crematorium if 

The Crematorium Manager should obtain a 

second Purchase Card to retain at Glyntaff at 

all times. This will eliminate the need for the 

current cardholder to be travel back and forth 

01 December 2018 

T
udalen 115



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

the card is needed.  

The administration of the card is however undertaken by staff at 

Glyntaff Crematorium (see 5.2.2) and it was noted that records were up 

to date at the time of the audit and receipts were present for a sample 

of transactions.   

 

as and when the card is needed in Glyntaff. 

 

Separate transaction logs should be 

maintained to record each of the card 

transactions, with the second card and 

supporting documentation also held 

separately.   

 

5.2.2 

 

Medium 

Section 6 of the Cardholder Manual issued by the Procurement Service 

states that: 

‘Each Purchase Card transaction should be recorded on the 

transaction log as soon as the transaction is complete to ensure that 

no information is omitted’. 

 

Whilst there is a transaction log in place (and this was found to be up 

to date with details of the latest transactions), it was identified that this 

is updated retrospectively by staff at Glyntaff following receipt of the 

supporting receipts / vouchers from Trealaw Cemetery.   

It was also noted that the transaction log is one continuous list with no 

clear distinction from month to month. 

 

Details of all Purchase Card transactions 

should be promptly updated onto the 

Transaction Log immediately following a 

purchase.  The Transaction Log should then 

be used to reconcile the bank statements 

upon receipt.  

The transaction log should be split into 

monthly periods. This will help in the 

reconciliation process when comparing 

individual entries to the Barclaycard system.  

For each monthly period, the log for each 

card can be printed and retained along with 

the supporting documentation. 

 

01 December 2018 

T
udalen 116



 
 

 
 

AUDIT NAME: LLWYDCOED CREMATORIUM 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 07/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

Llwydcoed Crematorium is managed and administered by the Llwydcoed Crematorium Joint Committee, under the Local Government (Wales) Act 1994. 

The Committee is made up of nine members, five from Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC and four from Merthyr Tydfil CBC. In 1996 RCTCBC became the host 

authority for the Joint Committee. 

Self-evaluation was first introduced to the Bereavement Service in 2009/10.  The process of self-evaluation requires Managers to certify - via a checklist - 

that the appropriate controls are either in place or are to be addressed within the appropriate timescales. Llwydcoed Crematorium complete and return a 

self-evaluation checklist to Internal Audit annually. 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

The self-evaluation checklist consists of 52 standards that need to be reviewed.  Audit testing was carried out on a sample of transactions processed during 

financial year 2018/19.   

The objectives of the audit review were to ensure that: 

 Receipts are retained in an orderly manner and are produced for all income received.  

 The Purchase Card is being used in accordance with guidance and procedures issued by Procurement Services. 

 All confidential data is retained securely and electronic records/systems are backed up regularly and access restricted to authorised users. 

 Accurate and up to date records are maintained of all burials, graves and purchased graves. 

 

AUDIT OPINION 

Statutory Obligations 

The control environment in relation to Statutory Obligations is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report.   

The Burial and Cremation Administration System (BACAS) is used to administer the day to day functions of the Service.  A sample of 10 applications 

confirmed that all of the required application forms and documents were in place such as  Confirmatory Notice of Cremation, Application for Cremation, 

Medical Certificate and where necessary Coroners Reports. 

The purchase of plots is recorded on the ‘Register of Graves & Grants of Exclusive Rights of Burial’ ledgers and on BACAS. The owner of the plot is 

provided with a deed which is printed from the BACAS system.  

The Register of Graves & Grants Exclusive Rights of Burial ledgers are used to record each internment of each plot. The maximum number of interments for 

all plots is 4 and these are all recorded on the BACAS system.  

Information Management & I.T Security 

The control environment in relation to Information Management & I.T Security is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this 

T
udalen 117



 
 

 
 

report.   

The site has a number of fireproof safes in which the statutory ledgers for the service are held. In addition, access to the BACAS system is restricted to 

those members of staff that have a unique username and password. It should be noted that the site does encounter continuity issues in respect of network 

connection due to its isolated location. This can occasionally cause issues with the Webpaystaff system and network connected equipment such as chip 

and pin machines and receipt printer. 

Collections & Deposits / Receipts 

The control environment in relation to Collections & Deposits/Receipts is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.  

The site use the Webpaystaff system to record all income received directly on site. The system allows the site to take payments in person, over the phone 

and take card payments via chip and pin devices. Entries onto the Financials system are in real time. The system generates receipts which are given 

directly to or sent to customers (via email) and a copy retained on site. As a back up to the system, an income ledger is in place which is updated as and 

when income is received. 

One occasion was noted where details of a payment (£690.00) had not been recorded in the income ledger and no copy receipt was initially present 

(although this was later found). Evidence of a review of the income records by the Crematorium Supervisor was noted, although only on one occasion. The 

latest Self Evaluation document indicates that this practice would commence with effect from March 2018 and therefore this report recommends that this is 

undertaken on a monthly basis going forward, with appropriate evidence retained. Furthermore, if this process had been carried out more often the error 

identified would have been corrected sooner.   

It was also identified that merchant copies of credit and debit card transactions were being retained for slightly longer than the 6 month limit specified in the 

Payment Card Policy (PCI). 

Purchase Card 

The control environment in relation to the Purchase Card is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.   

Overall, the administration of the Purchase Card is in accordance with the procedures issued by the Council’s Procurement Service. The card holder 

updates the electronic transaction log as and when transactions occur, and the transaction log was found to be up to date at the time of the audit with details 

of the most recent purchases.  For purchases made via Amazon, whilst copies of the online orders were present, no invoices were available. This has 

implications for reclaiming VAT especially with Amazon third party suppliers outside of the UK.  

Implementing the recommendations in the report will improve the control environment further. 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.1 

 

Review of the income records for the period of June 2018 identified the 

following:  

It should be ensured that all income is 
accurately receipted and entered into the 

30 November 2018 

T
udalen 118



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

Low  

• One instance was noted whereby a payment (£690.00 received on 

27th June 2018) was identified on Financials as being banked yet no 

entry had been made in the income ledger and no supporting receipt 

was initially available (but this was later found).  

 

income ledger. All transactions should be 
supported by relevant receipts.   

5.1.2 

 

Medium 

On review of the income records it was noted that on 6th July 2018, the 

Crematorium Supervisor had certified the income ledger to indicate  

that records had been checked. No other instances of an independent 

review were identified.   

 

A review of the latest Self Evaluation document indicated that an 

independent review of income is undertaken, although no evidence 

was retained to support this.  The document also indicates that income 

would be reviewed and checked to Financials with evidence of this 

being retained with effect from March 2018 – however the site does not 

have access to the system. 

 

The Crematorium Manager should undertake 

a periodic (monthly) sample based review of 

physical income received on site to ensure 

that there are no anomalies and income 

records are accurately completed. 

 

The Crematorium Supervisor should ensure 

that the records are signed and dated as 

evidence of this process. 

 

Implemented 

5.1.3 

 

Medium 

In accordance with the Council’s Payment Card Policy Document, 

merchant copies of receipts in respect of credit card payments must be 

shredded after 6 months. 

 

A review of the receipts present identified that these dated back to 5th 

January 2018 – which is in excess of the 6 month time limit. 

 

The Crematorium Supervisor should ensure 

that merchant copies of receipts relating to 

credit and debit card payments are only held 

for 6 months.  

 

Receipts older than 6 months should be 

securely destroyed using a cross cut 

shredder.  

Implemented 

T
udalen 119



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.2.1 

 

Medium 

A review of purchase card transactions from April 2018 confirmed that 

all transactions were supported with documentary evidence of the 

purchase card transaction.  

 

However, it was noted that for Amazon purchases, whilst copies of the 

online orders were present, there were no supporting invoices showing 

the VAT breakdown.  Furthermore, as there are many companies who 

operate via the Amazon website, many of whom may not be VAT 

registered / located in the UK, in the absence of this information the 

VAT registration status of suppliers outside the UK cannot be verified.    

 

The Purchase Cardholder should ensure that 

VAT invoices for purchases made via 

Amazon are requested / received and 

retained along with the relevant copies of 

orders etc.  

 

The Purchase Card Manual has recently 

been updated to reflect the VAT treatment on 

the purchase of goods from suppliers outside 

the UK and it should be ensured that this 

guidance is followed going forward.  

 

Implemented  

 

 

 

T
udalen 120



 
 

 
 

CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES 

AUDIT NAME: ENERGY MANAGEMENT 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 09/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

The Council is a mandatory registered participant in the UK Government’s Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme (CRC) - an energy 

saving and carbon emissions reduction scheme for the UK. 

As a participant of the Scheme, the Council is required to produce an 'Evidence Pack', which is subject to audit by the CRC Regulator in Wales, Natural 

Resources Wales (NRW). The Pack must contain information describing the structure of the organisation and also explain the processes in place for 

measuring the consumption of energy. Essentially this defines the sources that need to be monitored / included in the Scheme. It must also contain the 'raw 

data' i.e. meter readings, invoices and calculations that record the consumption values themselves. Failure to comply may result in financial penalties. 

Since 2008 the Council has an annual obligation to display in buildings that are frequently visited by the public, a Display Energy Certificate (DEC) showing 

the buildings energy performance compared to a national benchmark. 

The DECs provide an energy rating of the building from A to G, where A is very efficient and G is the least efficient, and are based on the actual amount of 

metered energy used by the building over a period of 12 months. 

The Council must display a DEC in a prominent place clearly visible to the public and have in its possession or control a val id advisory report. The advisory 

report contains recommendations for improving the energy performance of the building. 

For buildings with a Gross Internal Area (GIA) of more than 1000m2, DECs must be renewed every 12 months. For buildings with a GIA of between 250m2 

- 999 m2, the DECs must be reviewed every 10 years. 

 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

In accordance with the Internal Audit Plan for financial year 2018/19, agreed by Audit Committee, a review of the reporting arrangements for the Carbon 

Reduction Commitment Scheme and the management surrounding DECs was undertaken. 

The specific control objectives examined were:    

 The Council can demonstrate that an Evidence Pack compliant with Natural Resources Wales is available to support the annual CRC report; and  

 The Council can demonstrate that it is complying with the regulation SI2008/647, the energy performance of buildings. 

 

AUDIT OPINION 

Overall the control environment in respect of the administration of DECs and the Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) is considered to be effective with 

opportunity for improvement. 

T
udalen 121



 
 

 
 

DECs 

There are efficient and effective procedures in place to administer and issue DECs. However, this review identified that:  

 Not all sites had a valid DEC in place. 

 Not all building managers are acknowledging the receipt of their DECs / advisory reports. 

 Not all building managers were able to physically locate the advisory reports produced by the Energy team. 

Ultimately, failure to display a valid DEC in a building may result in a fine. 

Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) 

The Council is required to compile an evidence pack that aims to demonstrate compliance with the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency 

Scheme (CRCEES). In readiness to submit the evidence pack to the CRCEES, Management requested that Internal Audit review the information. Internal 

Audit reviewed a sample of the evidence and is able to provide assurance that for the areas tested, evidence could be substantiated, for example, a sample 

of transactions identified that actual gas and electricity readings had been accurately reported. 

There were no findings identified during the review. 

Implementation of the recommendations included in the report will further enhance the internal controls in place. 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.1 

 

Medium 

A DEC shows a building’s energy performance compared to a national 

benchmark. 

 

Section 16 (2b) of the Energy Performance of Building (Certificates and 

Inspections) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 requires 

Organisations to place their Display Energy Certificates in a prominent 

position that are clearly visible and readable by the public who visit the 

facilities. 

 

In addition to the 2007 Regulation, the Welsh Language Standards 

require all signage to be bi-lingual (Welsh and English languages) 

 

A sample of 18 buildings were visited during the review and it was 

established that: 

The Government Regulations for DECs 

should be fully complied with.  

 

Management should ensure that all 

appropriate buildings have a valid DEC 

displayed. 

 

 

31 March 2019 

T
udalen 122



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

• 5 did not have a DEC displayed; and 

• 1 did not display the DEC in an appropriate public place and it 

was not bi-lingual. 

 

 

5.1.2 

 

Medium 

When the energy team issue a DEC in the post to a site, they enclose 

in the envelope a form to be completed and returned by the site 

manager to indicate receipt, and to confirm that it will be displayed in a 

prominent position for the public to view. 

 

All responses received are recorded on a database and follow up 

letters are sent where there has been no reply. 

 

Examination of the database at the time of audit identified that sites 

have failed to acknowledge 37 certificates being received from a total 

of 160 issued. 

 

Management should continue to issue 

reminder letters for all sites who fail to 

acknowledge receipt of the DECs. 

 

If considered necessary Senior Management 

should be informed of sites failing to respond 

for them to take the appropriate action. 

 

31 March 2019 

5.1.3 

 

Medium 

An Advisory Report contains details of how to improve the energy 

performance of the building. 

 

From a sample, only 5 of 18 sites visited were able to locate their 

reports. 

 

 

NOTE: Copies of the Advisory Reports for the sites noted above are 

also held by Corporate Estates. 

 

Management should provide copies of 
Advisory Reports to those highlighted in this 
report and conduct an exercise to establish 
which sites have / do not have a copy of their 
Advisory Reports and reissue. 

31 March 2019 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 123



 
 

 
 

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES  

AUDIT NAME: CARADOG PRIMARY SCHOOL 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 06/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

The self-evaluation process is designed to evaluate the effectiveness of a school’s financial and governance arrangements.  The process requires primary 

schools to complete a self-evaluation checklist against expected controls. 

Caradog Primary School was last subject to an Internal Audit Review in November 2014 and this was the third cyclical visit made to the School to examine 

progress made under the self-evaluation process. 

The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body at their Autumn Term 2018 meeting. 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

The checklist for chequebook primary schools comprises 155 standards that need to be in place. Audit testing was carried out on a sample of transactions 

processed during financial years 2017/18 and 2018/19. 

The objectives of the review were: 

 To ensure compliance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, this requires Governing Bodies to have arrangements for exercising their 

functions with a view to Safeguarding.   

 To ensure that the School Private Fund is appropriately administered in accordance with the requirements of the 2017 School Private Fund 

Regulations.    

 To ensure that the Purchase Card is being used in accordance with the guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service.   

 To ensure that all school meals income is identified, received and collected in accordance with Council Policy, arrears regularly reported and 

followed up and free meals only provided where entitlement has been confirmed by the Council.   

 To ensure that all orders raised by the School are appropriate and reflected in the budget, are correctly authorised and comply with Financial 

Regulations.  

 To ensure that the school’s budget has been approved by the Governing Body and that the budget set by the school complies with the ‘Fair Funding 

: Scheme for Financing Schools’, is in line with the funding available, individual budget heads are reasonable and that the budgetary information 

used for monitoring and reporting is complete, accurate and up to date. 

 To ensure that the opportunities for unauthorised use of the School's IT equipment are restricted, that computer hardware and software is 

adequately protected and that the School and Governing Body are appropriately registered under the Data Protection Act 1998. 

 To review the governance arrangements in place at the School. 

 To ensure that all Formula Funding Allocations are based on up to date and correct numbers of registered pupils, and an audit trail is maintained to 

ensure accountability and transparency of the numbers submitted.  

T
udalen 124



 
 

 
 

AUDIT OPINION 

Governance 

The control environment is respect of Governance is considered to be effective. 

The roles and responsibilities of the Governing Body and its sub committees have been set out in writing. The Governing Body and its sub committees have 

the requisite number of members and quorate levels for meetings are achieved. A Register of Business Interests is in place at the School and is updated 

annually. 

Whilst all statutory policies and documents are present, there are 2 policies currently under review and the Freedom of Information Policy has not been 

reviewed for a number of years. This report recommends that the Freedom of Information Policy be reviewed as soon as possible and that when policies 

and documents are reviewed, they are presented to the Governing Body for ratification (with this being clearly detailed in the Governing Body minutes and 

review dates clearly recorded on the front covers). 

Safeguarding & Educational Visits 

The control environment in relation to Safeguarding and Educational Visits is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this 

report. 

Testing identified that all staff received the appropriate clearances before commencing duties in their posts and all staff have received Safeguarding and 

Child Protection training. 

The School have a Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy, which is reviewed annually and there was documentary evidence at the School to confirm that 

all members of staff have received a copy of the Policy, and have read and understood it. 

The School make use of the EVOLVE system to record details of all off-site visits and staff are suitably qualified to make use of the system in accordance 

with the document 'Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits'.  

School Private Fund 

The control environment in relation to the School Private Fund is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.  

The Treasurer maintains detailed records, with an adequate audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions. The Ledger was found to be of an 

appropriate format and was up to date at the time of the review.  Income is banked weekly and the account reconciled to the bank statements monthly. 

For the current academic year all expenditure was solely for the benefit of the pupils / School in accordance with the School Private Fund Regulations and 

apart from 1 item of expenditure,  expenditure was supported with receipts / invoices. 

School Uniform is purchased and sold through the fund. However, discussions at the School established that the supplier also has an on line facility and 

parents are able to make purchases directly. This report recommends that the School cease selling School uniform to alleviate the extra workload 

associated with the task, and direct all parents to the online facility. 

Purchase Card 

The control environment in relation to the Purchase Card is considered to be effective. 

There is one Purchase card in operation at the School. A Transaction Log is maintained to record all expenditure and a card sharing log is in place to 

document occasions where the card is used by other members of staff.  

All purchases reviewed were supported with documentation i.e. receipts, invoices, and confirmation for on-line orders. ,However, 2 occasions were noted 

T
udalen 125



 
 

 
 

whereby appropriate VAT receipts had not been obtained from Amazon although the VAT for these purchases had been reclaimed. 

Purchasing 

The control environment in relation to the Purchasing system is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

From a sample of 5 orders examined, 4 had been raised in retrospect, hence the commitment to expenditure had not been properly authorised at the 

School, the budgetary information on SIMS is inaccurate (at a point in time) and furthermore, items could be accepted and paid for that were not part of the 

original request. This report therefore recommends that an official order (confirmation if made by telephone) should be raised as soon as a commitment to 

expenditure is known. 

School Meals 

The control environment in relation to the School Meals system is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

School meals income is recorded directly onto SIMS, with meal numbers provided to the Catering staff daily. Income is banked weekly and free school 

meals are only provided to pupils for whom eligibility has been confirmed and retained. 

The School regularly send reminders to parents in respect of dinner money arrears; at the time of the visit only 1 pupil had arrears in excess of the 2 week 

limit. 

School Budget 

The control environment in relation to the School Budget is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

SIMS is updated with details of School Income in a timely manner and a bank reconciliation is undertaken monthly. A regular review of the Budget is 

undertaken by the Headteacher and details of the School's budgetary position is reported to the Governing Body at every meeting. 

Data Protection & Security 

The control environment in relation to Data Protection & Security is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

The School is registered with the Information Commissioner. Data is backed up weekly by the School Clerk, with a copy held securely off site at all times. 

The inventory has recently been reviewed and ICT equipment is asset registered and marked as the property of the School. 

Formula Funding 

The control environment in relation to Formula Funding is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

Pupil numbers were reviewed and no discrepancies were noted. 

Implementation of the 6 recommendations contained within this report will enhance the control environment further. 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.1 

 

Whilst all statutory policies and documents were in place at the School, 
the Curriculum and Special Educational Needs policies were under 

All policies and documents should be 

regularly reviewed and presented to the 

Implemented  

T
udalen 126



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

Medium review at the time of the audit.  Additionally, the Freedom of 
Information Policy had not been reviewed for some time. 

Governing Body for ratification (with this 

being appropriately minuted).  

 

Details should be captured on the document 

covers i.e. date reviewed, date to be 

reviewed, signed and dated etc. 

 

5.2.1 

 

Medium 

Section 4.2 of the School Private Fund Regulations states that: 

‘All monies collected must be banked intact, in order that income can 

be traced and reconciled to bankings‘.  

 

Examination of the fund income for the current academic year 

identified 9 occasions whereby cash was withheld from income 

collected to provide refunds to parents.  It is however acknowledged 

that an appropriate record of these refunds was available at the 

School.  

 

 

All income received should be banked intact 

to ensure that it can be traced and reconciled 

to bankings. 

 

Alternative arrangements should be made in 

respect making refunds to parents in future, 

i.e. all payments made by cheque or financed 

from a cash float. 

 

 

Implemented 

5.2.2 

 

Medium 

Examination of the Fund expenditure for the period September 2017 to 

June 2018 identified 1 unreceipted item of expenditure.  While a 

‘Record of Expenditure Without Receipt Form’ is in place at the School, 

this payment had not been recorded: - 

 

£504.00 to Cafe Cwtch – Santa visit to Dare Valley Country Park  

  

In accordance with the School Private 

Regulations, care should be taken to ensure 

that all items of expenditure is supported by a 

relevant receipt / invoice / voucher as proof of 

payment.  

Where a receipt cannot be obtained, details 

of the purchase should be recorded on the 

Record of Expenditure Without Receipts 

Form, with two signatures provided as 

Implemented  

T
udalen 127



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

evidence of the amounts involved.   

 

5.2.3 

 

Low 

The school currently holds a small stock of School uniform for parents 

to purchase.   

 

Discussions at the School established that this is a historical 

arrangement and parents are also able to purchase the same uniform 

from the same supplier on-line. 

 

Consideration should be given to the sale of 
school uniform at the school being 
discontinued and all parents directed to the 
online facility.  

Implemented  

5.3.1 

 

Medium 

Although receipts were present to support all items of purchase card 
expenditure during March, April and May 2018, 2 occasions were 
noted whereby an appropriate VAT receipt had not been obtained, 
although VAT had been reclaimed. 

Every effort should be made to obtain 

appropriate VAT receipts where VAT is to be 

reclaimed. An appropriate VAT receipt should 

include: 

•details of the sale including the tax date;  

•the supplier‘s VAT registration number;  

•the amount paid for the goods or services; 

and  

•the amount of VAT that the supplier has 

charged to you. 

 

If a VAT receipt cannot be obtained and it is 

unknown as to whether the individual / 

company is VAT registered, it should be 

assumed that they are not, and therefore the 

gross amount should be treated as outside 

the scope.  

Implemented 

T
udalen 128



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.4.1 

 

Medium 

Examination of a sample of 5 completed purchase orders identified that 

4 were raised after receipt of the goods and/or the corresponding 

invoice.  

An official order (confirmation if made by 
telephone) should be raised as soon as a 
commitment to expenditure is known. This 
will ensure that the order has been 
authorised in the correct manner and that 
there is a hard copy of the items ordered at 
the School which can be used to check the 
subsequent delivery of goods and invoice. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 129



 
 

 
 

AUDIT NAME: HAWTHORN PRIMARY SCHOOL 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 06/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

The self-evaluation process is designed to evaluate the effectiveness of a School’s financial and governance arrangements. The process requires primary 

schools to complete a self-evaluation checklist against expected controls. 

Hawthorn Primary School was last subject to an Internal Audit Review in November 2014 and this is the third cyclical visit made to the School to examine 
progress made under the self-evaluation process. 

The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body at their Autumn Term 2018 meeting. 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

The checklist for chequebook primary schools  comprises 155 standards that need to be in place. Audit testing was carried out on a sample transactions 

processed during financial years 2017/18 and 2018/19. 

The objectives of the review were: 

 To review the Governance arrangements in place at the school. 

 To ensure compliance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, this requires Governing Bodies to have arrangements for exercising their functions 
with a view to Safeguarding. 

 To ensure that the School Private Fund is appropriately administered in accordance with the requirements of the 2017 School Private Fund Regulations. 

 To ensure that the Purchase Card is being used in accordance with the guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service. 

 To ensure that all school meals income is identified, received and collected in accordance with Council Policy, arrears regularly reported and followed 
up and free meals only provided where entitlement has been confirmed by the Council. 

 To ensure that all orders raised by the School are appropriate and reflected in the budget, are correctly authorised and comply with Financial 
Regulations. 

 To ensure that the School's budget has been approved by the Governing Body and that the budget set by the school complies with the 'Fair Funding: 
Scheme for Financing Schools’, is in line with the funding available, individual budget heads are reasonable and that the budgetary information used for 
monitoring and reporting is complete, accurate and up-to-date. 

 To ensure that the opportunities for unauthorised use of the School's I.T equipment are restricted, that hardware and software is adequately protected 
and that the School and Governing Body are appropriately registered under the Data Protection Act 2018. 

 To ensure that petty cash is held securely, expenditure properly incurred and the account is appropriately monitored and controlled. 

 To ensure that all Formula Funding allocations are based on up to date and correct numbers of registered pupils, and an audit trail is maintained to 

ensure accountability and transparency of the numbers submitted. 

AUDIT OPINION 

Governance 

T
udalen 130



 
 

 
 

The control environment is respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

The roles and responsibilities of the Governing Body and its sub committees have been set out in writing. The Governing Body and its sub committees have 

the requisite number of members and quorate levels for meetings are achieved. A Register of Business Interests is in place at the School and is updated 

annually. 

Whilst all statutory policies and documents were present, there are a number of policies that were not dated and therefore may not have been reviewed in 

line with statutory requirements. This report recommends that when policies and documents are reviewed, they are presented to the Governing Body for 

ratification with this being clearly detailed in the Governing Body minutes and the review dates clearly recorded on the front covers. 

Safeguarding & Educational Visits 

The control environment in relation to Safeguarding and Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

Testing identified that all Staff received the appropriate clearances before commencing duties in their posts and although it was indicated that a training 

update on Safeguarding was provided to staff during the 2017 Autumn Term, there is no formal record at the School to demonstrate which members of staff 

were in attendance. This report recommends that attendance sheets should be completed and retained at the School for any Safeguarding training 

undertaken by any member of staff. 

The School have a Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy, which is reviewed annually; however there was no documentary evidence at the School to 

confirm that all members of staff have received a copy of the Policy and have read and understood it. Similarly, the School has not formally made 

parents/guardians aware that the Policy is in existence. 

The School make use of the EVOLVE system to record details of all off-site visits and staff are suitably qualified to make use of the system in accordance 

with the document 'Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits'. 

School Private Fund 

The control environment in relation to the School Private Fund is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

The Treasurer maintains an adequate audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions.  A ledger is maintained and while this was up to date at the time 

of the review, it was not in an appropriate format. This report recommends that an appropriate ledger be introduced and maintained in a format which is in 

accordance with the School Private Fund Regulations. 

During the sample period examined some delays in banking were noted.  The account is reconciled to the bank statements monthly and for the current 

academic year all expenditure was solely for the benefit of the pupils / School in accordance with the School Private Fund Regulations and all spend was 

supported with receipts / invoices. 

Purchase Card 

The control environment in relation to the Purchase Card is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

There are 2 Purchase Cards at the School and there is a sufficient audit trail in respect of evidence being available that supports the expenditure for both 

cards. Audit testing identified that only 1 Transaction Log has been introduced at the School, this being updated with items of expenditure for both cards. 

This report recommends that a separate Transaction Log is maintained for each purchase card held for clarity. 

All purchases reviewed were supported with documentation i.e. receipts, invoices and confirmation for on-line orders; however, for Amazon purchases  

appropriate VAT receipts had not been obtained even though the VAT for these purchases had been reclaimed. 

T
udalen 131



 
 

 
 

School Meals 

The control environment in relation to the School Meals system is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

Dinner money is updated to SIMS and banked regularly, and the School manage their arrears in line with the Catering Finance School Meal Protocol. 

Testing identified that free school meals are only provided to those for whom eligibility has been confirmed and retained. 

It was however noted that the school meals income records are not regularly reviewed by an independent senior member of staff . This report recommends 

that a person independent of the collection and recording process (i.e. Headteacher or a senior member of staff) regularly reviews the central dinner money 

record (and subsidiary records) to ensure that these are complete, accurate and agree with deposits made at the bank. 

School Budget 

The control environment in relation to the School Budget is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

A regular review of the Budget is undertaken by the Headteacher and details of the School's budgetary position from SIMS is reported to the Governing 

Body at every meeting.  Pupil numbers were reviewed and no discrepancies were noted. 

Data Protection & Security 

The control environment in relation to Data Protection & Security is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

The School is registered with the Information Commissioner. Data is backed up regularly and confidential data is kept securely. However, it was noted that 

the inventory was not up to date and therefore this report recommends that a full inventory review of the School's assets be completed immediately (and 

thereafter, annually) to ensure that the record is accurate and up-to-date. 

Implementation of the recommendations contained within this report will enhance the control environment further. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.1 
 
Medium 

 

Whilst all statutory policies and documents were in place, it was difficult to 
establish when some of these were reviewed and  when they are due to be  
reviewed, ratified / presented to Governing Body due to the lack of information 
or detail included on the Policy document cover. 
 
While this was present on some occasions it was not the case for all policies 
and documents. It was also sometimes difficult to identify this from the 
Governing Body meeting minutes.  
 

 

The Headteacher and Governing Body should 
ensure that they implement a rolling programme of 
review of all School Policies.  This will ensure that 
all policies are up to date and reflect the current 
practices at the School.  
 

Any policies that are updated/amended need to be 
presented to the Governing Body for ratification 
with a record held of this (recorded via the 
minutes). Details should be captured on the 
document covers i.e. date reviewed, date to be 
reviewed, signed and dated etc.  

30
th
 November 2018 

T
udalen 132



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.2.1 

 

Medium 

Point 3.1 of the (Cwm Taf Safeguarding Children Board) Model 
Safeguarding Policy (that should be adopted by schools) states: 
 
'The Designated Senior Person (DSP) for Child Protection 
will......ensure that all staff have signed to say that they have received, 
read and understood the Child Safeguarding Policy.' 
 

Although it was noted that this is a typical procedure for all school 
Policies, on this occasion, the Headteacher could not provide evidence 
that the staff had received read, and understood the Child Protection 
Policy.  

Evidence should be kept at the School to 
demonstrate that all staff have received, read 
and understood the Policy. 

 

 

30
th
 November 2018 

5.2.2 

 

Medium 

Section 2.21 of the Keeping Learners Safe Guide 'Responsibilities of 
Governing Bodies / Proprietors' states: 
 
Governing bodies of maintained schools, governing bodies 
(Corporations) of FE institutions, and proprietors of independent 
schools should ensure that their respective organisations have 
effective child protection policies and procedures in place that are: 

 made available to parents or carers on request 
 

Discussions at the School established that the Policy has not yet been 
made available to parents. 

All parents must be made aware that there is 
a Child Protection Policy at the School. 
Consideration could be given to including the 
policy on the School website or by making 
reference to the existence of the policy within 
the School Prospectus. 

 

30
th
 November 2018 

5.2.3 

 

High 

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 
governing bodies and proprietors of independent Schools under the 
Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states that: 
 
'Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 
with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 
knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their 
responsibilities for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date 
by refresher training'. 

The Headteacher should ensure that 
Safeguarding training is renewed as and 
when required for all members of staff and 
those certificates are received and retained 
accordingly.  

 

The School should develop a central training 
record to demonstrate the date and level of 
safeguarding training alongside individual 

30
th
 January 2019 

T
udalen 133



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

 
The current requirements for safeguarding training are that Level 1 & 2 
needs to be renewed every 3 years and facilitated by RCT with Level 3 
provided every 2 years (in house refresher training can also be 
provided as and when required by Level 3 trained staff). 
 
While the School currently have 4 members of staff who are Level 3 
trained, it was noted that for 1 of these staff the last training provided 
was in January 2016 and is therefore due for renewal.  
 

An update on Safeguarding was also provided to staff during the 2017 
Autumn Term; however, there is no formal record at the School to 
demonstrate which members of staff were in attendance for the 
update. 

staff names. 

 

This could be incorporated into the Child 
Protection Policy to allow the assessment of 
training requirements to coincide with the 
Policy’s annual review.   

5.3.1 

Medium 

The entries in respect of Private Fund income / expenditure should allow for 
prompt reconciliation within each financial period. 
 
Examination of the current ledger revealed that it is not in an appropriate 
format, as individual loose leaf sheets are maintained for income and 
expenditure, and a running balance of the account is not recorded.  

An A4 Book should be introduced at the School to 
fulfil the requirements of a Private Fund ledger.   
 
All expenditure transactions should be clearly 
recorded against any income received for the 
same period. 
 
To ensure that an accurate balance of the School 
Private Fund is maintained, an additional column 
should be added to the ledger to allow a running 
balance to be recorded following each transaction.  

Implemented 

5.3.2 

 

Low 

Currently, the School only has 2 authorised cheque signatories for the School 
Private Fund. 

 

The School should update the current signatories 
for the School Private Fund account to include an 
additional signatory. 

Implemented 

5.3.3 

 

On the whole, School Private Fund income is banked regularly.  
 
However, 3 occasions were  noted whereby income was not banked in 

Management should ensure that income is banked 
more frequently, to reduce the risk associated with 
holding relatively large amounts of cash on the 

Implemented 

T
udalen 134



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

Low accordance with the School Private Fund Regulations:  
 

 23.5.18 - £261.11 for income collected between 1.5.18 – 23.5.18 

 22.5.18 - £350.00 for income collected between 12.3.18 – 22.3.18 

 15.2.18 - £762.00 for income collected between 18.1.18 and 1.2.18 

 

School premises.    

5.4.1 

 

Low 

Section 6 of  the Cardholder Manual for School document  issued by 
Procurement Services states that: 
'Each Purchasing Card transaction should be recorded on the transaction log 
as soon as the transaction is complete to ensure that no information is 
omitted'.  

 
The School has two purchase cards, one held by the School Clerk and one 
held by the Headteacher.  
 
However, there is only one Transaction Log in place which is updated as and 
when a purchase is made using each of the cards. 

Separate Transaction Logs should be maintained 
for each Purchase Card held at the School. 

Implemented 

5.4.2 

 

Medium 

Although receipts were present to support all items of purchase card 
expenditure, for the sample period tested (April and May 2018) no appropriate 
VAT receipts had been obtained for items purchased through Amazon 
although VAT had been identified and reclaimed.  

Every effort should be made to obtain appropriate 
VAT receipts where VAT is to be reclaimed. An 
appropriate VAT receipt should include: 

 details of the sale including the tax date;  

 the supplier‘s VAT registration number;  

 the amount paid for the goods or services; 
and 

 the amount of VAT that the supplier has 
charged to you. 

 
If a VAT receipt cannot be obtained and it is 
unknown as to whether the individual / company is 
VAT registered, it should be assumed that they 
are not, and therefore the gross amount should be 
treated as outside the scope.  

Implemented 

T
udalen 135



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.5.1 

 

Medium 

No independent review of the Dinner Money records is currently being 
undertaken. 

A person independent of the process of collecting 
and recording dinner money received (i.e. 
Headteacher or a senior member of staff) should 
regularly review the central Dinner Money record 
(and subsidiary records) and cross-reference to 
the deposits made at the bank to ensure that 
these are complete and accurate and that all 
Dinner Money received has been deposited 
promptly.   
 

At the end of each week, the Authorised Banking 
Return should be signed to certify that the record 
is a true reflection of collections and deposits that 
have occurred. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 136



 
 

 
 

AUDIT NAME: IN YEAR TRANSFER PROTOCOLS 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 30/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

Parents/carers can request to transfer schools at any time during the academic school year. 

For all pupils up to Year 9, parents/carers must complete an application form and submit it to the Council’s School Admissions team, who will administer and 

provide support to ensure the transfer is undertaken as quickly as possible. 

For pupils in Years 10 and 11, contact must first be made with the Headteacher of the school the child currently attends. This will enable an ‘Intention to 

Transfer School Form’ to be provided by the Headteacher to start the transfer process. Only a child’s current school can provide this ‘Intention to Transfer 

School Form’, which must be completed jointly between parents/carers and the school. Where the reason for the transfer request is not due to a house 

move or foster care placement, parents/carers will be invited to attend a meeting where representatives from both schools (current school, requested 

school) and a Local Authority Officer will be present to offer information, advice and guidance. 

A newly established Fair Access Protocol Panel (consisting of representatives from schools and the Council) has been established to deal with the more 

complex cases of school transfers in Secondary Schools. This panel meets once every three weeks and aims to resolve and implement transfers. 

 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

In accordance with the Internal Audit Plan for financial year 2018/19, agreed by Audit Committee, a review of the procedures for the accurate and timely 

transfer of pupils during a school year was undertaken. 

The primary purpose of the review is to provide management with an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the arrangements in place when 

administering In Year Pupil Transfers. The specific control objectives were: 

 To review a sample of in year transfers and identify if there are any unacceptable delays in the process; and 

 To ensure that the recently established Fair Access Protocol Panel is working appropriately. 

 

AUDIT OPINION 

Overall, the control environment in relation to In Year Transfers is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

The School Admissions Code 3.17 states that ‘applications must be considered without delay and a formal decision either to offer or to refuse a place made 

and notified to the applicant within 15 school days or 28 calendar days, whichever is sooner’. Internal Audit is able to provide assurance that the majority of 

In Year Transfers that took place between September 2017 and July 2018 were in accordance with the required timescales. 

It was identified that there were 1,089 primary school and 252 secondary school In Year Transfers during 2017/18, this number having reduced annually 

over the past 3 years as follows:  

T
udalen 137



 
 

 
 

Phase 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Number of Primary School In 
Year Transfers 

1,276 1,048 1,089 

Number of Secondary School 
In Year Transfers 

358 314 252 

Total 1,634 1,362 1,341 

 

Where applications were processed outside of the required timescales, Internal Audit selected a sample in order to visit the relevant schools and seek 

feedback from Headteachers as to why these delays may have occurred. This feedback suggested that there is often a lack of timely information sharing 

between Schools/School Admissions/Parents as part of the process and more clarity is required in respect of the expectation of schools in relation to their 

involvement.      

Centrally, the School Admissions system is used to maintain pupil information, including the recording of notes made during a school transfer to 

highlight/monitor any issues for delay. A review of the School Admissions system for a sample of 1,049 In Year Transfers identified that 75 transfers had not 

been administered within the prescribed timescales of 15 days. Of these 75 In Year Transfers, adequate reasons were provided/noted on the system for all 

but 11 transfers, whereby no reasons/notes could be provided or had been recorded on the School Admissions system to evidence the reasons for the 

delays and to provide a trail of information. 

A Fair Access Protocol Panel was established in April 2018 to deal with the more complex cases of transfers in secondary schools. From a review of this 

process together with feedback from schools, it is apparent that the Panel process is working appropriately and many schools have highlighted positive 

feedback insofar as it provides more independence to the process.  

This report does however contain recommendations relating to the level and timeliness of information provided to the Panel to ensure that the transfer 

process is not unnecessarily delayed due to a lack of sufficient detail in the information being presented, or transfer requests made which do not necessarily 

meet the Panel’s criteria.   

Implementation of the recommendations included in the report will further enhance the internal controls in place. 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.1 

 

High 

The School Admissions Code point 3.17 states the following - 

 

‘Anyone expressing an interest in admission must be given an 

application form at the first point of contact. Once received, such 

In accordance with the Starting School 

Booklet and system intended by the LEA, all 

‘In Year Admissions And Transfers’ 

application forms should be obtained from 

30 September 2019 

T
udalen 138



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

applications must be considered without delay and a formal decision 

either to offer or to refuse a place should be made and notified to the 

applicant within 15 school days or 28 calendar days whichever is the 

sooner. Applicants must not be refused the opportunity to make an 

application, or told that they can only be placed on a waiting list rather 

than make a formal application’. 

 

For the sample period September 2017 to July 2018, it was established 

that the vast majority of In Year Transfers are undertaken within these 

timescales. However, some were identified which are not, with 12 of 

these being of particular concern (please refer to 5.1.3).  

 

To establish reasons for delays, a sample of Schools were visited 

during the review to ensure that the current procedure is being 

followed.    

 

The ‘Starting School‘ book states: - 

‘If you decide that you would like your child to transfer from one school 

to another, please contact their present Headteacher first to alert them 

of your decision’ 

 

However, discussion with a sample of Headteachers revealed the 

following: 

 

• The documented process is not always followed by parents, who 

sometimes obtain an ‘In Year Admissions And Transfers’ application 

form from either the new School or School Admissions. 

Headteachers are therefore unaware of the request being made and 

are unable to discuss the reason for the transfer (and possibly help 

the pupil’s current school. This will allow the 

present Headteacher to be alerted of a 

decision to leave.  

 

 

 

 

 

Upon receipt of an ‘In Year Admissions And 

Transfers’ application form, School 

Admissions should check to ensure that the 

School has been notified.  This could be 

facilitated by a tick box on the form which 

could be completed by School Admissions as 

confirmation that the School has been made 

aware of the decision. 

 

A scanned copy of the application should be 

forwarded to both Schools involved, together 

with any other relevant information which will 

provide the new school with a ‘fuller’ picture 

of the pupils needs. 

 

T
udalen 139



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

alleviate future transfers occurring). 

 

• Notification of a new pupil being transferred to a School is usually 

received via an email or phone call from School Admissions 

confirming that a pupil is due to start.  Hence, key information on the 

pupil such as SEN, LAC, Health, Academic Levels, Social Workers, 

Safeguarding issues may be unknown until after the pupil 

commences in their new school.   

 

• For pupils transferring from outside the area, minimal information is 

also available – as above.   

 

• Where families transfer from overseas, it is currently the 

responsibility of the School to pursue and carry out checks on birth 

certificates, passports, visa’s etc.  However many of the Schools 

visited were unaware of what checks should be undertaken on these 

documents.                    

• Occasions have arisen where pupils have transferred from an 
address out of the catchment area due to a house move. Where the 
move has subsequently failed to transpire (yet the pupil has still 
transferred schools), attendance issues have occurred due to the 
daily distances being travelled from the pupils original home 
address.  This risk would be minimised if documentary evidence of 
proof of address/tenancy was sought at the time of the transfer 
application being considered.    

5.1.2 

 

Medium 

Discussions with a sample of Headteachers established that they are 

not able to request a pupil‘s Common Transfer Files (CTF) until after a 

pupil has transferred to their School. As a consequence, Schools are 

not fully aware of a pupil’s history (both personal and academic) and 

Management should remind Schools that 
CTF Files can be requested prior to the pupil 
transferring should they require additional 
pupil information prior to their start date. 

31 January 2019 

T
udalen 140



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

find planning for a pupil transferring to their School more difficult as a 

result. 

 

However, the Head Of Service Transformation & Data Systems 

confirmed that this is incorrect and Headteachers are able to request a 

pupil’s CTF prior to them commencing at their new School. 

 

  

5.1.3 

 

Medium 

The School Admissions system is used to maintain pupil information, 

including the recording of notes made during a school transfer to 

highlight/monitor any issues or reasons for delay. 

 

11 In Year Transfers were identified during the review as taking longer 

than the 15 day timescale. However, a review of the supporting 

information revealed that a note had not been made on the School 

Admissions computer system to highlight why these delays occurred. 

 

It should be ensured that the School 
Admissions system is updated with 
appropriate notes to document the history of 
a pupil’s transfer and any obstacles which 
may have prevented the transfer occurring in 
accordance with the timescales. 

30 November 2018 

5.2.1 

 

Medium 

A newly established Fair Access Protocol (FAP) Panel has been 

piloted since April 2018 to deal with the more complex cases of school 

transfers in Secondary Schools. The Panel consists of representatives 

from Schools and the Council. This Panel meets once every three 

weeks and aims to resolve and implement transfers in a more efficient 

manner. 

 

A sample of Secondary Schools were visited during the audit review to 

establish feedback in relation to the Fair Access Protocol Panel. 

 

Whilst overall, Schools provided positive feedback that the FAP Panel 

Management should ensure that the 

minimum information required to make an 

informed decision is available for 

presentation and review at each FAP Panel 

meeting for all transfer cases.  

 

A detailed specification of the minimum 

requirements for referral to the FAP Panel 

should be determined, both for transparency 

of the process and to avoid the possibility of 

receiving any inappropriate referrals that 

28 February 2019 

T
udalen 141



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

has greatly increased the transparency in relation to transferring the 

more complex pupils between Schools, the following issues were  

noted:   

 

• As FAP Panels meet every 3 weeks, depending on the timing of the 

referral there is a potential for a delay in the transfer request being 

received and reviewed.  

• There is a minimum level of information that is required for a FAP 

referral to be processed and this may vary on a case by case basis 

(depending on the pupil).  1 occasion was identified where the 

minimum information had not been obtained for the Panel meeting 

and the request could not be reviewed.  This was subsequently 

added to the next Panel 3 weeks later.  

 

• For all FAP Panel referrals, the LEA provide the School with 20 

hours of additional funding for each pupil transferred.  There is 

currently no detailed specification of the minimum requirements to 

meet the criteria for a FAP referral to demonstrate the rationale 

behind which cases are reviewed and transparency in the process.       

 

could be dealt with outside of the Panel 

process.    

 

Management may also wish to consider the 

feedback from Headteachers to ensure their 

continued support of the FAP Panel, allowing 

more complex transfers to be processed in a 

timely manner, and pupils placed at their new 

School more efficiently.  

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 142



 
 

 
 

AUDIT NAME: MISKIN PRIMARY SCHOOL 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 08/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

The self-evaluation process is designed to evaluate the effectiveness of a school’s financial and governance arrangements. The process requires primary 

schools to complete a self-evaluation checklist against expected controls. 

Miskin Primary School was last subject to an Internal Audit Review in November 2014 and this is the third cyclical visit made to the School to examine 

progress made under the Self Evaluation process. 

The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body at their Autumn Term 2018 meeting. 

 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

The checklist for non-chequebook primary schools comprises 105 standards that need to be reviewed. Audit testing was carried out on a sample of 

standards, using transactions processed during financial year 2018/19. 

The objectives of the review were: 

 To ensure compliance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, this requires Governing Bodies to have arrangements for exercising their 

functions with a view to Safeguarding. 

 To ensure that the School Private Fund is appropriately administered in accordance with the requirements of the 2017 School Private Fund 

Regulations. 

 To ensure that the Purchase Card is being used in accordance with the guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service. 

 To ensure that all School meals income is identified, received and collected in accordance with Council Policy, arrears regularly reported and 

followed up and free meals only provided where entitlement has been confirmed by the Council. 

 To ensure that all orders raised by the School are appropriate and reflected in the budget, are correctly authorised and comply with Financial 

Regulations. 

 To ensure that all Formula Funding allocations are based on up to date and correct numbers of registered pupils, and an audit trail is maintained to 

ensure accountability and transparency of the numbers submitted. 

 To ensure that the opportunities for unauthorised use of the School's IT equipment are restricted, that computer hardware and software is 

adequately protected and that the School and Governing Body are appropriately registered under the Data Protection Act 2018. 

 

AUDIT OPINION 

Governance 

The control environment is respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

T
udalen 143



 
 

 
 

The roles and responsibilities of the Governing Body and its sub committees have been set out in writing. The Governing Body and its sub committees have 

the requisite number of members and quorate levels for meetings are achieved. A Register of Business Interests is in place at the School and is updated 

annually. 

Whilst all statutory policies and documents are present, and show evidence of a review within the last 12 months, it could not be evidenced that they had 

been formally reviewed by the Full Governing Body. This report recommends that when policies and documents are reviewed, they are presented to the 

Governing Body for ratification with this being clearly detailed in the Governing Body minutes. 

Safeguarding & Educational Visits 

The control environment in relation to Safeguarding and Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

Testing identified that all staff received the appropriate clearances before commencing duties in their posts. While good practice is noted in that Level 3 

Safeguarding training was provided to all staff employed at the School on 1st September 2016, no refresher training has been provided since (note: 

fieldwork for this audit took place in October 2018). In addition, this audit confirmed new staff members had joined the School during this time, but they had 

not received Level 1 or 3 training. It is accepted that all staff at the School have been booked to attend the relevant training by the end of the Autumn Term; 

this report recommends that Safeguarding training is renewed / provided in line with the current requirements. 

The School have a Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy, which is reviewed annually, and there was documentary evidence at the School to confirm 

that all members of staff have received a copy of the Policy, have read and understood it. 

The School make use of the EVOLVE system to record details of all off-site visits and staff are suitably qualified to make use of the system in accordance 

with the document 'Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits'. 

School Private Fund 

The control environment in relation to the School Private Fund is considered to be effective. 

The Treasurer maintains an adequate audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions. A ledger is maintained and whilst this was up to date at the time 

of the review, was not in the correct format. This report recommends that an appropriate ledger be introduced and maintained in a format which is in 

accordance with the School Private Fund Regulations. 

The account is reconciled to the bank statements monthly and for the previous academic year (2017/18) all expenditure was solely for the benefit of the 

pupils / school in accordance with the School Private Fund Regulations and all was supported with receipts / invoices. 

Purchase Card 

The control environment in relation to the Purchase Card is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

There are 2 Purchase Cards at the School and there is a sufficient audit trail in respect of evidence being available that supports the expenditure for both 

cards. Audit testing identified that only 1 Transaction Log has been introduced at the School, this being updated with items of expenditure for both cards on 

receipt of the Bank Statement. This report recommends that a separate Transaction Log is maintained for each purchase card held for clarity and that the 

logs are updated immediately a purchase is made. 

All purchases reviewed were supported with documentation i.e. receipts, invoices and confirmation for on-line orders. 

School Meals 

The control environment in relation to the School Meals system is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

T
udalen 144



 
 

 
 

Dinner money is updated to SIMS and banked regularly, and the School manage their arrears in line with the Catering Finance School Meal Protocol. 

Testing identified that free school meals are only provided to those for whom eligibility has been confirmed and retained, and the school meals income 

records are regularly reviewed by an independent senior member of staff to ensure that these are complete, accurate and agree with deposits made at the 

bank. 

School Budget 

The control environment in relation to the School Budget is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

A regular review of the Budget is undertaken by the Headteacher and details of the School’s budgetary position is reported to the Governing Body at every 

meeting.  Pupil numbers were reviewed and no discrepancies were noted. 

Data Protection & Security 

The control environment in relation to Data Protection & Security is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

The School is registered with the Information Commissioner. School data is backed up regularly and confidential data is kept securely. 

The School Inventory is up to date and ICT equipment is asset registered. 

Implementation of the recommendations contained within this report will enhance the control environment further. 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.1 

 

High 

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 

governing bodies and proprietors of independent Schools under the 

Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states that: 

 

'Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 

with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 

knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their 

responsibilities for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date 

by refresher training'. 

 

The current requirements for safeguarding training are that Level 1 & 2 

needs to be renewed every 3 years and facilitated by RCT with Level 3 

training provided every 2 years (in house Level 1 refresher training 

should also be delivered annually by Level 3 trained staff). 

The Headteacher should ensure that 

Safeguarding training is renewed as and 

when required for all members of staff.  

 

The School should develop a central training 

record to demonstrate the date and level of 

safeguarding training alongside individual 

staff names. 

 

This could be incorporated into the Child 

Protection Policy to allow the assessment of 

training requirements to coincide with the 

Policy’s annual review.   

 

30 November 2018 

T
udalen 145



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

 

While all staff employed at the School on 1st September 2016 

undertook Level 3 training, the training has now expired and a further 8 

members of staff have commenced employment at the School. 

 

NB. It is acknowledged that on being made aware of these 

requirements, the Headteacher made arrangements for all staff to 

undertake appropriate training in line with the requirements. 

 

5.1.2 

 

Low 

Comparison of the School's list of staff to the Vision system identified 2 

casual members of staff on Vision but not on the School’s list. 

 

It was established that both members of staff no longer work at the 

School. 

Where staff leave, the Headteacher must 

ensure that Human Resources are informed 

so that the Vision system can reflect those 

changes. 

 

30 November 2018 

5.2.1 

 

Medium 

All statutory policies and documents were in place at the School and 

were found to have been reviewed within the last year i.e. they were all 

signed and dated by the Chair of Governors during October 2017. 

 

It was not evident within the Governing Body minutes whether some 

policies / documents have been formally ratified by the Full Governing 

Body. 

 

The Headteacher and Governing Body 

should ensure that any policies that are 

updated/amended are presented to the Full 

Governing Body for ratification with a record 

held of this (recorded via the minutes). 

 

 

30 November 2018 

5.4.1 

 

Medium 

Section 6 of  the Cardholder Manual for School document  issued by 

Procurement Services states that: 

 

'Each Purchasing Card transaction should be recorded on the 

Separate Transaction Logs should be 

maintained for each Purchase Card held at 

the School. 

 

Implemented  

T
udalen 146



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

transaction log as soon as the transaction is complete to ensure that 

no information is omitted' 

 

The School has two purchase cards, one held by the School Caretaker 

and one held by the Headteacher.  

 

However, there is only one Transaction Log in place at the School - 

this being used to record the transactions in respect of both cards. 

 

Additionally, it is only updated   on receipt of the bank statement and is 

therefore not an up to date record of expenditure. 

 

Details of all Purchase Card transactions 

should be promptly updated onto the 

transaction log. 

 

The Transaction Log should then be used to 

reconcile to the Bank Statements. 

 

T
udalen 147



 
 

 
 

AUDIT NAME: MOUNTAIN ASH COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 06/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

Mountain Ash Comprehensive School is an 11 to 18 mixed English school serving the town of Mountain Ash and its surrounding villages.  There are 870 

pupils on roll, of which, there are 76 in the sixth form.  The proportion of pupils eligible for a free school meal currently stands at 37% which is above the 

national average. 

The total budget for the School for the current financial year is in excess of £3.9m. 

Mountain Ash Comprehensive School was last subject to a routine Audit review in January 2016, and since the review, a new Headteacher and School 

Bursar have been appointed. 

The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body at their Autumn Term 2018 meeting. 

 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

All financial systems in operation were considered and an assessment carried out in consultation with the Headteacher and Chair of Governors to identify 

those areas representing the highest risk to the School, and therefore necessitating review. 

On the basis of this assessment, audit testing was carried out on the following areas of administration: 

- Governance; 

- Safeguarding; 

- School Private Fund; 

- Purchasing; 

- Purchase Card; and 

- Budgetary Control. 

 

AUDIT OPINION 

Governance 

The control environment in respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

While the roles and responsibilities of the Governing Body and its sub committees have been set out in writing, this review has identified that committee 

membership for some statutory committees needs to be reviewed. Governing Body meetings are clerked by the School Manager with copies of all minutes 

and agendas being held.  However as this is being done electronically, requirements in respect of signing Governing Body minutes are currently not being 

followed. 

The financial limits for delegated authority have been formally agreed and minuted, and staff involved in the financial decision making process have these 

T
udalen 148



 
 

 
 

responsibilities delegated in their job descriptions. A Register of Business Interests is in place at the School; however 4 declarations were not present at the 

time of audit.  There is currently 1 parent Governor vacancy; however it is acknowledged that the Clerk to the Governors has advertised to fill the position. 

Safeguarding 

The control environment in respect of Safeguarding & Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

The School has established a Safeguarding & Child Protection Policy; however this Policy has not been signed in accordance with the Cwm Taf 

Safeguarding Children Guidelines.  Additionally, no evidence could be found at the School during the visit to demonstrate that each member of staff had 

received and read the Policy. It was also found that conflicting information had been provided to parents regarding the availability of the Policy on the School 

website (no copy could be located online).   A record is held at the School of staff who have been DBS checked and testing confirmed that no staff 

commenced employment at the school prior to the completion of the required pre-employment checks. 

Level 1 training has been provided to the whole school, although there was no evidence available to demonstrate that 8 members of staff have received 

formal training. 

The School use the EVOLVE system to record details of residential / adventurous trips. Care should be taken to ensure that all trips/activities are entered 

within the correct timescales as this had not been done for 3 of the 5 trips examined. For routine off-site visits such as sporting fixtures/tournaments the 

Headteacher should ensure that all are entered onto the EVOLVE system within the correct timescales as stated within the document 'Planning and 

Approval Procedures for Educational Visits', with staff made fully aware of their responsibilities. 

School Private Fund 

The control environment in respect of the School Private Fund is considered to be effective. 

The Treasurer maintains detailed records, with a clear audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions.  The account is subject to regular reconciliation 

and a copy of the most recent bank mandate is held on file. Evidence to support private fund expenditure incurred is also available at the School and there 

were no instances noted of fund expenditure that was not in line with the School Private Fund Regulations. 

The School has standardised the process and records to be used for administering trips, and the procedures are being followed by staff with the records 

examined found to contain both consistent and sufficient detail of income and expenditure transactions.  It was however identified that a Statement of 

Account is not routinely completed at the conclusion of any trip. This is the only finding noted for the School Private Fund area and this recommendation had 

also been made previously. 

Purchasing  

The control environment is respect of the Purchasing system is considered to be effective. 

There is a process in place in that all purchases are authorised by the budget holder prior to committing the School to expenditure. From a sample of 10 

completed orders, all had been authorised in accordance with this procedure and all payments in the sample examined were supported by valid VAT 

invoices. However, from a sample of 5 non-order invoice payments examined, it is likely that a prior request would have been made for the services 

provided / goods requested for 4 payments and consequently, official Purchase Orders should have been raised on SIMS beforehand.  It was not evident 

that the cheque signatories examine documentation prior to authorising cheques. 

Purchase Card 

The control environment in respect of the Purchase Card is considered to be insufficient and requires improvement. 

T
udalen 149



 
 

 
 

There are 3 Purchase Cards at the School.  It was identified one of the Card Holders does not update their Transaction Log, this being done retrospectively 

by the School Manager.  Occasions were also identified whereby the School Manager had also updated the Transaction Log in respect of the third card.  

The Transaction Log maintained by the School Manager is however updated correctly as and when transactions occur. A review of the Transaction Logs 

revealed that eradicating fluid had also been used. 

During the sample period examined there were 2 occasions where books had been ordered and delivered to a teacher's home address. It was established 

that this member of staff had details of the School Purchase Card saved to their home device, allowing purchases to be made without physically obtaining 

the card.  It is acknowledged that the School Manager made repeated requests to delete the card details, and while the expenditure was accounted for this 

practice contravenes protocol and should be discontinued.  2 of the 3 Purchase Cards are held with the Cardholders at all times (including evenings, 

weekends, school holidays etc.) and although a Purchase Card Sharing Log is in place at the School, the date / times the card is taken / returned is not 

always recorded. 

Receipts were present to support all items of purchase card expenditure for the 2 month sample period tested; however, 12 occasions were noted whereby 

an appropriate VAT receipt had not been obtained, even though  VAT had been reclaimed.   

Purchase Card transactions are not easily identifiable within SIMS as no reference to the Purchase Card is made when undertaking Cash Book Journals. 

Budgetary Control 

The control environment in respect of Budgetary Control is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

The School has set a deficit budget for the current financial year and work closely with the Local Education Authority to review the plan and take the 

required action if circumstances change.   

At a Finance Sub Committee meeting of the 20
th
 November 2017 Governors specified 'the possibility of tightly monitoring spend on capitation with the 

potential to make some savings'. The School Manager stated that individual budget holders are provided with a Cost Centre Transaction Listing each term 

but no guidance has been given to staff as to the level of budget monitoring to be undertaken. This report recommends that the School consider introducing 

manual Budgetary Control sheets and guidance notes for Budget holders to record all instances of income, committed and actual expenditure. These can 

then be compared, along with copy orders / requisitions, to the SIMS transaction reports upon receipt. 

The implementation of the recommendations made within this report will enable the Headteacher to further enhance the standard of administration at the 

School. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.1 

 

Medium 

Section 47 of 'The Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) 

Regulations 2005 states that: 

 

'The Clerk...must ensure that minutes of the proceedings of a meeting 

In line with statutory requirements, all 

governing body and sub-committee meeting 

minutes should be signed and all original 

paper copies retained at the school.   

Implemented 

T
udalen 150



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

of the Governing Body are drawn up and signed by the Chair...Minutes 

of proceedings must be entered into a book kept for the purpose by the 

Clerk or on loose leaf pages consecutively numbered; but in that case 

the person signing the minutes must initial each page.'  

 

All minutes are held electronically by the Clerk to the Governing Body.  

Of the 14 sets of minutes examined, only 4 sets had been signed by 

the Chair of Governors. 

 

 

Where minutes are loose-leaf, each page 

should be initialled and the last page signed 

and dated. 

 

 

5.1.2 

 

Medium 

Section 2.9 of the Scheme for Financing Schools states that: 

 

'Governing bodies are required to establish a register of business 

interests...which lists for each member of the governing body and the 

Head Teacher any business interests they or any member of their 

immediate family have. The register must be kept up-to-date by 

notification of changes from governors and the Head Teacher, and 

through an annual review process'. 

 

Although a register has been established, no declaration was present 

for 4 Governors. 

 

A declaration of business interests register 

should be completed on an annual basis 

which details the business interests of all 

Governors, the Headteacher and any other 

staff who may influence financial decisions at 

the School. 

 

Care should be taken to ensure that a 

declaration is completed by every Governor 

as soon as possible after the start of the 

academic year 2018/2019. 

 

Implemented 

5.1.3 

 

Medium 

Section 54(2) of 'The Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) 

Regulations 2005' states that: 

 

'The Governing Body must determine the constitution, membership 

and terms of reference of any committee it decides to establish and 

review them annually.' 

The Clerk to the Governing Body should 

ensure that when membership for each Sub-

Committee is determined, appointments 

made should be in accordance with the RCT 

recommended Committee Structure and 

Terms of Reference. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 151



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

 

Whilst the Governing Body's composition and committee structure has 

been established, the membership in respect of the following 4 sub 

committees is not in accordance with the recommended 

structure/numbers:  

• Finance; 

• Pupil Discipline; 

• Performance Management Appraisers; and 

• Performance Management Appeal Appraisers. 

 

 

 

5.1.4 

 

Medium 

Section 43(d) of The Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) 

Regulations 2005 states: 

 

'The Clerk to the Governing Body must maintain a register of 

governors' attendance at meetings' 

 

Of the 14 sets of minutes examined, attendance sheets were only 

present for 7.  

 

The Clerk to the Governing Body should 

retain registers of Governor attendance for all 

Governing Body meetings (including sub-

committees). 

 

All Governing Body members should ensure 

that they sign to confirm their attendance. 

 

 

Implemented 

5.1.5 

 

Low 

The membership of Governing Bodies is set out in chapter 3 of The 

Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005, which 

specifies that the composition of the Governing Body should consist of 

20 Governors. 

 

Audit testing established that there is currently 1 Parent Governor 

vacancy. 

 

The school should continue to endeavour to 
fill the Governor vacancy as soon as 
possible. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 152



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.6 

 

High 

All statutory policies and documents were requested during the audit 

fieldwork. Not all policies / documents were provided and there were 

some that had not been reviewed in line statutory requirements.  

 

 

 

The Headteacher and Governing Body 

should ensure that all statutory policies and 

documents are in place at the School.  

A rolling review programme of all Policies 

should be introduced to ensure that all 

policies are up to date and reflect the current 

practices at the School.  

 

Following the rolling programme of review, 

policies should be presented to the 

Governing Body for review and ratification 

(and this should be minuted).  

 

Details of review should be captured on the 

document covers i.e. date reviewed, date to 

be reviewed, signed and dated etc. 

 

31 December 2018 

5.2.1 

 

Medium 

Point 3.1 of the (Cwm Taf Safeguarding Children Board) Model 

Safeguarding Policy (that should be adopted by schools) states: 

'The Designated Senior Person (DSP) for Child Protection 

will......ensure that all staff have signed to say that they have received, 

read and understood the Child Safeguarding Policy.' 

 

No evidence could be located at the School during the audit  visit to 

demonstrate that the staff had received, read and understood the latest 

Child Protection Policy. 

 

Additionally, the Child Protection Policy has not been signed by the 

The Child Protection Policy should be signed 

and dated by each designated member of 

staff with Child Protection responsibility, 

including the Chair of Governors and the 

Governor with designated Child Protection 

responsibility. 

 

The Designated Senior Person should also 

ensure that all members of staff sign to 

demonstrate that they have received, read 

and understood the Child Protection Policy. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 153



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

Headteacher or the 3 members of staff with designated Child 

Protection responsibility. 

 

 

5.2.2 

 

Low 

Section 2.21 of the Keeping Learners Safe Guide 'Responsibilities of 

Governing Bodies / Proprietors' states: 

“Governing bodies of maintained schools, governing bodies 

(Corporations) of FE institutions, and proprietors of independent 

schools should ensure that their respective organisations have 

effective child protection policies and procedures in place that are 

made available to parents or carers on request”. 

 

While reference is made to Child Protection and Safeguarding within 

the School Prospectus, it states that the Safeguarding Policy is 

available to view on the School Website – however no such Policy was 

available to view on the School’s website at the time of the visit.  

 

In accordance with the intentions of the 
School, the Child Protection Policy should be 
made available on the School Website.  

Implemented 

5.2.3 

 

High 

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 

governing bodies and proprietors of independent Schools under the 

Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states that: 

'Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 

with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 

knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their 

responsibilities for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date 

by refresher training'. 

 

The current requirements for safeguarding training are that Level 1 & 2 

needs to be renewed every 3 years and facilitated by RCT with Level 3 

Level 1 Safeguarding training should be 

arranged for the 8 members of staff identified 

as soon as possible. 

 

Furthermore, the Headteacher should ensure 

that Safeguarding training is renewed as and 

when required for all members of staff and 

those certificates are received and retained 

accordingly.  

 

The School should develop a central training 

31 December 2018 

T
udalen 154



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

being trained every 2 years (in house refresher training should also be 

provided annually and as and when required by Level 3 trained staff). 

 

Whilst formal Level 1 training was provided by Cwm Taf on 12th March 

2018, a review of the attendance sheet identified that 8 members of 

staff were not recorded as present for this training.   Furthermore, 

although a list of 10 members of staff that had undertaken Level 3 

training was provided, only 5 certificates were available at the School. 

 

record to demonstrate the date and level of 

safeguarding training alongside individual 

staff names. 

 

This could be incorporated into the Child 

Protection Policy to allow the assessment of 

training requirements to coincide with the 

Policy’s annual review.  

5.2.4 

 

Low 

The school staff list detailing staff DBS reference numbers includes 1 
member of staff who is no longer employed at the School and does not 
include 1 new member of staff. 

The School should ensure that where staff, 
permanent or casual, commence / terminate 
employment with the school, the school list is 
updated to reflect this. 

Implemented 

5.2.5 

 

Medium 

The 'Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits' states 

that residential visits / adventure activities must be 'planned and 

approved using the Evolve system at least 28 days before visit'.   

  

From a sample of 5 trips examined, 3 trips had not been updated onto 

EVOLVE within the correct timescales: 

 

• Llangrannog 9.3.18 

   Not created on EVOLVE until 26.2.18 

 

• Iceland 29.10.17 

  Not created on EVOLVE until 2.10.17 

 

• Spain 14.7.17 

   Created on EVOLVE 26.4.17 but not authorised until 16.6.17 by the 

Care should be taken to ensure that all trips / 
activities (including routine sporting fixtures) 
are entered onto EVOLVE within the correct 
timescales and are correctly classified in 
order for the Outdoor Education Advisor to 
give the necessary assurance that the 
provider and trip arrangements are 
appropriate. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 155



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

EVC before authorisation by the LA on 19.6.17 

 

Furthermore, it was also established that routine off site sporting 

fixtures are not being recorded on EVOLVE. 

 

5.3.1 

 

Medium 

Point 9.1 of the School Private Fund Regulations states: 

'Any member of staff running a school trip is required to draw up and 

provide the Treasurer with a statement of account within one month of 

the conclusion of the trip. This must show details of all the receipts and 

payments relating to the trip, (An example is included as Appendix 9) 

which must be reconciled to the ledger'. 

 

Testing of the USA SKI 2018 and Barcelona 2018 trips identified that 

Statement of Accounts had not been completed. The Treasurer 

confirmed that they are not routinely completed at the conclusion of 

trips.  

 

This finding was contained within the last audit report. 

 

In accordance with the School Private Fund 

Regulations and the School's own Trip Pack 

procedures,  a statement of account should 

be completed at the conclusion of each trip 

and passed to the Treasurer for retention 

with the School Private Fund records.  

 

Implemented 

5.4.1 

 

Medium 

A sample of 5 non-order invoice payments was examined. 

 

Of the 5, it is likely that a prior request would have been made for the 

services provided / goods requested for 4 payments and consequently, 

official Purchase Orders should have been raised on SIMS:  

 

• Edwards Coaches: 2 coaches for awards evening and homework 

bus; 

An order (confirmation if made by telephone) 

should be raised on SIMS as soon as a 

commitment to expenditure is known.  This 

will ensure that the budgetary information on 

SIMS is as accurate as possible, has been 

authorised in the correct manner and that 

there is a hard copy of the items ordered at 

the school which can be used to check the 

Implemented 

T
udalen 156



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

• Lead Creative Schools; 

• Lead Creative Schools; and 

• Freestyle: Motivational speaker. 

subsequent delivery of goods and relevant 

invoice. 

 

5.4.2 

 

Low 

From a sample of 15 cheque payments reviewed it was noted that 
although a cheque authorisation slip was present for each payment, 
none had been signed  / initialled by any of the cheque signatories to 
demonstrate that the payment was correct before being issued by the 
cheque signatories. 

Cheque authorisation slips should be signed 
by at least one of the cheque signatories to 
confirm that the details agree to the actual 
cheque payment. 

Implemented 

5.5.1 

 

Medium 

There are 3 Purchase Cards at the School. Audit testing identified one 

of the Card Holders does not update the Transaction Log, instead it is 

updated by the School Manager retrospectively. Occasions were also 

identified whereby the School Manager had also updated the 

Transaction Log in respect of the other card.   

The third Transaction Log maintained by the School Manager was 

found to be correctly completed. 

 

A review of the Transaction Logs also revealed that eradicating fluid 

has been used. 

 

Details of all Purchase Card transactions 

should be promptly updated onto each 

Transaction Log by the individual Card 

Holders. 

 

No eradicating fluid should be used on prime 

financial documents.  If a mistake needs to 

be amended it should be crossed through, 

initialled and a new entry made. 

 

Implemented 

5.5.2 

 

High 

Examination of the Purchase Card expenditure identified 2 occasions 

whereby books had been delivered to a Teacher's home address. 

 

It was also identified that the card details had been stored to the 

teacher’s personal account allowing further orders to be placed without 

the need to access the Purchase Card.  

 

It is acknowledged that the School Manager made repeated requests 

All Purchase Card purchases should be 

made using the School name and delivery 

made to the School address. 

 

Under no circumstances should the School’s 

Purchase Card details be recorded on the 

personal accounts for any member of staff 

and this should be communicated clearly by 

Implemented 

T
udalen 157



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

for the card details to be removed.  Internal Audit can also confirm that 

no inappropriate transactions have taken place.  

 

the Headteacher to all members of staff. 

 

5.5.3 

 

Medium 

Although receipts were present to support all items of purchase card 

expenditure, for the sample period tested (May and June 2018) 12 

occasions were noted whereby no appropriate VAT receipt had been 

obtained, although VAT had been reclaimed. 

 

 

 

Every effort should be made to obtain 

appropriate VAT receipts where VAT is to be 

reclaimed. An appropriate VAT receipt should 

include: 

 

•details of the sale including the tax date;  

•the supplier‘s VAT registration number;  

•the amount paid for the goods or services; 

and  

•the amount of VAT that the supplier has 

charged to you. 

 

If a VAT receipt cannot be obtained and it is 

unknown as to whether the individual / 

company is VAT registered, it should be 

assumed that they are not, and therefore the 

gross amount should be treated as outside 

the scope.  

 

Implemented 

5.5.4 

 

Medium 

Discussions at the School established that 2 of the 3 Purchase Cards 
are held with the Cardholders at all times, including evenings, 
weekends and School holidays. 

When not in use, the School Purchase Cards 
should be held securely at the School. 

Implemented 

5.5.5 Although a Purchase Card Sharing Log is in place at the School, the A card sharing log should be maintained for Implemented 

T
udalen 158



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

 

Low 

date / times the card is taken / returned were not always recorded. 

 

 

each Purchase Card held at the School and 
care taken to ensure that the card sharing log 
is fully completed (including the times the 
card is taken and returned together with the 
signature of the member of staff).  

5.5.6 

 

Low 

Whilst the Purchase Card Bank Statements show clear evidence of a 
reconciliation process being undertaken, the statements are not signed 
and dated by the person undertaking the exercise. 

On completion of the Bank Reconciliation 
process, the Purchase Card bank statements 
should be signed and dated by the person 
carrying out the reconciliation as evidence of 
when and by whom this was carried out.  

Implemented 

5.5.7 

 

Low 

Discussion at the School revealed that a cash book journal is 

undertaken immediately following a Purchase Card purchase being 

made. 

 

For the sample period tested (May and June 2018) whilst cash book 

journals had been undertaken as per the system intended by the 

School, it was noted that no reference to the Purchase Card is being 

made, instead, reference is made to the items purchased. 

 

It was also noted that 2 cash book journals had not been undertaken 

for 2 purchases (Amazon and Mosaic events). 

 

SIMS should provide a meaningful analysis 
of all income and expenditure, with clear 
details of the classification and type of activity 
recorded. All Purchase Card payments 
should be clearly identified on SIMS with the 
Purchase Card reference number.  

Implemented 

5.6.1 

 

Medium 

The School Manager stated that individual budget holders are provided 

with a Cost Centre Transaction Listing termly but no guidance has 

been given to staff as to the level of budget monitoring to be 

undertaken.  

 

In accordance with the intentions of the 

Governing Body, the School Manager should 

circulate SIMS Cost Centre transaction 

reports to all Budget Holders on a regular 

basis i.e. monthly.  

Implemented  

T
udalen 159



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

The records relating to 3 Capitation departments were examined and 

inconsistencies were noted between all 3 departments:  

 

• Maths - 2 SIMS cost centre transaction reports were present on file - 

neither showed any evidence of review. 

 

• History - 5 SIMS cost centre transaction report were present on file 

but none showed any evidence of review. In addition, some delivery 

notes / copy invoices were present on file but none of these 

documents showed any evidence of review. 

 

• Science - 1 SIMS cost centre transaction report was present on file 

but this showed no evidence of review.  A large file is being retained 

which contains numerous internal requisitions, and copies of 

despatch notes. 

 

 

Furthermore, the School should consider 

introducing manual budgetary control sheets 

and guidance notes for budget holders to 

record all instances of income and committed 

and actual expenditure which can then be 

compared (along with copy 

orders/requisitions) to the SIMS transaction 

reports upon receipt. 

 

The reports should be signed and dated by 

the Budget Holder to demonstrate that 

reconciliation has taken place and retained 

within the departmental budget records for 

reference. 

 

The School is also reminded that despatch 

notes / delivery notes and any original 

documentation should not be retained within 

the departments but returned to the Finance 

officer for retention with the original order. 

 

T
udalen 160



 
 

 
 

AUDIT NAME: PARCLEWIS PRIMARY SCHOOL 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 08/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

The self-evaluation process is designed to evaluate the effectiveness of a School’s financial and governance arrangements. The process requires primary 

schools to complete a self-evaluation checklist against expected controls. 

Parc Lewis Primary School was last subject to an Internal Audit Review in November 2014 and this is the third cyclical visit made to the School to examine 

progress made under the Self Evaluation process. 

The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body at the Autumn Term meeting.   

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

The checklist for non-chequebook primary schools comprises 105 standards that need to be reviewed. Audit testing was carried out on a sample of 

standards, using transactions processed during financial year 2018/19. 

The objectives of the review were: 

 To ensure compliance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, this requires Governing Bodies to have arrangements for exercising their 

functions with a view to Safeguarding. 

 To ensure that the School Private Fund is appropriately administered in accordance with the requirements of the 2017 School Private Fund 

Regulations. 

 To ensure that the Purchase Card is being used in accordance with the guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service. 

 To ensure that all School meals income is identified, received and collected in accordance with Council Policy, arrears regularly reported and 

followed up and free meals only provided where entitlement has been confirmed by the Council. 

 To ensure that all orders raised by the School are appropriate and reflected in the budget, are correctly authorised and comply with Financial 

Regulations. 

 To ensure that all Formula Funding allocations are based on up to date and correct numbers of registered pupils, and an audit trail is maintained to 

ensure accountability and transparency of the numbers submitted. 

 To ensure that the opportunities for unauthorised use of the School's IT equipment are restricted, that computer hardware and software is 

adequately protected and that the School and Governing Body are appropriately registered under the Data Protection Act 2018. 

 To review the governance arrangements in place at the School. 

 

AUDIT OPINION 

Governance 

T
udalen 161



 
 

 
 

The control environment is respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

The roles and responsibilities of the Governing Body and its sub committees have been set out in writing. The Governing Body and its sub committees have 

the requisite number of members. 

Whilst all statutory policies and documents are present and show evidence of a review within the last 12 months, it could not be evidenced that they had 

been formally reviewed by the Full Governing Body. This report recommends that when policies and documents are reviewed, they are presented to the 

Governing Body for ratification with this being clearly detailed in the Governing Body minutes. 

Safeguarding & Educational Visits 

The control environment in relation to Safeguarding and Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

Testing identified that all staff received the appropriate clearances before commencing duties in their posts. While there are 3 members of staff who are 

Level 3 trained, it was noted that for 1 member of staff, the training provided was in March 2016 and has now expired. In addition, although level 1 

Safeguarding training was provided to the School on 3
rd

 September 2018, there were 5 members of staff who were not present for the training and this 

report recommends  that staff attend relevant training as soon as possible. 

The School have a Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy, which is reviewed annually, however there was no documentary evidence at the School to 

confirm that all members of staff have received a copy of the Policy and have read and understood it. 

The School make use of the EVOLVE system to record details of all off-site visits and staff are suitably qualified to make use of the system in accordance 

with the document 'Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits'. However, audit testing identified that a recent residential trip had not been 

entered onto EVOLVE and authorised within the required timescales. 

School Private Fund 

The control environment in relation to the School Private Fund is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.  

The Treasurer maintains an adequate audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions. A ledger is maintained and while this was up to date at the time 

of the review, was not in the recommended format. This report recommends that an appropriate ledger be introduced and maintained in a format which is in 

accordance with the School Private Fund Regulations. 

The account is reconciled to the bank statements monthly. For the previous academic year all expenditure was solely for the benefit of the pupils / School in 

accordance with the School Private Fund Regulations and all were supported with receipts / invoices. 

Purchase Card 

The control environment in relation to the Purchase Card is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

There is a sufficient audit trail in respect of evidence being available that supports the expenditure for the Purchase Card. Audit testing identified that the 

Transaction Log is up to date with recent items of expenditure and purchases reviewed were supported with documentation i.e. receipts, invoices and 

confirmation for on-line orders. 

School Meals 

The control environment in relation to the School Meals system is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

Dinner money is updated to SIMS and banked regularly, and the School manage their arrears in line with the Catering Finance School Meal Protocol. 

Testing identified that free school meals are only provided to those for whom eligibility had been confirmed and the school meal income records are 

T
udalen 162



 
 

 
 

regularly reviewed by an independent senior member of staff to ensure that these are complete, accurate and agree with deposits made at the bank. 

School Budget 

The control environment in relation to the School Budget is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

A regular review of the Budget is undertaken by the Headteacher and details of the School’s budgetary position are reported to the Governing Body at every 

meeting.  Pupil numbers were reviewed and no discrepancies were noted. 

Data Protection & Security 

The control environment in relation to Data Protection & Security is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 

The School is registered with the Information Commissioner. School data is backed up regularly and confidential data is kept securely. 

The School Inventory is up to date and ICT equipment is asset registered. 

 

Implementation of the recommendations contained within this report will enhance the control environment further. 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.1 

 

High 

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 

governing bodies and proprietors of independent Schools under the 

Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states that: 

 

'Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 

with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 

knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their 

responsibilities for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date 

by refresher training'. 

 

The current requirements for safeguarding training are that Level 1 & 2 

needs to be renewed every 3 years and facilitated by RCT with Level 3 

being trained every 2 years (in house Level 1 refresher training should 

also be delivered annually by Level 3 trained staff). 

 

While there are 3 members of staff who are Level 3 trained, it was 

The Headteacher should ensure that 

safeguarding training is renewed as and 

when required for all members of staff and 

the certificates retained accordingly.  

 

The School should develop a central training 

record to demonstrate the date and level of 

safeguarding training alongside individual 

staff names. This could be incorporated into 

the Child Protection Policy to allow the 

assessment of training requirements to 

coincide with the Policy’s annual review.   

 

 

31 December 2018 

T
udalen 163



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

noted 

that for 1 of these members of staff, the last training provided was in 

March 2016 and is therefore due for renewal.  

In addition, level 1 Safeguarding training was provided to the School 
on 3

rd
 September 2018; however, there were 5 members of staff who 

were not present for the training. 

5.1.2 

 

Medium 

Point 3.1 of the (Cwm Taf Safeguarding Children Board) Model 

Safeguarding Policy (that should be adopted by schools) states: 

 

'The Designated Senior Person (DSP) for Child Protection 

will......ensure that all staff have signed to say that they have received, 

read and understood the Child Safeguarding Policy.' 

 

There was no evidence at the School that staff had received, read and 

understood the Child Protection Policy. 

 

NB. It is noted that a proforma was introduced during the audit 

fieldwork which will be completed following review of the Safeguarding 

Policy during the Autumn Term Governing Body meeting. 

 

Following the review of the 2018 Child 
Protection Policy, the Headteacher should 
ensure that all members of staff sign to 
demonstrate that they have received, read 
and understood the policy. 

30 November 2018 

5.1.3 

 

Low 

The ‘Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits’ states 

that residential visits / adventurous activities must be ‘planned and 

approved using the EVOLVE system at least 28 days before visit’. 

  

The recent residential trip to Llangrannog had not been entered onto 

EVOLVE and authorised within the correct timescales: 

 

Care should be taken to ensure that all trips / 
activities are entered onto EVOLVE within 
the correct timescales in order for the 
Outdoor Education Advisor to give the 
necessary assurance that the provider and 
trip arrangements are appropriate.   

30 November 2018 

T
udalen 164



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

Llangrannog - 14.05.18 

Created on EVOLVE 1.5.18 

Not submitted for authorisation until 8.5.18. 

 

5.2.1 

 

Low 

Section 2.9 of the Scheme for Financing Schools states that: 

 

'Governing bodies are required to establish a register of business 

interests...which lists for each member of the governing body and the 

Head Teacher any business interests they or any member of their 

immediate family have. The register must be kept up-to-date by 

notification of changes from governors and the Head Teacher, and 

through an annual review process'. 

 

Although a register had been established, no declaration was present 

for 1 Governor and the declaration was out of date for another. 

 

Declarations should be completed 
immediately in respect of the Governors 
identified.  

30 November 2018 

5.2.2 

 

Low 

A number of Sub Committee minutes were examined that had not been 
clerked by the Governor Support Officer.  It was noted that no 
attendance sheets for these meetings had been retained. 

Attendance sheets for all Governing Body 
subcommittee meetings, not clerked by the 
Governor Support Officer, must be retained 
at the School and held in a manner that 
makes them easy to locate. 

Implemented 

5.2.3 

 

Medium 

All statutory policies and documents are in place at the School, and all 

demonstrate a regular review.  

 

However, whilst all policies and documents are endorsed with the date 

of the last review, it was not evident within the Governing Body minutes 

that all had been presented to the Governing Body.  

All policies and documents should be 

presented to the Governing Body for review 

and ratification (and this should be minuted).  

 

Any policies that are updated/amended need 

to be presented to the Governing Body for 

30 November 2018 

T
udalen 165



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

 

 

ratification with a record held of this 

(recorded via the minutes).  

 

5.3.1 

 

Medium 

The entries in respect of Private Fund income / expenditure should 

allow for prompt reconciliation within each financial period. 

 

Examination of the current ledger revealed that it does not meet this 

format, with no running balance maintained.  

 

All expenditure transactions should be clearly 

recorded against any income received for the 

same period. 

 

To ensure that an accurate balance of the 

School Private Fund is maintained, an 

additional column should be added to the 

ledger to allow a running balance to be 

recorded following each transaction.  

 

Implemented  

5.3.1 

 

Low 

Whilst all bank statements show evidence of a check (i.e. items are 
cross-referenced to the Ledger) the bank statements are not signed 
and dated by the person undertaking the bank reconciliation exercise. 

The bank statements and the Ledger should 

be signed and dated as evidence of the 

reconciliation exercise being complete. 

 

 

 

Implemented  

5.3.2 

 

Low 

All income is recorded directly onto a Record of Daily Income Sheet; 
however, this record is not totalled and ruled off when income is 
deposited at the bank. 

The Record of Daily Income should be ruled 
off and totalled when a banking is made. This 
can be used to update the fund ledger and 
assist in the bank reconciliation process. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 166



 
 

 
 

AUDIT NAME: YSGOL LLANHARI 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 26/10/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

Ysgol Llanhari is a 3 - 19 mixed Welsh medium School predominantly serving the lower Taff area. There are 631 pupils at the School, including 63 in the 

sixth form. The proportion of pupils entitled to free school meals currently stands at 5.9%, which is below the national average of 17.4%. 

The total budget for the School for 2017/18 was £2,881,195. Ysgol Llanhari was last subject to a routine audit visit in March 2015. 

The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body at its 5
th
 December 2018 meeting. 

 

Note to Audit Committee Members – the fieldwork for this audit review took place during the 2017/18 financial year. 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

All systems in operation at the School were considered and an assessment carried out in consultation with the Headteacher and Chair of Governors to 

identify those areas representing the highest potential risk, and therefore necessitating review. 

On the basis of this assessment, audit work was carried out on the following areas of administration: -  

- Governance; 

- Safeguarding; 

- School Private Fund; 

- Purchasing; 

- Purchase Card; 

- School Income; and 

- School Meals. 

AUDIT OPINION 

Overall, the control environment in relation to the School’s financial and governance arrangements is considered to be insuff icient and requires 

improvement.  

A review of the responsibilities of the administrative / finance staff and School Bursar should be completed to ensure that the processes in place are robust, 

efficient and undertaken in an appropriate way going forward.  

This report contains a high number of recommendations, the most significant of which are:  

Safeguarding & Governance  

Whilst the School was able to provide copies of all required Policies and Procedures, they could not demonstrate that 11 Policies had been reviewed 

regularly, updated and ratified by the Governing Body.  

Financial limits and responsibilities have not been delegated by the Governing Body to designated staff. 

T
udalen 167



 
 

 
 

Quorum levels for each Committee have not been documented. 

For 9 members of staff, the School could not demonstrate safeguarding training had been provided.  

Payments have been made to an individual with no prior HMRC IR35 questionnaire completed.  

Not all staff have signed to demonstrate that they have received, read and understood the Child Safeguarding Policy. 

School Private Fund  

Balances held for trips have not been refunded to pupils.  

Income records were not available or are inaccurate within the Primary Department. 

The Fund Ledger is not in an appropriate format i.e. no running balances. 

The Fund Treasurer undertakes the reconciliation of the Fund but is not independent to the collection and banking of income.  

The School Bursar is named as the Fund Secretary, but does not undertake this role at all times. 

No Statements of Account are completed following each Trip/Event. 

Purchasing  

The current Finance Policy document in place at the School is not sufficient and requires review and updating.  

Staff are not following the required processes for raising, receiving and paying for purchase orders.  

The School hold a number of store cards/accounts at various shops/businesses. By using these, they are bypassing the official purchasing and authorising 

processes. 

Purchase Card  

The School has two purchase cards but only one Transaction Log is maintained. 

The cardholders confirmed that other members of staff utilise their Purchase Cards. However, the record held for the Primary Department card is not always 

completed. 

School Income & School Meals 

High levels of school meals arrears within the Primary Department and non-compliance with the arrears protocols. 

Security arrangements for income received are poor within the Primary Department. 

No independent review of school meals records within the Primary Department. 

Teachers collecting income for sales of books etc., but do not maintain any records. 

SIMS not used to raise invoices. 

Implementing the recommendations contained in the report will enhance the current levels of control.  Thereafter, the Headteacher needs to ensure that 

there is a regular review of the financial administration of the School, with evidence of this being available. 

The Headteacher should also consider how purchases are made by the School. At present, the majority are made using the official ordering system (SIMS). 

However, the intended systems put in place are not being adhered to. The Headteacher should consider increasing the use of the Purchase Cards held by 

the School, which is a more efficient use of staff time, and also allows resources to be redirected elsewhere. 

T
udalen 168



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.1.1 

 

High 

Whilst all Statutory Policies and Documents were in place at the time of 

the audit, issues were identified in terms of the frequency of review of 

11 Policies, and in demonstrating that they have been presented to the 

Governing Body for ratification (i.e. Policies were not minuted as 

ratified). 

 

The Headteacher and Governing Body 

should ensure that they implement a rolling 

programme of review for all Policies. This will 

ensure that all Policies are up to date and 

reflect the current practices at the School.  

 

Following the rolling programme of review, 

Policies should be presented to the 

Governing Body for review and ratification 

(and this should be minuted).  

 

In addition, details of review should be 

captured on the document covers i.e. date 

reviewed, date to be reviewed, signed and 

dated.  

 

Implemented  

5.1.2 

 

High 

The School’s Finance Policy has not been updated since September 

2015. 

 

This review has identified the following areas where improvements to 

the Policy can be made: -  

 

• Since the current Headteacher’s appointment to post in September 

2014, the Governing Body has not formally confirmed the financial 

limits of delegated authority for incurring expenditure (i.e. raising 

orders and approving payments) and amending budgets. 

 

• There is insufficient detail for all areas of financial administration at 

The Governing Body should confirm a 

scheme of delegation and formally record the 

financial limits of delegated authority within 

the Governing Body minutes. This will ensure 

that a permanent record of the limits and 

authorised staff is available at the School. 

 

Once completed, the Policy should be 

presented to the Governing Body for 

approval and issued to all appropriate 

members of staff. The School should ensure 

that this is regularly reviewed and updated 

31 December 2018 

T
udalen 169



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

the School and also the roles / responsibilities of the individuals 

presently involved for each element within the Primary and 

Secondary Departments. 

 

going forward. 

 

Any revisions to the Policy should also take 

into account recommendations raised within 

this report. 

 

5.1.3 

 

Medium 

The structure of the Governing Body and sub-committees is agreed at 

the first Autumn Term meeting of every new School year. 

 

The School have now devised their own 'Statutory Committees' 

document to show the members of the sub-committees and their roles 

and responsibilities. Whilst this document states the name of the sub-

committee, names of the members, roles and responsibilities of the 

members, and whether there are any exceptions (e.g. Headteacher is 

not permitted to be a member of the staff disciplinary & dismissal 

committee), the document does not state what the quorum levels are 

for each committee.  

 

Additionally, the School have devised their own format of recording 

minutes. These detail the School name, type of meeting, date and 

time, names of Governors present, names of other people present and 

apologies received. A table with 3 columns detailing 'matter to discuss', 

e.g. Policies, 'Discussions and Decisions' and 'Actions' is also included. 

However, it was noted that each 'matter to discuss' is not numbered;  

the pages are loose-leaf and are numbered; and all were initialled 

apart from the following: 

 

• HR & Salaries Committee 1/3/2017.  

The School's 'statutory committees' 

document should state the required quorum 

levels for each committee.  

 

All items discussed and the subsequent 

decisions should be numbered for ease of 

reference.  

 

All loose-leaf pages should be signed by the 

Chair of Governors.  

 

 

Implemented  

T
udalen 170



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

• Full Governing body meeting 15/3/2016 - Each page of the Welsh 

version was signed, but only the back page of the English version.  

• Finance Committee 5/7/2017 - Only the front page signed. 

 

5.1.4 

 

Low 

The membership of governing bodies is set out in chapter 3 of The 

Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005, which 

specifies that the composition of the Governing Body should include 5 

LEA and 2 Teacher Governors. 

 

Examination of the Governing Body structure revealed that there are 

currently 2 LEA and 1 Teacher Governor vacancies. 

 

The School should continue to advertise 

these vacancies in order to fill the positions 

as soon as possible. 

 

 

Implemented 

5.2.1 

 

High 

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 

governing bodies and proprietors of independent Schools under the 

Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states that: 

 

'Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 

with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 

knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their 

responsibilities for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date 

by refresher training'. 

 

The most recent Level 1 Safeguarding training was provided to School 

staff on the 30
th
 June 2017; it was noted that 9 members of staff were 

not recorded as attending the training.  

 

There were also 5 members of staff trained to Level 3 at the School.  

A formal record should be made each time 

staff at the School undertakes any 

Safeguarding Training. 

 

The Headteacher should ensure that all 

members of staff, including casual 

supervisory assistants and exam invigilators 

receive Level 1 Safeguarding training and 

those staff identified should be trained as 

soon as possible.  

 

Level 3 training should be renewed for each 

of the individuals identified.  

 

 

31 December 2018 

T
udalen 171



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

The following issues were noted: -  

 

• Headteacher - Certificate at the School, but expired 5/11/2017 (cert 

dated 5/11/2015). 

• Deputy Headteacher - Certificate at the School, but expired 

25/3/2017 (cert dated 25/3/2015).  

 

Discussions with the Headteacher identified that the designated 

Governor attended Level 3 training in March 2016; however there was 

no evidence (i.e. a certificate) at the School. 

 

5.2.2 

 

High 

Examination of the Bank Account History Report identified payments 

are being made to an individual in respect of Welsh translation. 

  

No HMRC IR35 questionnaire was completed prior to appointing this 

individual and hence no ESI reference number was obtained. 

 

It is however accepted that the School have completed the online tool 

in respect of other individuals following receipt of the guidance by the 

Council. 

 

Before a School engages with an external 

entity for the provision of services, they must 

review the employment status using the 

HMRC online tool. 

 

This should be done for this individual with 

evidence of the check retained at the School. 

 

Implemented 

5.2.3 

 

Medium 

The School’s Safeguarding Policy was last reviewed by the Governing 

Body on 8
th
 March 2017 and at the time of the audit; the School were in 

the process of adopting the latest Cwm Taf Safeguarding Children 

Board (CTSCB) Model Safeguarding Policy. 

 

Point 3.1 of the Cwm Taf Safeguarding Children Board (CTSCB) Model 

Once the revised Child Safeguarding Policy 

has been formally adopted and agreed by the 

Governing Body, it should be ensured that 

the relevant staff and Governors endorse the 

Policy as indicated on the cover of the Policy. 

 

Implemented 

T
udalen 172



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

Safeguarding Policy states: 

 

'The Designated Senior Person (DSP) for Child Protection will...Ensure 

that all staff have signed to say that they have received, read and 

understood the Child Safeguarding Policy' 

 

On examination, the following issues were identified: 

 

• The 2
nd

 deputy designated person had not signed the Policy. 

• There are sheets at the School for each member of staff to sign and 

date to confirm that they have received, read and understood the 

Child Protection Policy. However the names, dates and job titles 

were typed in for 7 members of staff and no forms had been 

completed by 5 casual Exam Invigilators. 

 

Each member of staff should sign to 

demonstrate that they have received, read 

and understood the Child Safeguarding 

Policy. 

 

5.2.4 

 

Low 

The 'Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits' states 

that residential visits / adventure activities must be 'planned and 

approved using the Evolve system at least 28 days before visit'.   

 

Examination of a sample of five visits recorded on Evolve identified the 

following issues: -  

 

Llangrannog 2017 

Date of trip - 5th - 8th December 2017 

Date created on Evolve - 23rd November 2017 

Approved by EVC & Head - 26th November 2017 

Approved by LA - 27th November 2017 

 

Care should be taken to ensure that all trips / 
activities are entered onto Evolve within the 
correct timescales. 

Implemented  

T
udalen 173



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

Glanllyn Yr 9 

Date of trip - 7th - 10th July 2017 

Date created on Evolve - 27th June 2017 

Approved EVC & Head - 3rd July 2017 

Approved LA - 3rd July 2017 

 

Mountain biking 

Date of visit - 28th September 2017 

Date created on Evolve - 23rd September 2017 

Approved EVC & Head - 23rd September 2017 

Approved LA - 24th September 2017 

 

The remaining 2 trips examined were found to be entered onto 

EVOLVE and authorised in accordance with the recommended 

procedures. 

 

5.3.1 

 

Medium 

Section 9.2B of the School Private Fund Regulations states that:  

 

'Trips must not be run as profit making ventures. However, where a trip 

has been operated and makes a profit...the balance must either:-  

i) be divided equally and paid back to each paying pupil  

ii) be retained by the Private Fund, providing that consent of the 

parents has been given’  

 

Examination of fund records showed that surplus balances are being 

held within the fund account for trips undertaken since September 

2016. 

 

The School should review all trips over a 

determined period of time and where a trip 

has resulted in a surplus of funds, the 

balance must either:- 

 

i) be divided equally and paid back to each 

paying pupil,  

or; 

ii) be retained by the private fund, provided 

that consent of the parents has been given. 

 

 

Implemented  

T
udalen 174



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.3.2 

 

Medium 

Although it is acceptable to have the Fund Ledger in electronic format, 

there are certain requirements that must be met. Issues identified 

include: 

 

• The Ledger does not follow the required  format i.e. there is no 

running balance recorded. 

• The Ledger is not printed off to undertake the bank reconciliation. 

Therefore, there is no evidence (i.e. signatures) on the Ledger to 

confirm it has taken place. 

 

Additionally, it was also found that the reconciliation is currently 

undertaken by the Fund Treasurer, who is not independent of the 

income and expenditure transactions. 

 

The Fund Ledger should contain details of all 

income and expenditure transactions on the 

same page to provide a meaningful analysis 

of accounts, and a running balance for 

reconciliation to the bank statements.   

 

A copy of the Fund Ledger should be printed 

off and retained on file for each monthly 

reconciliation.  

 

An independent person should undertake the 

reconciliation. 

 

Appendix 2 of the School Private Fund 

Regulations provides notes of guidance for 

the completion of ledgers and a suggested 

format is included at Appendix 4 of these 

Regulations. 

 

Implemented  

5.3.3 

 

Medium 

A Management Committee for the School Private Fund has been 

established, although the positions held do not relate to the actual 

duties undertaken. 

 

The post of Fund Secretary is currently occupied by the School Bursar. 

However, this officer currently has no involvement in the daily running 

of the fund, with all administration of the Fund undertaken by the Fund 

Treasurer and other office staff. 

 

Arrangements should be made to ensure that 
the positions held on the School Private Fund 
committee relate to the actual duties 
undertaken. 

Implemented  

T
udalen 175



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.3.4 

 

High 

Section 9.1 of the School Private Fund Regulations states that:  

 

'Any member of staff running a School trip is required to draw up and 

provide the Treasurer with a statement of account within one month of 

the conclusion of the trip. This must show details of all the receipts and 

payments relating to the trip'  

 

There were no Statement of Accounts prepared for any school trips. 

 

Upon completion of a trip, a Statement of 

Account and all supporting records should be 

passed to the Fund Treasurer to be retained 

as per the School Private Fund Regulations.  

 

An example of the format required is included 

at Appendix 9 in the School Private Fund 

Regulations.  

 

As per 5.3.1, this will allow any surplus 

balances to be identified and dealt with in 

accordance with protocols. 

 

Implemented  

5.3.5 

 

Medium 

The School have devised a system whereby income is collected daily 

by office staff. The Attendance & Administration Officer collects income 

for the secondary department pupils and the Clerical Assistant collects 

the income for the primary departments. 

 

The Clerical Assistant returned from Maternity Leave in October half 

term. However, it was established that no daily income records could 

be located within the Primary Department for the period of the officer’s  

maternity leave. 

 

It is however accepted that the overall totals were recorded centrally by 

the Fund Treasurer. 

 

From examination of three Primary Department trips (Heritage Park, 

Cefn Mably and Big Pit) it was established that none of the records 

It should be ensured that consistent trip 

records are maintained within the school, 

including during periods of staff absence. 

 

It should be ensured that all daily trip income 

records reconcile to income banked.  

Implemented  

T
udalen 176



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

held by the Clerical Assistant reconciled to the amounts banked by the 

Fund Treasurer. For example, for Heritage Park Trip, the class records 

show £598 was collected, however £629.60 was actually banked 

 

(It is noted that income banked was more than recorded on the trip 

records for all three trips examined). 

 

Additionally, it was found that the trip records used were different to 

those used by the Attendance and Administration Officer (who 

administers trip income for the Secondary Departments).  

 

5.4.1 

 

High 

Each Budget Holder is responsible for requesting items to be ordered 

by the Bursar. Each Budget Holder is required to complete and sign an 

Order Requisition form and provide it to the School Bursar (for an 

official order to be raised on SIMS and authorised by the 

Headteacher). 

 

However, a review of the processes at the School revealed that this is 

not always the case, with some staff placing their own orders and then 

providing information to the School Bursar after receipt of the 

invoice/goods. 

 

Additionally, the following issues were also noted in respect of the 

School’s purchasing arrangements: -  

 

• Orders are being raised on SIMS after receipt of the invoice, even 

though a prior request would have been made.  

 

Budget Holders should not raise orders 

directly. 

 

Where possible the School should use the 

Purchase Card for the purchase of goods 

and payment of services. 

 

On the occasions that it is not possible to use 

the Purchase Card, an official order should 

be raised on SIMS for all committed 

expenditure. This should be done as soon as 

the commitment to expenditure is known. 

This will ensure that the budgetary 

information on SIMS is as accurate as 

possible, has been authorised in the correct 

manner and there is a hard copy of the items 

ordered at the school which can be used to 

Implemented  

T
udalen 177



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

• The non-order facility is not being used correctly i.e. invoices are 

being processed as non-orders although a prior request would of 

been made. 

• Copy orders show no evidence of being checked to delivery 

notes/invoices.  

• No invoices are signed to confirm correct. 

 

Note: Whilst it is accepted that the School have devised a separate 

form for budget holders to sign and confirm deliveries are correct and 

invoices can be paid, there is still a requirement for the actual copy 

orders / invoices / delivery notes to be signed as these are the original 

documents received. 

 

check against the subsequent delivery of 

goods and relevant invoice. 

 

Once the goods / services are received, the 

invoice / delivery note should be checked 

against the original order to ensure that the 

goods received agree to what was originally 

ordered. The order and invoice/delivery notes 

should demonstrate evidence of this check 

(e.g. items ticked) and the invoice/delivery 

notes should be signed and dated by an 

appropriate budget holder who can commit 

the school to expenditure. 

 

5.4.2 

 

High 

The School Bursar confirmed that the School have opened store cards 

at several local businesses, whereby staff (mainly the caretaker) make 

purchases, without raising an order or using the Purchase Card. The 

School then receive an invoice in respect of the purchases made. 

Examples include the local petrol station, builders merchants, DIY 

stores. 

 

Note: - It can be confirmed that  no inappropriate expenditure was 

identified 

 

The School should close all store card 

accounts held at the various businesses that 

they currently use.  

 

Going forward, the School should only make 

purchases using the chequebook or 

Purchase Cards. 

 

Implemented 

5.5.1 

 

Low 

There are 2 Purchase Cards in place at the School: a card each for the 

Primary and Secondary Departments. 

 

A separate transaction log should be 

maintained for each Purchase Card held at 

the school and the supporting receipts 

Implemented 

T
udalen 178



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

Examination of the records and discussions with the School Bursar 

established that only one Transaction Log detailing all card purchases 

is being maintained and receipts to support expenditure are being held 

together. It was also confirmed that difficulty is sometimes experienced 

retrieving receipts from staff where purchases have been made. 

 

retained separately. 

 

 

 

5.5.2 

 

Medium 

Point 3.1 of the Cardholder Manual states: 

 

'The card can be used by other authorised staff but they must sign the 

Signing Out/In sheet provided to record such use'. 

 

Whilst there were Signing Out/In sheets for each Purchase Card 

available at the School, examinations identified that the sheets are not 

routinely completed for the Primary Department card. 

 

It should be ensured that the Signing Out/In 

sheets for each Purchase Card are always 

completed when the card is used by 

members of staff other than the cardholder. 

 

 

Implemented 

5.6.1 

 

High 

A review of the current pupil balances report revealed that the School 

has approximately 30 pupils who have arrears in excess of the two 

week limit with a combined total of £1,503.95 at the time of visit. 

 

Discussions with Catering Finance identified that they have not 

received arrears information from the School since January 2017.  

 

Note: Whilst it is accepted that this period coincided with maternity 

leave of a member of staff involved in the process, the School should 

ensure continuity during periods of staff absence. 

 

Where arrears are in excess of the 

prescribed limits set, then as per the recovery 

protocols, these should be formally referred 

to Catering Finance for further recovery 

action. 

 

Details of the current arrears should be 

submitted to Catering Finance immediately. 

 

 

Implemented 

T
udalen 179



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

5.6.2 

 

Medium 

No independent review of the Primary Departments dinner money 
records is currently being undertaken. 

A person independent of the process of 

recording and banking income  should review 

the records (i.e. subsidiary records, Bank 

Paying in Books) and certify that this income 

has been banked. 

 

At the end of each week, the authorised 

Banking Return should be signed to certify 

that the record is a true reflection of 

collections and deposits that have occurred. 

 

Implemented 

5.6.3 

 

High 

Prior to banking, income is held in a lockable drawer in the *****to 

which only the *****has the key and access to.  

 

However, during the audit the drawer was kept partly open with the key 

in the lock. 

 

Income collected should be held securely 

(e.g. in a locked tin /  in locked drawers), 

which are kept locked at all times.  

 

Access to the keys for these should then be 

restricted to appropriate staff. 

 

 

Implemented 

5.6.4 

 

Medium 

Examination of the Bank Paying In Book from September 2017 to the 

time of review established the following bankings could not be located 

on the Council’s Financials system: -  

 

• BPIB 14/9/2017 - £75.20 - Not on Financials  

• BPIB 2/10/2017 - £454.20 -Not on Financials  

• BPIB 3/10/2017 - £228.95 on Financials  

 

The School should contact the Council’s 
Bank Reconciliation section to determine 
where the bankings have been coded to 
within the Council’s Financials system. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 180



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

NOTE: - It is accepted that the School had evidence of the money 

being collected/banked by Loomis. 

 

5.6.5 

 

Medium 

Examination of the processes followed by the Primary and Secondary 

Departments in respect of School Meals revealed the following 

differences: -  

 

• The Primary Departments School Clerk does not print a 'revaluation' 

report which shows the amount collected for each class on a 

daily/weekly  to support the amounts collected and banked.  

• There is no regular reconciliation in the Primary Department to 

ensure that the income entered onto the system agrees to the actual 

income banked on a daily/weekly basis.  

• Whilst the School Clerk maintains a daily income spreadsheet, if a 

pupil pays for a dinner on a Monday, that amount is recorded against 

their name. However if the same pupil pays for another dinner on 

Tuesday, the clerk overwrites the amount entered on the Monday to 

double the amount received and does not enter separate entries on 

the  spreadsheet.  

• It was also established that the method the Primary Department‘s 
School Clerk bags the money for Loomis collection is different to the 
method used by the Secondary Department. 

The Head Cook and Primary School Clerk 

should liaise to ensure that their procedures 

for recording, reconciling and banking school 

meal income are consistent.  

 

Daily reports should be produced to detail the 

income received. The Loomis bag numbers 

should be detailed on the paying in slips, and 

cheques and coins should be separated into 

different bags. 

 

The Primary Department School Clerk should 

reconcile the daily reports to the physical 

cash and cheques banked to ensure that 

they both correspond, with evidence of these 

checks retained. 

 

Implemented 

5.7.1 

 

Medium 

Staff collect money outside of the office process  e.g. the Science 

Department sell books.  

 

However, no records are maintained by staff, with income passed to 

the office periodically to be banked. There are no supporting records to 

All staff receiving income outside of the office 

process should maintain income records. 

These records should then be checked and 

reconciled to the actual income passed to the 

office for banking. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 181



 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY 
FINDING RECOMMENDATION 

IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE 

confirm the amounts collected and passed for banking. 

 

 

 

5.7.2 

 

Low 

The School has a booking form in order to record full details of the hire, 

terms and conditions are included, and there is a space for the hirer, 

Site Manager and Headteacher to sign.  

 

At present the School only hires out premises to one organisation. 

However a booking form has not been completed for this hire. 

 

Additionally, the Site Manager, who is responsible for organising the 

hire of facilities, explained there is also no central diary for hires as 

there is currently only one hirer at the moment. 

 

 

Booking forms should be completed for every 

hire of premises. These forms should be 

signed by the Headteacher as authorisation 

of the hire. 

 

A central diary should also be put in place. 

 

Implemented 

5.7.4 

 

Low 

There is currently one invoice outstanding that was created on 12
th
 

May 2017 for £160 to 'Transport'. 

 

This payment has been pursued, however payment has yet to be 

received. 

 

The School should contact the relevant 

Debtor in respect of the amount outstanding. 

 

 

Implemented 

5.7.5 

 

Low 

Examination of the bank paying in book identified that the cash and 
cheque breakdown is clearly recorded on each slip, with the total 
amount of cheques received for each activity, e.g. uniform is recorded 
on the back of the payslip. However, there is no breakdown of each 
cheque's detail i.e. cheque number, name, amount etc. 

For all cheques received, a record should be 
maintained of all the cheque numbers, name 
on cheque, date and amounts. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 182



 
 

 
 

AUDIT NAME: HAWTHORN HIGH SCHOOL (FOLLOW-UP) 

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 30/11/2018 

INTRODUCTION 

Hawthorn High School was last subject to a routine Internal Audit in May 2017. At this time, the overall control environment in respect of the School's 

financial and governance arrangements was considered to be insufficient and required improvement. 

Following  presentation of the final report to Audit Committee, a follow-up review was requested, to ascertain whether recommendations made at the time 

had been successfully implemented. 

This audit report provides the outcome of the follow up review that has now been completed. 

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES 

Having given sufficient time for Management to implement the previous recommendations, the objective of this review was to:  

 Establish the status of all recommendations raised within the previous report. 

AUDIT OPINION 

This follow up review concludes that the overall control environment in relation to the School's financial and governance arrangements continues to be 

insufficient and requires improvement. 

The previous audit report contained 27 recommendations. 

Following a detailed follow-up audit review of the previous recommendations, the status of reach recommendation is shown below (Note: there are 3 new 
recommendations identified as a result of further audit testing):: 

 

Implemented 
Not 

Implemented 
Partially 

Implemented 
New 

Finding 

GOVERNANCE 

1 2 - 1 

- 2 1 - 

- - 1 - 

SAFEGUARDING 

- - 1 - 

- - 1 - 

- - - - 

PURCHASE CARD 

T
udalen 183



 
 

 
 

- 1 - - 

2 - - - 

- - - - 

SCHOOL INCOME 

2 - - 1 

1 1 2 1 

1 - - - 

    

1 2 - - 

- - - - 

- - - - 

BUDGETARY CONTROL 

- - - - 

1 1 - - 

- - - - 

ASSETS 

- - - - 

- 1 - - 

- 1 1 - 

9 11 7 3 

 

 

A summary of each area is provided below: - 

Governance  

The School recently ended their cleaning contract with Solo in April 2017. The process as to how the temporary contractor was appointed (for the period 
April 2017 to July 2017) and how the new 3 year contractor (which commenced in August 2017) was appointed requires a review by the Governing Body. 

The School employs an external Clerk to the Governing Body. At the commencement of the audit, it was identified that the Clerk had removed the file of 
Agendas and Minutes from the School and returned it on the day of review.  

Additionally, examination of this file highlighted that the finalised signed minutes showed signs of notes and amendments made by the Headteacher. 

Whilst the Committee Structures and Memberships are set out in the Terms of Reference for academic year 2017/18, they had once again not been formally 
documented in the Governing Body minutes to demonstrate that they were agreed by the Governing Body. Additionally, where any committee memberships 

T
udalen 184



 
 

 
 

have changed, they were  not raised as agenda items for Governing Body meetings and therefore are not formally documented or agreed by the Governing 
Body. Not all declarations of business interests have been completed or retained at the School (5 could not be located). 

In respect of Statutory Policies, the School were unable to provide copies of the agreed and signed versions of any Policies that had been presented to the 

Governing Body since 2013-14, which were the last signed versions of each Policy held by the School. S 
Safeguarding 

Whilst the School have adopted the Child Safeguarding Policy, a signed copy of the Policy was not available at the School at the time of review. 

It was established that Level 1 Safeguarding training has been provided at the School on 4
th
 September 2017; however there are still 9 members of staff (8 

permanent/temporary and 1 casual) that have not yet received formal training. 

Payments have been made to individuals with no prior HMRC Employability questionnaire completed. 

School Income 

The School have developed a Finance Policy that contains detail of how each area of administration should be managed; however it does not include 
details of the roles/responsibilities of the individuals presently involved. 

There are various issues identified in respect of the hire of facilities/block bookings. These include hires not being authorised by the Headteacher, there are 
contracts with some hirers that are either out of date or not signed, VAT is not being correctly charged/accounted for and incorrect rates of hire have been 
charged in some instances. 

Banking 

Evidence to demonstrate that bank reconciliations were  undertaken was inconsistent. For example, transactions were not always ticked and the bank 
statements were not always signed and dated. This could be attributed to the fact that there were three different members of staff undertaking this process 
depending on availability, which appears to be contributing to the inconsistencies. 

It is noted that since the last review, the School’s bank account has not been overdrawn. 

Budgetary Control 

The Finance Officer and Estates Manager undertake virements where required, and these are now undertaken appropriately. 

Heads of Department are responsible for managing their own budgets. However, Budget Holders are not provided with regular budget reports from SIMS to 
enable them to effectively monitor and reconcile their budgets, i.e. they do not receive any formal notification if they have used their allocated budget. 

Assets 

The School have introduced a book for equipment taken off-site; however it is not completed by the person taking the items from the School. 

The School still does not have an inventory and whilst there is a 3 year Building Development Plan, there remains no estimated costs attributed to any of the 
priorities listed in the document. 

Purchase Card 

Examinations identified that all purchases examined during the sample period had an appropriate receipt available. 

This audit has identified potential inappropriate spend through the School’s systems, four payments made (in July, November and December 2017) using 
the Purchase Card for the purchase of alcohol and gift vouchers, totalling £233.85. Although it was explained that the intention would be for these type of 
purchases to be reimbursed from a donation made to the School, spend of this nature (through the School’s financial systems) is not considered 
appropriate. In future, if this kind of spend is considered necessary by the Headteacher and Chair of Governors then it must take place completely outside of 
the School‘s finances. 

 

T
udalen 185



 

 

 

 

 

 

5.1 GOVERNANCE 
 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE  

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT      

RESPONSE 

5.1.1 
 

Medium 

Section 54(2) of 'The 
Government of Maintained 
Schools (Wales) Regulations 
2005' states that: 
 
'The Governing Body must 
determine the constitution, 
membership and terms of 
reference of any committee 
it decides to establish and 
review them annually.' 
 

Whilst the Governing Body's 
composition and committee 
structure has been 
established, the Terms of 
Reference had not been 
formally minuted as 
approved for this current 
academic year. 

The committee 
structure, composition 
and terms of reference 
should be agreed on an 
annual basis and 
minuted during the first 
Governing Body 
meeting of the 
academic year. 

Estates Manager &  

Clerk to the  

Governing Body  

 

31
st
 January 2018. 

Confirmed to have not been implemented. 

 

The Headteacher indicated this 
recommendation had been implemented in the 
initial audit report and when scoping this follow 
up review, but audit testing has confirmed that 
the recommendation has not been 
implemented. 

 

Additionally it was identified that when 
Committee Memberships change at any point, 
these amendments are not formally ratified by 
the Governing Body. 

The Committee Structure, 
Composition and Terms of 
Reference are minuted and agreed 
on an annual basis during the first 
Governing Body meeting of the 
academic year.  
 

Amendments to a Committee's 
Membership throughout the year 
are raised as an agenda item for the 
Governing Body, and formally 
minuted and agreed by the 
Governing Body. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY & 
TARGET DATE 

The committee 
structure, composition 
and terms of reference 
have been agreed 
upon, and will be 
minuted during the next 
Full Governing Body 
meeting. 

The Committee Structure, Composition and 
Terms of Reference should be minuted and 
agreed on an annual basis during the first 
Governing Body meeting of the academic 
year.  
 
Additionally, should there be any amendments 
to a Committee's Membership throughout the 
year, this should raised as an agenda item for 
the Governing Body, also be formally minuted 
and agreed by the Governing Body. 

Chair of Governors & Headteacher  
 

January 2019 

  

T
udalen 186



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE  

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT      

RESPONSE 

5.1.2 
 

Medium 

Section 47 of 'The 
Government of Maintained 
Schools (Wales) Regulations 
2005 states that: 
 

'The Clerk...must ensure that 
minutes of the proceedings 
of a meeting of the 
Governing Body are drawn 
up and signed by the 
Chair...Minutes of 
proceedings must be entered 
into a book kept for the 
purpose by the Clerk or on 
loose leaf pages 
consecutively numbered; but 
in that case the person 
signing the minutes must 
initial each page.'  
 

All original signed minutes 
and attendance sheets are 
held off-site by the external 
Clerk to the Governing Body, 
appointed by the School.  
 

The Clerk provided the 
School with Governing Body 
minutes for the last 3 years 
for review by Internal Audit, 
and the following issues were 
noted: 
 
 

 
(CONTINUED) 

In line with statutory 
requirements, each loose 
leaf page should be 
consecutively numbered 
and initialled by the Chair 
of Governors. 
 
It should also be ensured 
that the format and layout 
of the minutes are also 
consistent. 
 

All original, signed 
documentation should be 
retained at the school. 

Clerk to the  

Governing Body 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been partially 
implemented. 

 

The Headteacher indicated this 
recommendation had been implemented in 
the initial audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review, but audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has 
been partially implemented. 

 

The Clerk to the Governors had taken the 
file containing all minutes and agendas 
home to put in order ahead of the audit. 
This was done 10 days prior to the audit. 

 

It was identified on examinations that 
within the file of minutes/agendas (which 
are final agreed versions) a number of the 
minutes have been written on with 
amendments/items crossed out. 
 
Additionally, the structure of the minutes do 
not appear to be appropriate, with minimal 
details recorded, no supporting documents 
attached or retained on file to refer to, and 
it is unclear as to what was agreed or not 
agreed for each item discussed. Should 
the Chair of a meeting leave a meeting, no 
replacement is put into place to act up as 
Chair in their absence. 
 
 

The formal layout of the minutes are 
consistent.   

 

All original signed minutes are 
retained at the school. 

   

The structure of the minutes are 
appropriate and Governing Body 
decisions are recorded.  We shall 
consider the wording of minutes 
going forward. 

 

Meetings are chaired at all times. 
We had presumed that the 
presence of the Chair of Governors 
in a meeting would suffice as a 
‘default’ Chair if the sub-committee 
Chair had to leave the room.  Audit 
have confirmed that their 
expectation is that, even if the Chair 
of Governors is present, a new 
Chair needs to be formally put in 
place each time in such a situation. 

 

  

T
udalen 187



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY & 
TARGET DATE 

Continued  The minutes were 
inconsistently printed on 
headed paper; 

 Items discussed and 
agreed were 
inconsistently numbered; 

 Loose-leaf pages are not 
numbered; 

 Sub-committee minutes 
were not signed by the 
Chair. 

Agreed. The Clerk to the 
Governing Body has 
implemented this 
requirement. 

 

 All original, signed agendas, documents & 
minutes should be retained at the school, 
which should not be amended/written on. 
 
The Headteacher should ensure that the 
structure and format of all Governing Body 
and Sub-Committee meeting minutes are 
appropriate and consistent, by ensuring 
they contain more details in respect of any 
reports presented (which should also be 
retained as part of the schools file) and 
what is discussed and resolved/agreed for 
each item raised.  

 

Additionally, it should be ensured each 
meeting has a clearly identified and 
documented Chairperson of a meeting at 
all times. 

Headteacher 
 

All Governing Body meetings going 
forward 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 188



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE  

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT      

RESPONSE 

5.1.3 
 

Medium 

Section 43(d) of The 
Government of 
Maintained Schools 
(Wales) Regulations 
2005 states: 
 
'The Clerk to the 
Governing Body must 
maintain a register of 
governors' attendance 
at meetings' 
 
Of the 56 minutes 
examined since the 
last review in 
December 2014, 
attendance sheets 
were only present for 
7, all of which were for 
Full Governing Body 
meetings.  
 

It was also noted that 
on 3 of the attendance 
sheets, some members 
had ticked to 
demonstrate that they 
were present, but no 
signatures were 
provided.  

The Clerk should retain 
registers of Governor 
attendance for all 
Governing Body 
meetings (including 
sub-committees). 
 

All Governing Body 
members should 
ensure that they sign to 
confirm their 
attendance. 

Clerk to the  

Governing Body 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have not been implemented. 

 

The Headteacher indicated this 
recommendation had been implemented in 
the initial audit report and when scoping this 
follow up review, but audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has not 
been implemented. 

 

Examinations and discussions with the Clerk 
to the Governors established that she only 
maintains attendance registers for full 
Governing Body meetings. Additionally these 
are not necessarily signed by the Governors 
attending, with ticks recorded to document 
those present. 
 
No Sub-Committee meetings had an 
attendance register in place. 
 
 

The Governing Body have formally agreed to 
adopt a signing in procedure for all meetings. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY & TARGET 
DATE 

Agreed. The Clerk to 
the Governing Body 
has implemented this 
requirement. 

 

The Headteacher should ensure 
attendances registers of Governor 
attendance for all Governing Body and Sub-
Committee meetings. 
 
All Governing Body members should ensure 
that they sign to confirm their attendance. 

Chair of Governors & Headteacher 
 

January 2019 

 

T
udalen 189



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT 

NEW  

MANAGEMENT                       

RESPONSE 

5.1.4 
 

Low 

The membership of 
governing bodies is 
set out in chapter 3 of 
The Government of 
Maintained Schools 
(Wales) Regulations 
2005, which specifies 
that the composition 
of the Governing Body 
should consist of 6 
Parent Governors, 5 
LEA Governors and 2 
Teacher Governors. 
 
During the audit, there 
were 5 Governing 
Body vacancies: 
 
1 x LEA 
3 x Parent 

1 x Teacher 

The School should 
endeavour to fill the 
Governor vacancies as 
soon as possible. 

Estates Manager & 
Clerk to the  

Governing Body 

 

31
st
 January 2018. 

Confirmed to have been partially 
implemented. 

 

The Headteacher indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit 
report and when scoping this follow 
up review, but audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation 
has been partially implemented. 

 

During the audit, it was identified 
that there is currently 1 Community 
Governing Body vacancy. 

All Governing Body vacancies are discussed at full 
meetings under an agenda item. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Teacher Governor 
appointed, Parent 
Governor nominations 
completed, to be 
confirmed at next Full 
Governing Body meeting. 
LEA vacancy will be filled 
as soon as possible. 

The School should endeavour to fill 
the Governor vacancy as soon as 
possible. 

Chair of Governors & Headteacher 
 

January 2019 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 190



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT 

NEW  

MANAGEMENT                       

RESPONSE 

5.1.5 
 

High 

Section 2.9 of the Scheme 
for Financing Schools states 
that: 
 
'Governing bodies are 
required to establish a 
register of business 
interests...which lists for 
each member of the 
governing body and the 
Head Teacher any business 
interests they or any member 
of their immediate family 
have. The register must be 
kept up-to-date by 
notification of changes from 
governors and the Head 
Teacher, and through an 
annual review process'. 

 
Whilst it was detailed in the 
minutes of 6

th
 October 2016 

that Governors had 
completed the Declarations 
of Business Interests forms, 
and that they had been 
retained at the school, 5 
declarations could not be 
located. 
 

For the declarations that 
were located, 10 were dated 
from 15

th
 - 17

th
 May 2017 

(i.e. during the audit review), 
and 2 others were not dated.  

The Register of 
Business Interests 
should be completed at 
the first full Governing 
Body meeting of each 
academic year. 

 

All declarations should 
be held at the School. 

Clerk to the  

Governing Body 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have not been 
implemented. 

 

The Headteacher indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit 
report and when scoping this follow 
up review, but audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation 
has not been implemented. 

 

Examinations established that whilst 
some Governors had completed 
their Declarations of Business 
Interests forms, and that they had 
been retained at the school, 5 
declarations could not be located. 
Additionally, 1 Governor’s 
declaration had only printed details 
and a signature whilst 4 other 
declarations had not been dated to 
confirm when they had been 
completed. 

All Governors are required to complete a 
Declaration of Business Interests during the 
Autumn term of every academic year. 

 

This is a standard agenda point for Autumn 
Governing Body meetings. 

 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Agreed. The Clerk to 
the Governing Body 
has implemented this 
requirement. 

 

The Register of Business Interests 
should be completed at the first full 
Governing Body meeting of each 
academic year.  
 
All declarations should be fully 
completed and held at the School.  

Chair of Governors & Headteacher 
 

All relevant Governing Body meetings going 
forward 

T
udalen 191



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-
UP AUDIT 

NEW  

MANAGEMENT                       

RESPONSE 

5.1.6 
 

High 

Section 56(2) of The 
Government of Maintained 
Schools (Wales) Regulations 
2005 states: 
 
'The pupil discipline and 
exclusions committee must 
consist of either three or five 
governors, but must not 
include the Headteacher' 

 

Whilst the Headteacher is 
not one of the committee 
members for the Pupil 
Discipline and Exclusion 
committee, the Headteacher 
was minuted as 'present' at 2 
meetings examined (18

th
 

November 2015 and 8
th
 

February 2016), alongside 
the other Governing Body 
members who were also 
'present'. 

 

Discussions confirmed that 
the Headteacher was 
present as an 'Advisor', 
however this was not clear. 

For transparency, it 
should be ensured that 
where the Headteacher 
attends a Pupil Discipline 
and Exclusion committee 
meeting as an 'Advisor', 
that this is clearly 
minuted. 

Clerk to the  

Governing Body 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been 
implemented. 

 

The Headteacher indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit 
report and when scoping this 
follow up review, audit testing 
has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been 
implemented. 

Not required as original recommendation 
implemented. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED 
RECOMMENDATION 

UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY  

& TARGET DATE 

Noted. Future minutes 
will reflect the 
Headteacher’s role as an 
‘Advisor’ when attending 
a Pupil Discipline and 
Exclusion committee 
meeting. 

 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 192



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.1.7 
 

High 

Whilst all statutory 
policies and 
documents were in 
place, issues were 
identified in terms of 
the frequency of 
review of some 
policies, and in 
demonstrating that 
they were ratified by 
the Governing Body 
(i.e. policies were 
not minuted as 
ratified). 

Policies should be 
reviewed in line with 
statutory requirements. 
 
For policies that do not 
require an annual review, 
the school should 
introduce a policy review 
schedule to ensure that 
policies are reviewed on 
a cyclical basis, e.g. 
every 3 years. 
 

It should be ensured that 
each policy / document 
discussed and agreed is 
clearly detailed in the 
minutes for transparency. 

Estates Manager & 
Clerk to the  

Governing Body 

 

31
st
 January 2018 

Confirmed to have not been implemented. 

 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review, but audit testing has confirmed that 
the recommendation has not been implemented. 

 
Discussions with the Estates Manager and examinations of 
the Policies file held at the school established that whilst 
there are in place a number of Policies, the majority are out 
of date. 
 

It was found following examination of Governing Body 
minutes that more up to date versions of these Policies had 
been presented to the Governing Body. However, the 
versions of these Policies endorsed by the Chair of 
Governors could not be located. 
 

Note - It is also noted that further reviewed Policies were to 
be presented to Governors in March 2018. 

A rolling program reviewing and 
adopting policies is now in 
place. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

A formal policy schedule 
is being implemented 
with the Clerk to the 
Governing Body to 
ensure that policies are 
reviewed as required.  

Policies should be reviewed in line with statutory 
requirements. 
 

For policies that do not require an annual review, the 
school should introduce a policy review schedule to ensure 
that policies are reviewed on a cyclical basis, e.g. every 3 
years. 
 

It should be ensured that for each policy / document 
discussed and agreed by the Governing Body, a copy is 
signed as ratified by the Chair of Governors and retained at 
the school. 

Chair of Governors & 
Headteacher  

 
March 2019 

 

T
udalen 193



 

 

 

 

 

 

5.2 SAFEGUARDING 
 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT 

NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.2.1 
 

Medium 

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners 
Safe: The role of local authorities, 
governing bodies and proprietors of 
independent schools under the 
Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 
158/2015) states that: 
 

'Governing Bodies should....ensure 
that all staff and volunteers who work 
with children undertake appropriate 
training to equip them with the 
knowledge and skills that are 
necessary to carry out their 
responsibilities for child protection 
effectively, which is kept up to date by 
refresher training' 
 
There are 4 members of staff trained 
to Level 3, and certificates were 
retained at the School for each. 
 
Whole School Level 1 training was 
provided on 2

nd
 September 2016. A 

training record was presented to 
Internal Audit during the review, which 
was compared to the staff list obtained 
from the Vision team.  
 
From this record, it was identified that 
26 members of staff had not attended 
training that day (9 of which were 
casual / temporary staff).  
 

(CONTINUED) 

The School should 
develop a central 
training record, to 
demonstrate the date 
and level of attainment 
alongside individual 
staff names. This could 
be incorporated into the 
Child Protection Policy 
to allow the 
assessment of training 
requirements to 
coincide with the 
policy's annual review.  
 

It should be ensured 
that Safeguarding 
training is also provided 
to all casual / 
temporary staff, tutors 
and supply staff, with a 
record of the training 
detailed on the central 
training record. 

Estates Manager, 
Deputy Headteacher 

and Clerk to the 
Governing Body 

 

31
st
 January 2018 

Confirmed to have been partially 
implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this 
recommendation had been implemented 
in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review, but audit 
testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been partially 
implemented, with the training record 
now signed by staff. 
 

Whole School Level 1 training was 
provided on 4th September 2017. A 
training record was presented to Internal 
Audit during the review, which was 
compared to the staff list obtained from 
the Vision team. 
 

From this record, it was identified that 9 
(8 permanent/temporary and 1 casual) 
members of staff had not attended 
training that day (7 of which were at the 
school prior to the last report being 
finalised, and 2 commencing since). 
 

Additionally, whilst the Governing Body 
ratified the Safeguarding Policy in Spring 
2017, a signed copy of the Policy was not 
available at the school at the time of 
audit. 

 

Given the audit was completed 
in February 2018; the 
recommendations have now 
been fully implemented 
effective the start of school year 
2018/19. 

 

A training record is now 
maintained in the Safeguarding 
Policy file. 

 

T
udalen 194



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Continued However, another 
attendance list was 
provided to Internal 
Audit at the conclusion 
of the review. Whilst 
this document states 
that there were only 4 
members of staff not in 
attendance that day (all 
temporary / casual), the 
attendance for all other 
members of staff is 
confirmed by ticks next 
to their names; not 
signatures. 

A Central training record is 
currently being 
implemented. The record 
incorporates all appropriate 
training details for all staff 
(casual and temporary), 
tutors and supply. 

 The School should ensure that Safeguarding training 
is provided to all staff (including casual / temporary 
staff, tutors and supply staff), with a record of the 
training detailed on the central training record. 
 

Additionally, a signed copy of the Safeguarding Policy 
should be retained at the school, with each member 
of staff, including casual supervisory assistants and 
exam invigilators signing to demonstrate that they 
have received, read and understood the Child 
Safeguarding Policy.  
 

NOTE: - This is to be in compliance with point 3.1 of 
the Cwm Taf Safeguarding Children Board (CTSCB) 
Model Safeguarding Policy which states: 
 

'The Designated Senior Person (DSP) for Child 
Protection will...Ensure that all staff have signed to 
say that they have received, read and understood the 
Child Safeguarding Policy'. 

Estates Manager & 
Headteacher 

 

March 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 195



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.2.2 
 

High 

A circular was issued to 
all schools from the 
Temporary Director of 
Education and Lifelong 
Learning on 17

th
 

November 2015 
regarding employment 
status, and how to 
identify an entity as an 
employee or self-
employed. Following the 
completion of a 
questionnaire on the 
HMRC website, should 
the entity be regarded 
as an employee, then 
the entity should be paid 
via the Council's payroll 
system. 
 

Testing identified that 
there are currently 2 
Tutors who attend the 
School; a Brass Tutor 
and a Maths Tutor, both 
of whom are paid via the 
School budget account. 
No HMRC checks have 
been undertaken for 
either individual. 

Before a School engages 
with an entity for the 
provision of services, the 
HMRC employment status 
check should be 
undertaken for all 
individuals using the 
HMRC Employment Status 
Indicator (ESI) tool. 
 
A HMRC employment 
status check should be 
undertaken for each of 
these tutors immediately, 
with evidence of each 
check retained at the 
School. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been partially implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had 
been implemented in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review, but audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has been partially 
implemented, with the training record now signed by 
staff. 

 

Testing identified that since the last review, one of the 
tutors identified has now been employed by the 
school following their HMRC check, with the other 
remaining self employed. However, the Estates 
Manager could not provide evidence of their HMRC 
check. 
 

Additionally, the school employ a Clerk to the 
Governing Body. No HMRC check has been 
undertaken for her either. 

Fully implemented with PDF 
copies forwarded to RCT 
Finance, and copies retained on 
file in the finance office. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

The checks have now 
been completed for the 
two Tutors identified. 

Before a School engages with any entity for the 
provision of services, they must review the 
employment status using the HMRC online tool. 
 

A HMRC employment status check should be 
undertaken for the two entities identified immediately, 
with evidence of each check retained at the School. 

 
Note: The School should also be aware of the change 
in requirements that link to the HMRC IR35. 

Estates Manager &  
Finance Officer  

 
January 2019 

 

T
udalen 196



 

 

 

 

 

 

5.3 PURCHASE CARD 
 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.3.1 
 

High 

Of the 61 Purchase Card 
transactions examined as a 
sample, the following were 
identified as inappropriate: 
 

1
st
 September 2016 - Makro - 

£165.50 
Prosecco Spumante & 
Glasses 
(4 x cases (16 bottles) of 
prosecco and 4 glasses)  
 

31
st
 October 2016 - Spiros - 

£410.00 
Deposit paid for staff 
Christmas function. (The 
income was later received 
from the members of staff 
and banked into the budget 
account). 
 

25
th

 November - Flower 
Power - £20.50 
Gift for a member of staff 
who left. 
 

2
nd

 December 2016 - Spiros - 
£723.13 
Paid the balance of the staff 
Christmas function. (The 
income was received from 
the members of staff and 
banked into the budget 
account). 
 

(CONTINUED) 

All potential expenditure 
should be subject to 
challenge by the 
Headteacher to ensure 
that the School can 
demonstrate value for 
money and that funds 
have been utilised in a 
prudent manner. 
 
Gifts for staff should be 
financed by a staff 
collection in future. 
 
Under no circumstances 
should the school's 
Purchase Card be used 
to pay for staff functions 
(even on a temporary 
basis), and the income 
subsequently reimbursed 
to the budget account. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have not been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit report 
and when scoping this follow up review, but 
audit testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has not been implemented. 
 

 

Discussions identified that an anonymous 
donation was made for £1,000 to the School 
Private Fund on 7th November 2016 for 
payments to be made at the Headteachers 
discretion and this expenditure was to be 
reimbursed from the Fund to cover this cost from 
the “Headteachers Pot”. Whilst there were no 
inappropriate purchases identified during the 
sample period examined (since the last report 
was finalised), it was identified that there had 
been four payments made (in July, November 
and December 2017) using the Purchase Card 
for the purchase of alcohol and gift vouchers, 
totalling £233.85.  

 
Discussions during the audit visit identified that 
for these items, the School Budget was to be 
reimbursed by the "Headteachers Pot” within the 
School Private Fund. However, at the time of the 
audit visit, there was a balance of £207.99 
remaining of the £1,000 donation; hence there is 
a shortfall of £25.86 to be found. Additionally, 
the reimbursements are yet to take place, 
although some are several months old. 

Previous findings had been 
implemented, however the issue 
of expenditure from Private Fund 
had not been incorporated into 
the procedure.  This has now 
been fully implemented. 

 

Donations which are free of 
restrictions will be controlled via 
PTA accounts on the 
recommendations of audit. T

udalen 197



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Continued In addition, no receipts 
were located for 3 
transactions, therefore 
it could not be 
confirmed as to 
whether the purchases 
were appropriate 
(please refer to 5.3.2). 

All recommendations have 
been fully implemented with 
regards the Purchase Card 
transactions. 

 

 Going forward, such purchases cannot be made 
using the School Budget or Private Fund accounts. 
Additionally, should a donation of a similar nature in 
future, this cannot be held within either the School 
Budget or Private Fund accounts and alternative 
arrangements should be made for the processing of 
these transactions. 

Finance Manager 

 

March 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 198



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE 
FOLLOW-UP AUDIT 

NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.3.2 
 

Medium 

Difficulties were experienced in 
locating the supporting 
documentation for the 
Purchase Card transactions 
examined. Whilst the majority 
were located eventually, no 
receipts were found for the 
following: 
 

 9
th

 September 2016 - 
Jewson Ltd - £186.78 

 22
nd

 September 2016 - 
Promotional Production - 
£87.00 

 17
th

 March 2017 - RSS 
Magor Motorway - £30.00 

 
In addition, there was no 
appropriate VAT receipt 
present to accompany the 
following transactions: 
 

 10
th

 June 2016 - Paypal - 
£321.54 gross, £53.59 VAT 

 31
st
 August 2016 - Fitness 

Superstore - £135.98 gross, 
£22.66 VAT 

 8
th

 November 2016 - 
www.lampshoponline - 
71.70 gross, £11.95 VAT  

 9
th

 December 2016 - Paypal 
- £318 gross, £53.10 VAT  

 10th January 2017 - Paypal 
£210.00 gross, £25.00 VAT 

 7
th

 February 2017 - Paypal 
£358.80 gross, £59.80 VAT 

The School should reconsider the way in 
which financial documentation is filed, to 
allow evidence / supporting documentation 
to be located more efficiently.  
 
Every effort should be made to obtain all 
receipts and appropriate VAT receipts 
where VAT is to be reclaimed. An 
appropriate VAT receipt should include: 
• details of the sale including the tax 

date;  
• the suppliers VAT registration number;  
• the amount paid for the goods or 

services;  
• the amount of VAT that the supplier 

has charged to you. 
 
If a VAT receipt cannot be obtained and it 
is unknown as to whether the individual / 
company is VAT registered, it should be 
assumed that they are not, and therefore 
the gross amount should be treated as 
outside the scope.  

 
If a receipt cannot be obtained, a ‘Record 
of Expenditure without Receipt’ form 
should be completed, and signed by 2 
members of staff. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been 
implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated 
this recommendation had 
been implemented in the initial 
audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review, audit 
testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been 
implemented. 

 

Examinations identified that all 
purchases examined during 
the sample period had an 
appropriate receipt available.  

 

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented. 

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY & TARGET 
DATE  

UPDATED 
RECOMMENDATION 

UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY  

& TARGET DATE 

All recommendations have been fully 
implemented with a new filing system in 
place. 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable 

 

T
udalen 199



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.3.3 
 

Medium 

All purchase card 
transactions are 
confirmed via a monthly 
statement received on 
the 3

rd
 of each month, 

and the respective 
direct debit for the 
monthly sum taken from 
the School bank 
account on the 10

th
.  

 
In order for SIMS to 
replicate the School 
Bank Statement, a 
Cash Book journal 
should be undertaken 
on receipt of the 
Purchase Card Bank 
Statement. 
 
During the last financial 
year (16/17), delays 
were identified in 
completing journals for 
8 of the 12 months' 
bank statements, up to 
21 days on one 
occasion. 

The cashbook journals for all 
purchase card payments 
should be updated to SIMS 
as soon as possible 
following receipt of the Bank 
Statements to ensure that 
SIMS correctly reflects the 
expenditure that has been 
incurred. 

Estates Manager      
& Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had 
been implemented in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review, audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has been 
implemented. 

 

On examination for a sample period it was found that 
there were no delays noted in cashbook journals 
being undertaken. 

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY  

& TARGET DATE 

Recommendations fully 
implemented.  The 
cashbook journals for all 
purchase card payments are 
being updated to SIMS as 
soon as possible following 
receipt of the Bank 
Statements. 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 200



 

 

 

 

 

 

5.4 SCHOOL INCOME 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.4.1 
 

Medium 

Several requests 
were made following 
the scoping meeting 
and during the audit 
review for a copy of 
the school's 
Financial 
Procedures. There 
was uncertainty as 
to whether there 
was such a 
document initially, 
however a copy was 
provided to Internal 
Audit following the 
closure meeting.  
 
Whilst all aspects of 
Finance and 
Administration are 
detailed, the 
document does not 
specify responsibility 
for tasks.  
 

Additionally, the 
document still refers 
to Petty Cash; 
however the School 
no longer operate a 
Petty Cash account. 

The Finance Policy should be 
enhanced to specify the 
individual staff responsible for 
the school's financial and 
administrative tasks.   
 
Once completed, the 
procedures should be 
presented to the Governing 
Body for approval and issued 
to all appropriate members of 
staff.  
 
NB: Any revision to the Policy 
should take into account 
recommendations raised 
elsewhere in this report.  

Estates Manager & 
Clerk to the 

Governing Body 

 

31
st
 March 2018 

Confirmed to have been partially implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had 
been partially implemented when scoping this follow up 
review, and audit testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been partially implemented. 

 

Since the last review, the School have developed a draft 
Finance Policy that contains guidance of how each area 
of administration should be managed. 
 

However, it lacks sufficient detail of the 
roles/responsibilities of the individuals presently involved. 

Draft Finance Policy has been 
prepared and contains 
guidance of how each area of 
administration should be 
managed. 
 

Details of specific roles and 
responsibilities will be 
expanded upon.  Audit have 
been asked to provide a 
‘model’ policy for future use at 
Hawthorn High School. 

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY 
& TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Recommendations noted and 
the revised policy will be 
presented to Full Governors at 
the next available opportunity. 

The Finance Policy should be enhanced to define system 
processes and the individual staff responsibilities within 
them across all areas of the School's financial 
administration. 
 
Once completed, the procedures should be presented to 
the Governing Body for approval and issued to all 
appropriate members of staff. 
 
NB: Any revision to the Policy should take into account 
recommendations raised elsewhere in this report. 

Estates Manager  
 

March 2019 

 

T
udalen 201



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 
ORIGINAL 

MANAGEMENT 
RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.4.2 
 

Medium 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Continued 

Examination of the 
'Booking Form and 
Usage Contract' for 
school hires 
identified that whilst 
they state that 
'Cheques should be 
made payable to 
Hawthorn High 
School' and that 
'cash payments 
may be made to the 
reception at 
Hawthorn 
Swimming Pool', 
the booking form 
does not state the 
terms and 
conditions of 
payment, i.e. that 
payment should be 
made within 21 
days. 

 

At the time of the 
audit review, there 
was £4,824.50 
owed to the school 
in respect of hires, 
of which £4,236.50 
was in excess of 21 
days old.  

 

 

 

The 'Booking Form 
and Usage Contract' 
should be amended 
to include terms and 
conditions for 
payment, i.e. 21 
days. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Estates Manager 
& Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been partially implemented. 

 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had been implemented in the 
initial audit report and when scoping this follow up review, but audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has been partially implemented. 

 

Examination of SIMS for school hires identified that the payment terms have 
been amended to ensure that the due date on the debtors invoice is 21 days 
for payments. However, examination of the 'Booking Form and Usage 
Contract; showed that these have not been updated to state that invoices are 
to be paid within 21 days. Furthermore, the booking forms do not state any 
arrears procedure. 
 
At the time of the audit review, a debtor report was obtained from SIMS which 
shows a balance owed to the School of £19,969.10. Of this balance, there is 
£4,305.50 owed from the School Private Fund - £3,225.52 of which is owed in 
respect of the School production of High School Musical (please refer to 5.3.4 
regarding this).  
 
Examination of the Aged Debtor Report from SIMS revealed that there are 2 
invoices outstanding in excess of 61 days old : - 
 

 Cardiff City Foundation - £200 

 Central South Consortium - £540 
 
No evidence could be found on the copy invoices to suggest any form of a 
follow up for payment. 
 
Similarly, there are invoices outstanding in excess of 31 days old for: 
 

 Dolphin Swim Academy - £220 

 Sink or Swim - £3,510 

 Starfish Swim School - £990 
 

There is no evidence to suggest any arrears processes, with the Pool Manager 
unable to confirm there was any process in place either. 

Outstanding 
payments highlighted 
are now all up to 
date. 

 

Zero bad debt write-
offs in the last four 
years. 

 

Wording on the 
contracts has been 
amended as 
recommended 
following the audit. 

T
udalen 202



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Continued  Recommendation 
fully implemented, 
with terms and 
conditions amended 
as required. 

 The 'Booking Form and Usage Contract' should be amended to include 
terms and conditions for payment, i.e. 21 days. 
 
The amounts outstanding to the school should be followed up 
immediately. The amount owed by the School Private Fund should be 
transferred to the School Budget Account. 
 
The Headteacher should consider each balance outstanding to determine 
if any of the debtors are to be written off. 

Estates Manager 

 

March 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 203



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.4.3 
 

Medium 

At present, 
neither the 
Headteacher nor 
the Estates 
Manager are 
routinely notified 
of the hires at 
the school. All 
are solely 
managed and 
issued by the 
Pool Manager. 

While it is acknowledged that it is part 
of the Pool Manager's role to manage 
hires for the school's facilities, 
Management should be formally 
notified of all hires, usage and income 
received on a regular basis. 

Estates Manager 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have not been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit report 
and when scoping this follow up review, but audit 
testing has confirmed that the recommendation 
has not been implemented. 
 
It was established that whilst the Estates Manager 
is informed of hires, with hires continue to have 
not been formally authorised by the Headteacher 
or Estates Manager. 

Full delegated authority for 
hires and contracts, has been 
devolved to the Estates 
Manager by the Governing 
Body since the audit report.  

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY & 
TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Accepted. The Estates Manager is now 
routinely notified of the hires, usage 
and income received at the school. 

All hire forms received should be authorised by 
the Headteacher before the hire commences. 
 

Estates Manager  
 

January 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 204



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.4.4 
 

Low 

Income received in 
respect of the swimming 
pool, Astroturf and 
school ties are collected 
outside of the Finance 
Office.  
 
The Pool Manager, who 
receives income relating 
to the pool and 
Astroturf, records 
income when received, 
and passes the income 
to the Finance Officer 
weekly for banking. 
Both members of staff 
sign to confirm the 
handover of cash, but 
not cheques. 

The handover of cash and 
cheques should be signed 
by both parties, to 
demonstrate that all 
amounts agree. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had 
been implemented in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review, audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has been 
implemented, with processes now in place to confirm 
the handover of cash and cheques. 

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY  

& TARGET DATE 

Recommendation fully 
implemented. 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 205



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.4.5 
 

Medium 

Delays were identified 
in bankings made 
throughout the 2016/17 
Financial Year, up to 36 
days in one instance. 
 

 

All income received (both 
cash and cheque) should be 
banked regularly i.e. weekly 
where income collected 
exceeds £50 and 
immediately where cash 
exceeds £200. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer 

 

31
st
 March 2018 

Confirmed to have been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit report and 
when scoping this follow up review, audit testing 
has confirmed that the recommendation has been 
implemented, with no delays in banking now found. 

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY  

& TARGET DATE 

Cash takings are now being 
banked twice weekly. We 
are currently investigating 
regular cash pick-ups in line 
with Catering Direct cash 
collections. 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable 

T
udalen 206



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.4.6 
 

High 

There are 2 safes in the 
School; one in the 
Finance Office, and 
another at the Pool.  
 
No issues were 
identified in terms of the 
access to the safe in 
the Finance Officer.  
 

However, it was noted 
that for the Pool safe, 
all 3 members of staff 
can access the safe, in 
addition to casual staff 
who are occasionally 
employed at busy 
periods. 

Whilst at the school income 
should be held in a secure 
place with limited access to 
appropriate authorised staff. 

Estates Manager 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had 
been implemented in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review. 

 

Audit testing has confirmed that the recommendation 
has been implemented, whereby it has been 
determined by Management that the staff with access 
to the safes are appropriate. 

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY  

& TARGET DATE 

The systems in the Pool 
have been amended. Only 
two members of 
management now have 
access to the safe.  Casual 
staff no longer have any 
access to the safe. 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable 

  

T
udalen 207



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT 

NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.4.7 
 

High 

All bookings for the swimming pool and 
Astroturf are managed by a system that the 
school purchased called the EZ booking 
system. The Pool Manager is responsible 
for using the system.  
 

For every booking made on the system, an 
'account' is created, and invoices 
automatically generated. The invoices 
created from the EZ system are then 
provided to the Finance Officer in order for 
her to create a replica invoice on SIMS to 
ensure that SIMS (as the main accounting 
system) is up-to-date with the anticipated 
income due to the school. However the 
invoices created from the EZ system are 
the ones that are sent to customers.  
 

The following issues were noted: 
 

 There is a duplication of work; 

 The EZ invoices are not official Council 
invoices, and do not include the 
Council's VAT number; 

 The EZ invoices do not state terms and 
conditions for payment; 

 The Aged Debtor Report from SIMS, and 
Accounts Receivable report from EZ 
were compared for this financial year, 
and the amounts owed to the school 
were different on both reports (£4,824.50 
on EZ and £7,631.35 on SIMS). 

 

 
(CONTINUED) 

Invoices sent to 
customers relating to the 
swimming pool and 
Astroturf bookings should 
be issued from SIMS, as 
this is the School's main 
accounting system. The 
invoice will contain the 
Council's VAT number 
and will detail the terms 
and conditions of 
payment; however it 
should be ensured that 
the correct VAT codes 
are used. 
 

The invoices that are 
created from the EZ 
system should be 
supplementary 
information to support the 
SIMS invoice sent to the 
customer. 

 
This will also ensure that 
there is a segregation of 
duties. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been 
implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report 
and when scoping this follow up 
review, audit testing has confirmed 
that the recommendation has been 
implemented. 

 

For every booking made on the 
school booking system, an 'account' 
is created, and invoices automatically 
generated. The invoices created from 
the system are then provided to the 
Finance Officer in order for her to 
create a replica invoice on SIMS to 
ensure that SIMS (as the main 
accounting system) is up-to-date with 
the anticipated income due to the 
school. The invoices created from the 
schools booking system are now 
being used as backing documents 
which are attached to the SIMS 
invoices which are sent to hirers. 
 
Note: - Please see Finding 5.8.2 
regarding various other issues 
identified during this review in respect 
of block bookings at the School. 

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented. 

 

T
udalen 208



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Continued It was also noted when examining the 
duplicate invoices created on SIMS, that 
VAT was incorrectly coded on occasions. 
E.g. for clubs who have VAT exemption, 
the invoice was coded to 'Outside of 
Scope' rather than ‘Exempt’. 

Recommendation fully 
implemented, including 
the segregation of duties. 

 Not Applicable.  Not Applicable 

 

 

 

  

T
udalen 209



 

 

 

 

 

 

5.5 BANKING 
 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.5.1 
 

High 

Section 2.3 of the LAF Rules states 
'The school must not be allowed to 
overdraw the account'. 

 
The following instances were identified 
where the school's bank account was 
overdrawn: 
 

Statement 
Date 

Amount 
Overdrawn 

1
st
 - 7

th
 April 2016 -£30,334.06 

23
rd

 - 29
th

 Dec 2016 -£9,560.28 

30
th

 Dec – 5
th

 Jan 2017 -£10,476.22 

6
th

 – 12
th

 Jan 2017 -£7,729.97 

17
th

 – 23
rd

 Feb 2017 -£45,192.04 

24
th

 Feb – 2
nd

 Mar 2017 -£50,487.19 

3
rd

 – 9
th

 Mar 2017 -£39,532.00 

10
th

 – 16
th
 Mar 2017 -£2,163.96 

24
th

 – 30
th
 Mar 2017 -£4,749.38 

 

The School should not 
allow their account to go 
overdrawn. 
 
The account should be 
closely monitored to 
ensure that there are no 
cash flow issues, which 
could cause the account to 
become overdrawn. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this 
recommendation had been implemented in 
the initial audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review, audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has 
been implemented, whereby the school has 
not been overdrawn since the previous 
review. 

Not required as original 
recommendation 
implemented. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY  

& TARGET DATE 

Recommendations noted. 
The account will be closely 
monitored to ensure that 
there are no cash flow 
issues, which could cause 
the account to become 
overdrawn. 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 210



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.5.2 
 

High 

Whilst bank 
statements are 
received weekly, 
there is no evidence 
on the bank 
statements to 
demonstrate that 
they have been 
reconciled to SIMS 
i.e. transactions are 
not ticked; the bank 
statements are not 
signed or dated.  

The bank statements 
should be reconciled as 
soon as possible upon 
receipt, and should 
clearly demonstrate that 
they have been 
reconciled (e.g. 
transactions ticked), and 
the statements signed 
and dated by the person 
who undertook the 
reconciliation. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have not been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review, but audit testing has confirmed that 
the recommendation has not been implemented. 

 
Whilst bank statements are received weekly, occasions 
were noted whereby there was no evidence on the bank 
statements to demonstrate that they have been reconciled 
to SIMS i.e. transactions are not ticked; the bank 
statements are not signed or dated. 
 

Additionally, it was established that the bank reconciliation 
is undertaken by three different members of staff 
depending on availability. This appears to be a contributing 
factor in as to why there are inconsistencies is the bank 
reconciliation process. 

Recommendation fully 
implemented in February 2018, 
immediately following the audit. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Recommendations noted 
and implemented.  

Management should identify one member of staff to 
undertake the bank reconciliation process at the school. 
 

Following this, each bank statements should be reconciled 
as soon as possible upon receipt, and should clearly 
demonstrate that they have been reconciled (e.g. 
transactions ticked), and the statements signed and dated 
by the person who undertook the reconciliation. 

 
The bank reconciliation exercise should be carried out by 
someone independent to the process to demonstrate 
transparency. 

Estates Manager  
 

Implemented 

  

T
udalen 211



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.5.3 
 

High 

The Finance Officer 
receives, records and 
banks income, raises 
invoices and is solely 
responsible for 
completing the bank 
reconciliation. 

There should be a 
segregation of duties 
between receiving income 
and raising invoices. 
 
The bank reconciliation 
process should be reviewed 
by an independent person. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have not been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had 
been implemented in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review, but audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has not been 
implemented, with the Finance Officer continuing to 
raise invoices and match the subsequent income. 

Completed following the audit in 
February 2018. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Administrative structure 
amended to incorporate this 
recommendation, and 
achieve full segregation of 
duties in the Finance office. 

There should be a segregation of duties between 
receiving income and raising invoices. 
 
This person cannot be involved in the bank 
reconciliation process, as identified in 5.5.2. 

Estates Manager  
 

Implemented 

 

  

T
udalen 212



 

 

 

 

 

 

5.6 BUDGETARY CONTROL 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.6.1 
 

Medium 

There is no structured 
process in place for 
providing Budget 
Holders with regular 
budgetary information 
from SIMS, to allow 
Budget Holders to 
monitor their own 
budgets. 

All Budget Holders 
should monitor their 
own budgets, and 
maintain a budget 
monitoring record.  
 
In order to effectively 
monitor their budgets, 
the Finance Officer 
should provide Budget 
Holder with regular 
cost centre transaction 
reports from SIMS (e.g. 
monthly), to allow the 
Budget Holder to 
reconcile transactions. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been partially implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review, but audit testing has confirmed that 
the recommendation has been partially implemented. 

 
On the 26th September 2017 and the 20th November 2017 
the School Finance Officer provided all budget holders with 
detailed Cost Centre Transaction reports. In January 2018, 
a Cost Centre Transaction listing report was again provided 
to budget holders, but only to departments that had 
balances remaining within their budgets.  
 

Discussions at the school revealed that departments are 
not formally advised when there is no money remaining, 
instead Budget Holders are advised verbally (if they ask). 

All budget holders received ½ 
termly Capitation reports, even 
departments which have zero 
balances. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Recommendation 
implemented. Budget 
holders provided with 
transaction reports 
twice per term. 

All Budget Holders should monitor their own budgets, and 
maintain a budget monitoring record. 
 
In order to effectively monitor their budgets, the Finance 
Officer should provide Budget Holders with regular cost 
centre transaction reports from SIMS (e.g. monthly), to 
allow the Budget Holder to reconcile transactions. Budget 
holders should also be formally notified when there are no 
further funds remaining. 

Estates Manager &  
Finance Officer 

 
January 2019 

 

T
udalen 213



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.6.2 
 

Medium 

Virements are 
undertaken by either the 
Finance Officer or the 
Estates Manager. 
However, the 
responsibility for this 
function has not been 
formally delegated by 
the Governing Body; 
neither has the 
Governing Body agreed 
on a limit up to which 
the responsible officers 
can make a virement or 
budget holders’ 
purchase limits. 
 

Additionally, no record 
is maintained of any 
virements made.  

Any alterations to the school 
budget should be reported to 
/ agreed by the Governing 
Body, unless responsibility 
for this function has been 
delegated. Where 
responsibility has been 
delegated, the Governing 
Body should agree on a limit 
for purchases and 
virements. A written record 
of all virements made should 
be maintained, with each 
virement authorised by the 
main Budget Holder. 

Estates Manager & 
Clerk to the 

Governing Body 

 

Implemented 

Confirmed to have been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit report and 
when scoping this follow up review, audit testing 
has confirmed that the recommendation has been 
implemented, with limits for virements formally 
delegated by the Governing Body. 

 

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY  

& TARGET DATE 

Policy implemented in 
accordance with Governing 
Body limitations. 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable 

 

  

T
udalen 214



 

 

 

 

 

 

5.7 ASSETS 
 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.7.1 
 

Low 

The School 
Development Plan 
covers the period 2016 
- 2019. Whilst 43 
priorities have been 
specified, estimated 
costs have only been 
attributed to 6.  

 

Discussions at the 
School revealed that 
this is because the 
School has insufficient 
funds available. 

The Building Development 
Plan should include realistic 
and detailed cost 
implications for planned 
works, in order to 
incorporate these costs 
when setting the budget for 
each financial year. 

Estates Manager 

 

31
st
 March 2018 

Confirmed to have not been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had 
not been implemented at the time of the follow up 
review, with audit testing confirming this.  

The Building Development Plan 
includes detailed cost 
implications for planned works, 
where applicable.  When works 
are deemed to be above costs 
which could be met by the 
school budget detailed costings 
are not pursued further e.g. flat 
roof replacement. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Agreed. The Building Development Plan should include 
realistic and detailed cost implications for planned 
works, in order to incorporate these costs when 
setting the budget for each financial year. 

Estates Manager  
 

January 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 215



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

ORIGINAL  

FINDING 

ORIGINAL  

RECOMMENDATION 

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW  

MANAGEMENT                      
RESPONSE 

5.7.2 
 

Medium 

At present, the school 
does not have an 
Inventory. 
 

Neither are there formal 
procedures in place to 
ensure that write-offs / 
disposals of surplus or 
redundant equipment 
are authorised and 
recorded. 

A full inventory should be 
compiled as soon as 
possible on SIMS. 
Thereafter, an annual review 
should be carried out to 
ensure that the record is 
accurate and up-to-date. 
 

Disposal of equipment 
should be formally approved 
and documented. 

Estates Manager 

 

31
st
 March 2018 

Confirmed to have not been implemented. 
 

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had 
not been implemented at the time of the follow up 
review, with audit testing confirming this. 

A full inventory will be compiled 
as soon as possible on SIMS.  
 
Thereafter, an annual review will 
be carried out to ensure that the 
record is accurate and up-to-
date. 
 

Disposal of equipment will be 
formally approved and 
documented. 

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE  

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED  

RESPONSIBILITY &  

TARGET DATE 

Agreed. A full inventory should be compiled as soon as 
possible on SIMS. Thereafter, an annual review 
should be carried out to ensure that the record is 
accurate and up-to-date. 
 

Disposal of equipment should be formally approved 
and documented. 

Estates Manager  
 

March 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 216



 

 

 

 

 

 

5.8 NEW FINDINGS 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

FINDING IMPLICATION RECOMMENDATION MANAGEMENT RESPONSE RESPONSIBILITY 
& TARGET DATE 

5.8.1 
 

High 

GOVERNANCE 

In April 2017, the School ended the cleaning 
contract with the Council’s approved 
Contractor.  A Temporary Contractor was 
appointed from April 2017, and a new 3 year 
Contractor appointed from August 2017. 
 
The following timeline of events are noted 
from a review of the minutes for the relevant 
Governing Body/Sub-Committees: 
 
1. Temporary Contractor 

 Current Minutes suggest Finance 
Committee approved the temporary 
contract over its delegated limits 
(the agreed delegated limit for the 
Finance Committee is £15k 
although the temporary contractor 
was appointed at a cost of £30k).   

 No contract was put in place. 

 No rationale of costs was provided 
in writing to the Finance Committee 
for this contract when making their 
decision and no report has since 
been provided to Internal Audit, as 
evidence of the cost rationale 
presented to / approved by the 
Finance Committee.  

 When making the decision, no 
record is noted in the minutes 
demonstrating the appointment of 
an interim Chair.  Note; the Chair 
left the meeting due to a conflict of 
interest.  

(CONTINUED) 

Appropriate, 
documentary evidence is 
not available within the 
Governing Body minutes 
of the relevant 
Committees as evidence 
of the decision making 
process.  

  

In the absence of a 
documented cost 
rationale, it is not 
possible to determine 
whether if a contract is 
entered into 
appropriately, 

 

Without a Chairperson in 
charge of meetings, 
decisions made could be 
called into question.  

 

Decisions have been 
made which are not 
within the delegated 
limits of authority. 

The Headteacher should 
ensure that this contract 
is formally presented with 
full details to the 
Governing Body and 
agreed by the Governing 
Body, and for any such 
contracts going forward. 

 

Contracts should not be 
entered into without full 
costs obtained and a 
signed contract in place. 

 

The school should obtain 
a copy of the signed 
contract. 

Appropriate process was followed 
during the full Governing Body 
meetings, but we acknowledge that 
the Minutes for these meetings do not 
accurately reflect the discussions that 
took place.  Contracts were not 
entered into without due process 
being followed and sub committees 
did not act beyond delegated 
authorised limits.   Full Governing 
Body members and relevant sub-
committee members will be asked to 
sign a statement to this effect in a 
forthcoming Governing Body meeting. 

 

The School was also ‘defaulting’ to 
the Chair of Governors, if present at a 
sub-committee meeting, automatically 
chairing the sub-committee meeting if 
the elected chair has to leave the 
room.  Audit has confirmed that a 
Chair should be elected in such 
circumstances on each occasion 
even if the Chair of Governors is a 
sub-committee member and present. 

 

Discussions have taken place with 
the Clerk to the Governors re. the 
accuracy of minute taking and RCT’s 
requirement re-electing the Chairs of 
Sub Committees when current Chairs 
are required to leave the room.  
These two points will be addressed 
going forward. 

Headteacher &  

Chair of Governors 

 

February 2019 

T
udalen 217



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

FINDING IMPLICATION RECOMMENDATION MANAGEMENT RESPONSE RESPONSIBILITY 
& TARGET DATE 

Continued NOTE: The Headteacher and Chair of 
Governors have indicated that appropriate 
discussions did take place during the full 
Governing Body meetings, but acknowledge 
that the Minutes for these meetings do not 
accurately reflect the discussions that took 
place.   
 
Based upon the minutes, the Governing 
Body has not approved the School to enter 
into the contract with the new Contractor – to 
the value of £304,312.00 over the duration of 
the contract. 
 
2.  3 Year Contractor 

 While there is a copy of the contract 
held by the School, it has only been 
signed by the Headteacher and not 
the appointed Contractor. 

    

 

 

  

T
udalen 218



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

FINDING IMPLICATION RECOMMENDATION MANAGEMENT 
RESPONSE 

RESPONSIBILITY & 
TARGET DATE 

5.8.2 

 

High  

SCHOOL INCOME 

Examination of the block 
bookings at the school/pool 
identified the following issues: 
 

 Hires are not authorised by 
the Headteacher. 

 2 contracts have not been 
signed by the 
organisation/hirer 

 1 contract is out of date, i.e. 
contract was up until 
December 2017, yet they 
have been billed up to and 
including March 2018 

 4  hirers have not been 
charged VAT yet no VAT 
emption form has been 
completed 

 2 hirers have completed VAT 
exemption forms, yet have 
been charged VAT at 
standard rate. 

 2 hirers have been charged 
at an incorrect rate, 1 has 
been charged £55 per hour 
instead of £56 per hour (as 
per the booking form) and a 
hockey match has been 
charged at £65 per hour and 
not £51 for a full pitch. 

 No authorised copies of 
invoices are held at School. 

The Headteacher is not 
authorising the use of School 
facilities. 
 
The hire of facilities is being 
administered inconsistently. 
 
Organisations are not being 
charged in accordance with the 
School Charging Policy. 
 

VAT may not be correctly 
accounted for. 

The School should update its booking form 
to capture all required details for future 
requests for hire including retaining 
evidence of affiliated groups, and 
insurance details for VAT exemptions. 
 
All forms received should be authorised by 
the Headteacher before the hire 
commences. 
 

Overall responsibility for managing the hire 
of premises should be formally determined. 

Booking Forms update 
following the changes 
to VAT regulations in 
September 2018. 

 

Authority for Hire and 
Authorisation has been 
delegated by the 
Governing Body to the 
Estates Manager. 

Estates Manager 

 

March 2019 

  

T
udalen 219



 

 

 

 

 

 

REF & 
PRIORITY 

FINDING IMPLICATION RECOMMENDATION MANAGEMENT 
RESPONSE 

RESPONSIBILITY & 
TARGET DATE 

5.8.3 
 

Medium 

As detailed above in 5.4.2, 
£3,225.52 is owed to the School 
Budget from the Private Fund in 
respect of the School production 
of High School Musical.  
 

Discussions with the Estates 
Manager identified that income 
is collected via the School 
Private Fund for these 
productions which are to then to 
be transferred into the School 
Budget. Additionally, the 
costs/expenditure to put on 
these shows is deducted from 
both the Private Fund and 
School Budget. 

 

Therefore, income and 
expenditure is being 
inconsistently accounted for. 

 

The mixing and matching of 
income and expenditure 
between the School Budget and 
Private Fund accounts is not 
permitted. 
 
Confusion may occur between 
School Private Fund and School 
Budget Income. 

There should be no mixing and matching of 
income and expenditure between the 
School Budget and Private Fund in regards 
to school productions/shows. 
 
The school should determine the most 
appropriate method going forward to 
facilitate these transactions and ensure 
that all income/expenditure is processed 
accordingly. 

Separation between 
the accounts has now 
been fully 
implemented. 

 

The issue highlighted 
around the school’s 
annual drama 
production had been in 
place for several years. 

Estates Manager & 
Finance Officer  

 

March 2019 

 

 

T
udalen 220


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion
	4 Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru: Llythyr Archwilio Blynyddol 2017/18
	Annual Audit Letter – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 2017-18
	The Council complied with its responsibilities relating to financial reporting and use of resources
	I am satisfied that the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources but there remains scope for the Council to make further improvements
	Local authorities in Wales face significant financial challenges
	My work to date on certification of grant claims and returns has not identified significant issues that would impact on the accounts or key financial systems

	Agenda Item 5 - Management Letter for 2017 Final (005).pdf
	Management Letter for 2017-18 – Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council
	Introduction
	The Auditor General issued an unqualified opinion on the 2017-18 financial statements of Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council
	Recommendations from our 2017-18 audit work
	Summary of corrections made to the draft financial statements which should be drawn to the attention of Full Council



	5 Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru: Adroddiad Gwella Blynyddol 2017/18
	6 Argymhellion Datganiad Llywodraethu Blynyddol 2017/18 - Yr Wybodaeth Ddiweddaraf
	7 Strategaeth Rheoli Risg
	9 Cyflawniad Archwilio Mewnol
	10 Aseiniadau Archwilio Terfynol

